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Securities Note
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EM Falcon Limited

(a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Ireland)

Series 2013-02

U.S.$82,812,295 Class A Pass-through Notes due 2022 (the “Class A Notes”) and
U.S.$1,190,997,673 Class B Pass-through Notes due 2022 (the “Class B Notes” and,
together with the Class A Notes, the “Notes”)

THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”). THE NOTES MAY BE OFFERED,
SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES TO NON-U.S.
PERSONS IN RELIANCE ON REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (“REGULATION
s”).

This Securities Note (this “Securities Note”) is prepared in connection with the Note Issuance Program of EM
Falcon Limited (the “Issuer™) and must be read in conjunction with the Registration Document dated May 17, 2013
(the “Registration Document” and, together with this Securities Note, the “Prospectus” or the “Placement
Memorandum?”), issued by the Issuer. Terms used but not defined in this Securities Note have the same meanings
as in the Registration Document. The Registration Document is incorporated by reference into this Securities Note.

This Securities Note has been prepared for the purpose of giving information about the issue of the Notes.

This Securities Note has been approved by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) as competent authority
under the Prospectus Directive 2003/71/EC (the “Prospectus Directive”). The Central Bank only approves this
Securities Note as meeting the requirements imposed under Irish and EU law pursuant to the Prospectus Directive.
Such approval relates only to the Notes which are to be admitted to a regulated market for the purposes of Directive
2004/39/EC or which are to be offered to the public in any Member State of the European Economic Area (EEA).
This document constitutes a Securities Note for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive as implemented in Ireland
by the Prospectus (Directive 2003/71/EC) Regulations 2005 (the “Prospectus Regulations™) and this Securities
Note and the Registration Document together constitute a “prospectus” for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive
and the Prospectus Regulations.

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange (the “Irish Stock Exchange”) for the Notes to be admitted
to the Official List and trading on its regulated market (the “Regulated Market”). The Regulated Market is a
“regulated market” for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC.

The Notes offered hereby are issued pursuant to the Series 2013-02 Indenture described herein (as supplemented,
the “Indenture”) among The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (the “Trustee”), the Issuer and the other parties
thereto.

The secured assets relating to the Notes will be referred to herein as the “Charged Assets”. The holders of the
Notes (the “Holders”) will have recourse only to the Charged Assets. The Charged Assets will primarily consist of
(i) the Reference Assets described herein, (ii) the Issuer’s rights under the other agreements (other than the
Indenture) entered into in connection with the issuance of the Notes, (iii) any Permitted Investments purchased by
the Issuer, (iv) the Collection Account, (v) certain property incidental thereto, and (vi) the proceeds of the
foregoing. See “The Charged Assets” herein. Class A Notes and Class B Notes will rank pari passu in priority of
payments.

The Notes will be issued in Book-Entry form and will be represented by one or more Global Notes in registered
form. The Notes will initially be represented by a Global Note registered in the name of the nominee of a common
depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream.



The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act. The Notes may not be offered or sold
within the United States or to U.S. persons at any time.

The Notes will not be rated upon issuance.

Neither this Securities Note nor the Registration Document shall constitute a prospectus for purposes of the
Securities Act. Neither this Securities Note nor the Registration Document are an offering to the public in
the United States, and the offering and sale of the Notes pursuant to this Securities Note and the Registration
Document shall be subject to the transfer restrictions set forth herein and therein.

The Issuer accepts responsibility for all the information contained in this Securities Note and, to the best of the
knowledge and belief of the Issuer (which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the
information contained in this Securities Note is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information.

The Reference Assets Issuer accepts responsibility solely for the information set forth under the heading “The
Reference Assets Issuer” in Annex A of this Securities Note (the “Third Party Information”). To the best
knowledge and belief of the Reference Assets Issuer, such information is in accordance with the facts and does not
omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

The Issuer has only made very limited enquiries with regards to the accuracy and completeness of the Third Party
Information. The Third Party Information has been provided by the Reference Assets Issuer and, so far as the
Issuer is aware, no facts have been omitted which would render the Third Party Information inaccurate or
misleading. Prospective investors in the Notes should not rely upon, and should make their own independent
investigations and enquires in respect of, the accuracy and completeness of the Third Party Information.

This Securities Note, as approved by the Central Bank, will be filed with the Irish Companies Registration Office in
accordance with Regulation 38 (1)(b) of the Prospectus Regulations. The Issuer is not and will not be regulated by
the Central Bank as a result of issuing the Notes. Any investment in the Notes does not have the status of a bank
deposit and is not within the scope of the deposit protection scheme operated by the Central Bank.

MORGAN STANLEY
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RISK FACTORS

The risk factors below must be read in conjunction with the risk factors set forth in the Registration Document. To
the extent any provision in this Securities Note is inconsistent with the Registration Document, the provisions in this
Securities Note shall control.

Ratings on the Notes

The Issuer does not intend to apply for the Notes to be rated upon issuance. Although the Issuer does not intend to apply for
the Notes to be rated, there can be no assurance as to whether any rating agency will nonetheless issue an unsolicited rating
and, if so, what such rating would be or how such rating would effect investors’ perception of the Notes’ value.

Public Information About the Reference Assets Issuer

Prospective purchasers of the Notes are urged to undertake their own investigation of the Reference Assets Issuer. Neither
the Issuer nor any Morgan Stanley entity will provide to any prospective Holder any information about the Reference Assets
Issuer other than what is set forth herein. The information concerning the Reference Assets Issuer herein has been provided
by the Reference Assets Issuer, and has not been independently verified by the Issuer, the Distributor, any other Morgan
Stanley entity, the Trustee or anyone else in connection with the issuance of the Notes.

Market Value Risk with respect to the Reference Assets

In addition to the credit risk with respect to the Reference Assets, holders of the Notes will be exposed to market value risk
with respect to the Reference Assets. If an Early Redemption Event or an Indenture Event of Default occurs, the Issuer's sole
source of funds for redeeming the Notes in cash (and not by physical delivery) will be the redemption proceeds or, as the case
may be, liquidation proceeds of the Reference Assets. In the case of a liquidation of the Reference Assets, if the Issuer
cannot sell the Reference Assets for a price at least equal to the Principal Balance plus an amount equal to all claims which
rank in priority to the claims of the Holders of the Notes in accordance with the Priority of Payments, the amount received by
the Holders of the Notes will be reduced to reflect the Issuer’s shortfall.

Holders Should Seek Independent Advice before Purchasing the Notes

By its purchase of a Note, each Holder represents that it has sought independent legal, regulatory, tax, business, investment,
financial and accounting advice to the extent it deems such advice necessary in evaluating and understanding all the
conditions and the risks of such Note, and it is willing to assume (financially and otherwise) all such risks.

Notes May be Redeemed at Less Than 100% of Principal if Redeemed Early; Physical Delivery is the Settlement
Mechanism if the Settlement Conditions are Satisfied

If the Notes are, for any reason, redeemed prior to the Scheduled Maturity Date, Holders will receive either Reference Assets
or U.S. dollars, as more fully described herein. In each case the Holder may face delays in receipt or payment. The Early
Redemption Amount is calculated by reference to amounts received by the Issuer as holder of the Reference Assets. The
Liquidation Proceeds Amount is the amount received on disposal of the Reference Assets, and is accordingly liable to be
affected by market conditions. The Early Redemption Amount and the Liquidation Proceeds Amount may, depending on the
circumstances and as further described herein, be payable via physical delivery of the Reference Assets or in U.S. dollars,
depending on whether certain Settlement Conditions are satisfied. In addition, any amounts payable or deliverable will be
reduced by amounts ranking prior to the Holders in the Priority of Payments.

If a Reference Assets Default (other than a Reference Assets Default caused by the insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Reference Assets Issuer) occurs prior to the Maturity Date, or a Tax Redemption Event or Indenture Event of Default (other
than a Reference Assets Default) has occurred, the Holder will receive, subject to deduction of an amount equal to all claims
which rank in priority to such Holder in accordance with the Priority of Payments, either (i) subject to the Settlement
Conditions being satisfied for Physical Delivery, such Holder’s pro rata share of outstanding Reference Assets or (ii) if the
Settlement Conditions for Physical Delivery are not satisfied, an amount equal to such Holder’s pro rata share of the
Liquidation Proceeds Amount. In some circumstances, the Liquidation Proceeds Amount might be zero.



Notes May be Redeemed Early if an Early Redemption Event or Indenture Event of Default Occurs

The Notes will be redeemed prior to the Maturity Date in the event that (i) an Early Redemption Event occurs prior to such
date or (ii) an Indenture Event of Default occurs prior to such date and the Holder opts to have its Notes redeemed early. On
redemption of the Notes in these circumstances, Holders may not be repaid the full amount of their investment in the Notes.
See “Notes May be Redeemed at Less Than 100% of Principal if Redeemed Early” above.

Action or lack of action taken by the Cayman Islands government, which is the jurisdiction of the Reference Assets Issuer,
and changes in political, economic or social conditions in the Cayman Islands could lead to the occurrence of an Early
Redemption Event which would affect the rights of the Holders to receive payments in respect of Notes in U.S. dollars and
would affect the market conditions and price of the Reference Assets.

Reference Assets Issuer Credit Risk

The ability of the Issuer to make payments on the Notes in a timely manner or at all is conditional on the actual receipt by the
Issuer of corresponding payments of interest, principal and swap payments from the Reference Assets Issuer in accordance
with the terms of the Reference Assets. A default by the Reference Assets Issuer on its payment obligations under the
Reference Assets may result in a Holder of Notes receiving less interest or principal payments than the respective amounts
provided for in such Notes, or no payment at all, and/or receiving any such payments later than the anticipated date for
payment. In addition, a reduction in the creditworthiness of the Reference Assets Issuer or its default on other obligations
outstanding may adversely impact the value of the Notes.

Neither the Trustee nor the Calculation Agent or any Other Agent will Monitor the Reference Assets Issuer Credit
Risk or Compliance with the Terms of the Reference Assets

Neither the Trustee nor the Calculation Agent or any other Agent will monitor compliance by the Reference Assets Issuer
with the terms of the Reference Assets. The terms of the Reference Assets provide for reporting by the Reference Assets
Issuer to the Issuer (with a copy to the Trustee) of the occurrence of an actual or potential event of default or termination
event thereunder, but there can be no assurance that the Reference Assets Issuer will self-report as required. Therefore,
neither the Trustee nor the Calculation Agent or any other Agent will be aware of any actual or potential event of default or
termination event unless specifically notified of it in writing by the Reference Assets Issuer, the Issuer or a Holder. As a
result, the consequences of such an event occurring, including an Early Redemption Event, may be delayed until such time as
notification of such event has been received by the Trustee.

No Compensation for a Period Over Which a Payment Date or the Maturity Date is Extended Beyond a Scheduled
Payment Date or Scheduled Maturity Date

As specified under “Reference Assets Issuer Credit Risk” above, a failure by the Reference Assets Issuer to timely make its
payment obligations under the Reference Assets will result in a delay of payment to the Holders. Therefore, a Payment Date
and/or the Maturity Date may be extended beyond the scheduled Payment Date and/or the Scheduled Maturity Date. In any
such case, no further interest will accrue on the Notes as a result of any such extension other than any such additional
amounts that are actually received by the Issuer from the Reference Assets Issuer in accordance with the terms of the
Reference Assets.

Risk Related to Failure to Maintain a Valid Security Interest in the Charged Assets

The Trustee’s security interest in the Charged Assets may depend on timely and properly filing recordings, filings or
registrations in Ireland or the United States that evidence such security interest. Such recordings, filings or registrations may
need to be made on a periodic basis in order to maintain the validity of the Trustee’s security interest. The Trustee takes no
responsibility for effecting or monitoring these recordings, filings or registrations. A failure by the Issuer to maintain the
validity of the Trustee’s security interest in the Charged Assets may adversely affect the amount that the Holders receive in
the event of liquidation, delivery or redemption of the Reference Assets.



THE NOTES

Series 2013-02

Specified Currency U.S. dollars

Initial Principal Balance of Class A Notes U.S.$82,812,295

Principal Balance of Class A Notes An amount determined on any date as follows:

(i) the Initial Principal Balance of the Class A Notes;
minus

(i) the aggregate amount of reductions in connection
with Principal Reduction Amounts applied to the
Principal Balance of the Class A Notes on or before
such date of determination.

Principal Reduction Amount of Class A Notes In respect of each Principal Reduction Date for the
Class A Notes, an amount equal to U.S.$2,957,582
(pari passu with the Principal Reduction Amount of
the Class B Notes), subject to the Issuer having
actually received sufficient payments from the
Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference

Assets.
Scheduled Maturity Date of Class A Notes September 12, 2022.
Initial Principal Balance of Class B Notes U.S.$1,190,997,673
Principal Balance of Class B Notes An amount determined on any date as follows:

(i) the Initial Principal Balance of the Class B Notes;
minus

(i) the aggregate amount of reductions in connection
with Principal Reduction Amounts applied to the
Principal Balance of the Class B Notes on or before
such date of determination.

Principal Reduction Amount of Class B Notes In respect of each Principal Reduction Date for the
Class B Notes, an amount equal to the U.S. dollar
amount listed in Annex B (pari passu with the
Principal Reduction Amount of the Class A Notes),
subject to the Issuer having actually received
sufficient payments from the Reference Assets Issuer
in respect of the Reference Assets.

Scheduled Maturity Date of Class B Notes September 12, 2022.




Maturity Date

Subject to the occurrence of an Early Redemption
Event or an Indenture Event of Default, the later of
(@) in the case of the Class A Notes, the Scheduled
Maturity Date of the Class A Notes and for the Class
B Notes, the Scheduled Maturity Date of the Class B
Notes and (b) the day falling one Business Day after
the date on which the Issuer has actually received all
amounts of interest, principal and swap payments
payable to it by the Reference Assets Issuer in
accordance with the terms of the Reference Assets.

Reference Assets

The following are the Reference Assets (as they are
expected to be on the Issue Date following the issue of
the Notes and the purchase of the Reference Assets):

(i) U.S.$875,559,175 principal amount outstanding
under a Credit Facility Agreement originally dated
December 14, 2010 between Odebrecht Oil Services
Ltd. as substitute borrower and the Issuer as new
lender (the “OOSL | Credit Agreement”);

(i) U.S.$875,559,175 aggregate notional amount under
36 interest rate swaps between Odebrecht Qil Services
Ltd. and the Issuer (the “OOSL | Swaps™);

(iif) U.S.$302,277,186 principal amount outstanding
under a Credit Facility Agreement originally dated
January 30, 2008, as amended and restated on June 26,
2012, between Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. as
substitute borrower and the Issuer as new lender (the
“OO0SL Six Credit Agreement” and together with the
OOSL | Credit Agreement, the “OOSL Credit
Agreements”); and

(iv) U.S.$302,277,186 aggregate notional amount
under 8 interest rate swaps between Odebrecht Oil
Services Ltd. and the Issuer (the “OOSL Six Swaps”
and together with the OOSL | Swaps, the “OOSL
Swaps”).

Reference Assets Issuer

Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. (“OOSL”), incorporated
as a limited company in the Cayman Islands.

Further information regarding the Reference Assets
Issuer can be found under “The Charged Assets” and
Annex A below.

Reference Assets Maturity Date

For the OOSL | Credit Agreement, September 12,
2022, for the OOSL | Swaps, September 12, 2022, for
the OOSL Six Credit Agreement, April 28, 2017, for
the OOSL Six Swaps, April 28, 2017.

Pricing Date

August 6, 2013

Issue Date and Closing Date

Closing Date: August 7, 2013
Issue Date: August 7, 2013

Issue Price

Class A Notes: 100% plus accrued interest at the fixed




rate specified under “Interest Rate” below from and
including the most recent interest payment dates under
the Reference Assets to but excluding the Issue Date.

Class B Notes: 100% plus accrued interest at the
blended interest rate applicable to the Reference Assets
(less the accrued interest at the fixed rate applicable to
the Class A Notes) from and including the most recent
interest payment dates thereunder to but excluding the
Issue Date.

Interest Rate

The Notes are pass-through Notes, and therefore the
provisions relating to the determination of interest set
out in the Registration Document shall not apply.
See “Distribution Amount” below for payment of the
Distribution Amount.

The interest rate on the Class A Notes is 4.00% per
annum.

The interest rate on the Class B Notes for all interest
periods other than the final interest period is
4.2744% per annum, which is a blended rate
corresponding to the expected interest rates for the
Reference Assets after payment of interest on the
Class A Notes and taking into account the Principal
Reduction Amounts. The interest rate on the Class B
Notes for the final interest period will be zero.

All computations of interest shall be made on the
basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of
days elapsed.

Payments of interest rank pari passu between Class A
Notes and Class B Notes. If there are insufficient
payments from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect
of the Reference Assets to fund the interest payments
in full on a Distribution Amount Payment Date, the
amounts available will be applied in proportion to the
amounts due and payable on such Distribution Amount
Payment Date on each Class of Notes.

However, as described further in “Conditions to
Payment”, the Issuer shall not be obliged to make
any payment to Holders under the Notes unless and
until it has actually received a corresponding
payment from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect
of the Reference Assets.

Interest Payment Date

Each Distribution Amount Payment Date in each
year, commencing on September 30, 2013 for the
period from and including the last business day in
March 2013 to but excluding September 30, 2013
and ending on September 12, 2022 and on which a
payment corresponding to a payment of interest or a
swap payment on the Reference Assets is made.

Distribution Amount

Each Distribution Amount will be paid on the
applicable Distribution Amount Payment Date. For




purposes hereof, “Distribution Amount” means each
payment or distribution of any kind (including of
principal, interest, swap payments, fees, penalties,
rights or property of any type) actually received by
the Issuer from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect
of the Reference Assets and to be applied to
payments under the Indenture (and not already so
applied). The Distribution Amount shall include any
payment or distribution of any kind with respect to
any distribution relating to the Reference Assets’
interest periods (if any) that commenced immediately
prior to the Issue Date. The Distribution Amounts
will be paid in U.S. dollars.

There shall be no further Distribution Amounts
payable or deliverable in relation to any payment or
distribution of any kind (including of principal,
interest, fees, penalties, rights or property of any
type) which is made in respect of the Reference
Assets after the Maturity Date.

Distribution Amount Payment Date

The dates set out under “Distribution Amount
Payment Dates” in Annex B, provided that the funds
are received in the Collection Account prior to
11.00am New York time on the relevant Distribution
Amount Payment Date, failing which the
Distribution Amount Payment Date will be the next
following Business Day. These dates are the same as
the Reference Assets Distribution Dates.

For purposes hereof, each Distribution Amount
Payment Date corresponding to a payment of interest
or a swap payment on the Reference Assets shall be
deemed to be an Interest Payment Date, and each
Distribution Amount Payment Date corresponding to
a payment of principal or other amount (other than
interest or swap payments) on the Reference Assets
shall be deemed to be a Principal Payment Date.

There shall be no further Distribution Amounts
payable or deliverable in relation to each payment or
distribution of any kind (including of principal,
interest, fees, penalties, rights or property of any
type) which is made in respect of the Reference
Assets occurring after the Maturity Date.

Reference Assets Distribution Date

Each date upon which the Issuer actually receives
each payment of interest, principal or swap payment
or any distribution of any kind (including of interest,
swap payments, fees, penalties, rights or property of
any type) from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect
of the Reference Assets and to be applied to
payments under the Indenture.  The expected
Reference Assets Distribution Dates are set out in
Annex B.

Permitted Investments

Pending payment to the Holders of amounts received




from the Reference Assets Issuer, the Trustee will, at
the written instruction of 100% of the Holders and
provided the period between receipt of such written
instruction and the immediately succeeding
Distribution Amount Payment Date is at least five
Business Days, invest such amounts in Permitted
Investments maturing on or before such immediately
succeeding Distribution Amount Payment Date.

Reference Assets Liquidation Distribution Date

Each date upon which the Issuer actually receives
any Liquidation Proceeds Amount, early repayment,
prepayment or termination proceeds or other similar
amounts in connection with the liquidation,
repayment or termination of any of the Charged
Assets.

Expected Principal Reduction Amounts

The Issuer expects the principal on the Reference
Assets to be repaid in installments on each Reference
Assets Distribution Date.

The Class A Notes are expected to amortize in 28
equal installments of U.S.$2,957,582 each during their
term payable on each Principal Reduction Date for the
Class A Notes.

The Class B Notes are expected to amortize during
their term in 28 installments of the amount set out
under “Principal Reduction Amounts” in Annex B.

Payments of Principal Reduction Amounts rank pari
passu between Class A Notes and Class B Notes. If
there are insufficient payments from the Reference
Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets to fund
the Principal Reduction Amounts in full on a
Distribution Amount Payment Date, the amounts
available will be applied in proportion to the amounts
due and payable on such Distribution Amount Payment
Date on each Class of Notes.

However, as described further in “Conditions to
Payment”, the Issuer shall not be obliged to make any
payment to Holders under the Notes unless and until it
has actually received a corresponding payment from
the Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference
Assets.

Early Redemption Events

The occurrence of any of the following events, as
determined by the Calculation Agent, will constitute an
Early Redemption Event:

(i) a Tax Redemption Event; or
(if) a Reference Assets Default; or
(iii) a Reference Assets Early Redemption.

The Notes will be subject to early redemption by the
Issuer following an Early Redemption Event, as
described under “Payments on or after the Maturity




Date and upon an Early Redemption Event”.

Deferred Interest

N/A

Form of Securities

Regulation S Global

Type of Note

Fixed Rate

Minimum Denomination (Integral Multiples)

U.S.$1,000,000 and Integral Multiples of U.S.$1,000
thereafter.

Initial Rating None
Holdover N/A
ISIN XS0944225159 for Class A Notes

XS0944225233 for Class B Notes

Common Code

094422515 for Class A Notes
094422523 for Class B Notes




APPLICABLE SUPPLEMENT

This Securities Note must be read in conjunction with the Registration Document.

To the extent any provision in this

Securities Note is inconsistent with the Registration Document, the provisions in this Securities Note shall control. The
description of the Notes contained in this Securities Note does not purport to be, and is not, complete. In addition to
this Securities Note and the Registration Document, prospective purchasers should review the Indenture, the terms of
the Reference Assets and the terms of any other Charged Assets in making their decision to purchase any Notes.

N 0] (=TSSR The U.S.$82,812,295 Class A Pass-through Notes due 2022 (the “Class
A Notes”) and the U.S.$1,190,997,673 Class B Pass-through Notes due
2022 (the “Class B Notes” and, together with the Class A Notes, the
“Notes”), each of Series 2013-02, to be issued by the Issuer pursuant to
the Indenture.

The Notes shall comprise two “Classes” as defined in the Registration
Document: Class A Notes and Class B Notes.

U EM Falcon Limited

Charged ASSELS .....cccviveieiee e All the Issuer’s estate, right, title and interest in, to and under, in each
case, whether now owned or existing, or hereafter acquired or arising:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

the Reference Assets;

the other transaction documents relating to the Notes (other than
the Indenture);

the Collection Account and the related accounts established to
hold the Permitted Investments, including all assets, investments
and other amounts held in such accounts;

any Permitted Investments purchased by, or on behalf of, the
Issuer;

all present and continuing right, power and authority of the Issuer,
in the name and on behalf of the Issuer, as agent and attorney-in-
fact, or otherwise, to make claim for and demand performance on,
under or pursuant to any of the foregoing, to bring actions and
proceedings thereunder or for the specific or other enforcement
thereof, or with respect thereto, to make all waivers and
agreements, to grant or refuse requests, to give or withhold notices,
and to exercise all rights, remedies, powers, privileges and
options, to grant or withhold consents and approvals and do any
and all things and exercise all other discretionary rights, options,
privileges or benefits which the Issuer is or may become entitled
to do with respect to the foregoing; and

all proceeds, interest, income, profits or gains with respect to
cash, instruments and other property from time to time received,
receivable or otherwise distributed in respect of or in exchange
for any or all of the foregoing.

The Charged Assets will provide the sole source of funds for payments
in respect of the Notes.



Reference Assets...........

Reference Assets Issuer

The following are the Reference Assets:

(i) U.S.$875,559,175 principal amount outstanding under a Credit
Facility Agreement originally dated December 14, 2010 originally
between ODN | GmbH as borrower, HSBC Bank USA, National
Association as administrative agent and collateral trustee, Eksportfinans
ASA as lender and various other financial institutions named therein as
lenders, as amended on March 28, 2012 and as further amended,
novated and restated by a Deed of Amendment and Restatement,
Release and Novation dated on or about the Issue Date and, as a result
of such deed, between Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. as substitute
borrower and the Issuer as new lender (the “OOSL | Credit
Agreement”);

(i) U.S.$875,559,175 aggregate notional amount under 36 interest rate
swaps with an original trade date of January 27, 2011 originally
between various international banks as Party A and ODN | GmbH as
Party B, as amended and restated in late 2012 or early 2013, as
applicable, as novated by Novation Confirmations dated the Issue Date
pursuant to which Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc (“MSIP”)
replaced the banks as Party A, as amended and further novated by
Novation Agreements dated on or about the Issue Date so as to be
between the Issuer as Party A and Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. as Party
B (the “OOSL | Swaps™);

(iif) U.S.$302,277,186 principal amount outstanding under a Credit
Facility Agreement originally dated January 30, 2008 originally
between Odebrecht Drilling Services LLC (“ODS”) as borrower, The
Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. as administrative agent, Bank of America
N.A. as collateral agent, other parties as agents, and various financial
institutions named therein as lenders, as amended, restated and novated
by an Amended, Restated and Novated Credit Agreement dated June
26, 2012 between the same parties and Odebrecht Drilling Norbe Six
GmbH as the substitute borrower, as further amended, restated and
novated by a Deed of Amendment and Restatement, Release and
Novation dated on or about the Issue Date and, as a result of such deed,
between Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. as substitute borrower and the
Issuer as new lender (the “OOSL Six Credit Agreement” and together
with the OOSL | Credit Agreement, the “OOSL Credit Agreements”);
and

(iv) U.S.$302,277,186 aggregate notional amount under 8 interest rate
swaps with original trade dates of late 2007 and early 2008 originally
between various international banks as Party A and ODS as Party B, as
novated by, inter alia, Novation Agreements dated June 26, 2012 or
June 28, 2012, as applicable, pursuant to which ODN Six GmbH
replaced ODS as Party B, as further novated by Novation Confirmations
dated on or about the Issue Date pursuant to which MSIP replaced the
banks as Party A, as amended and further novated by Novation
Agreements dated on or about the Issue Date so as to be between the
Issuer as Party A and Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. as Party B (the
“OO0SL Six Swaps” and, together with the OOSL | Swaps, the “O0OSL
Swaps”).

Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. (“OOSL”), incorporated with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands.

Further information regarding the Reference Assets Issuer can be found
under “The Charged Assets” and “The Reference Assets Issuer” in
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TIUSEEE .o,
DiStribUtOr ..o
Calculation Agent........ccccoooeviiencninnnennn.

Collateral Disposal Agent..........c.cccovvenens

Issue Date and Closing Date......................

Scheduled Maturity Date ..........cc.cccevverenenn
Maturity Date.......cccoevervrnnnreneeeeeces

ISSUE PriCE....veiictiectii et

Initial Principal Balance of Class A Notes
and Authorized Amount of Class A Notes

Principal Balance of Class A Notes..........

Principal Reduction Amount of Class A Notes .......

Initial Principal Balance of Class B Notes
and Authorized Amount of Class B Notes

Annex A.

The Bank of New York Mellon
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC

Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc.

An entity to be specified by the Holders in the Disposal Directions as
provided under “Payments on or after the Maturity Date and upon an
Early Redemption Event — Liquidation of Charged Assets Due to an
Early Redemption Event” below and which shall meet the requirements
therein, which entity shall act in accordance with the terms of a power
of attorney substantially in the form of Annex E hereto granted to it by
the Trustee.

Closing Date: August 7, 2013
Issue Date: August 7, 2013
September 12, 2022.

Subject to the occurrence of an Early Redemption Event or an
Indenture Event of Default, the later of (a) in the case of the Class A
Notes, the Scheduled Maturity Date of the Class A Notes and for the
Class B Notes, the Scheduled Maturity Date of the Class B Notes and
(b) the Business Day on which the Issuer has actually received all
amounts of interest, principal and swap payments payable to it by the
Reference Assets Issuer in accordance with the terms of the Reference
Assets.

Class A Notes: 100% plus accrued interest at the Class A Notes interest
rate from and including the most recent interest payment dates under the
Reference Assets to but excluding the Issue Date.

Class B Note: 100% plus accrued interest at the blended interest rate
applicable to the Reference Assets (less the accrued interest at the fixed
rate applicable to the Class A Notes) from and including the most recent
interest payment dates thereunder to but excluding the Issue Date.

Class A Notes: U.S.$82,812,295

An amount determined on any date as follows:
(i) the Initial Principal Balance of the Class A Notes; minus

(i) the aggregate amount of reductions in connection with Principal
Reduction Amounts applied to the Principal Balance of the Class A
Notes on or before such date of determination.

In respect of each Principal Reduction Date for the Class A Notes, an
amount equal to U.S.$2,957,582 (pari passu with the Principal
Reduction Amount of the Class B Notes), subject to the Issuer having
actually received sufficient payments from the Reference Assets
Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets.

Class B Notes: U.S.$1,190,997,673
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Principal Balance of Class B NOteS ............cccevevnnnen,

Principal Reduction Amount of Class B Notes........

Principal Payments

Principal Reduction Date...........cccooeveniiinieninnnne

Business Day

Business Day CONVENLION.........ccccvvveieeverecriennns

Holdover

Interest:

Interest Payment Dates ..........ccceeveene

Interest Rate

An amount determined on any date as follows:
(i) the Initial Principal Balance of the Class B Notes; minus

(i) the aggregate amount of reductions in connection with Principal
Reduction Amounts applied to the Principal Balance of the Class B
Notes on or before such date of determination.

In respect of each Principal Reduction Date for the Class B Notes, an
amount equal to the U.S. dollar amount listed in Annex B (pari passu
with the Principal Reduction Amount of the Class A Notes), subject to
the Issuer having actually received sufficient payments from the
Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets.

Each Distribution Amount that corresponds to a payment of principal or
other amount (other than interest or a swap payment) under the
Reference Assets and that becomes a Principal Reduction Amount shall
be deemed to be a Principal Payment of the Class A Notes and/or the
Class B Notes, as the case may be, hereunder.

Each Distribution Amount Payment Date on which the Issuer actually
receives from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference
Assets sufficient funds to pay a Principal Reduction Amount in respect
of Class A Notes and Class B Notes. The schedule of anticipated
Principal Reduction Dates for both Classes of Notes is set out in Annex
B hereto.

Any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is a day on which
commercial banks are generally open for business in New York and
London.

Modified Following Business Day Convention. “Modified Following
Business Day Convention” means that the relevant date shall be
postponed to the first following day that is a Business Day provided that
in the event that the day on which any payment is due is not a Business
Day but is a day of the month after which no further Business Day
occurs in such month, then the due date thereof shall be the immediately
preceding Business Day.

Not Applicable.

Each Distribution Amount Payment Date on which a payment
corresponding to a payment of interest or a swap payment on the
Reference Assets is made, which dates are expected to be those dates
set out under the heading “Distribution Amount Payment Dates” in
Annex B (each, a “Scheduled Interest Payment Date”), in each case
subject to adjustment in accordance with the Modified Following
Business Day Convention, with no adjustment to the calculation periods
(each such date, an “Interest Payment Date”).

The interest rate on the Class A Notes is 4.00% per annum.

The interest rate on the Class B Notes for all interest periods other than
the final interest period is 4.2744% per annum, which is a blended rate
corresponding to the expected interest rates for the Reference Assets after
payment of interest on the Class A Notes and taking into account the
Principal Reduction Amounts. The interest rate on the Class B Notes for
the final interest period will be zero.

All computations of interest shall be made on the basis of a 360-day year
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Interest Payment Amount..................

Interest on

Interest Payments.....

Distribution Amount

Overdue Amounts............

and the actual number of days elapsed.

Payments of interest rank pari passu between Class A Notes and Class B
Notes. If there are insufficient payments from the Reference Assets
Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets to fund the interest payments in
full on a Distribution Amount Payment Date, the amounts available will
be applied in proportion to the amounts due and payable on such
Distribution Amount Payment Date on each Class of Notes. The
Calculation Agent will calculate the amounts due and payable on each
Class of Notes based on, in addition to other relevant information, the
applicable proportion payable in respect of such Distribution Amount
Payment Date to each of the Class A Notes and the Class B Notes and
will notify the Trustee in writing of the amounts due and payable on each
Class of Notes.

For the avoidance of doubt and notwithstanding anything to the contrary
herein, (i) no interest shall accrue on a Class of the Notes following the
Scheduled Maturity Date for such Class and (ii) other than as described
under “Interest on Overdue Amounts” below, no additional interest shall
accrue for the period an Interest Payment Date is extended beyond the
related Scheduled Interest Payment Date.

The Notes are pass-through Notes and therefore, in respect of each
Interest Payment Date, the Interest Payment Amount will be each Class’s
pro rata share of an amount equal to the corresponding amount of interest
actually received by the Issuer from the Reference Assets Issuer prior to
such Interest Payment Date under the terms of the Reference Assets.
However, as described further in “Conditions to Payment”, the Issuer
shall not be obliged to make any payment to Holders under the Notes
unless and until it has actually received a corresponding payment from
the Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets.
Payments will be made in accordance with the Priority of Payments.

Under the terms of the Reference Assets, if the Reference Assets Issuer
fails to pay any amount payable by it under the Reference Assets on its
due date, interest shall accrue on such overdue amount from the date
such amount was originally due up to the date of actual payment (both
before, on and after any judgment) at a rate which is two per cent.
higher than the non-defaulted interest rate thereunder. Any such
additional amounts of interest that are actually received by the Issuer
from the Reference Assets Issuer shall be paid pro rata to Holders of
each Class as additional amounts of interest on the next following
Distribution Amount Payment Date.

Each Distribution Amount hereunder corresponding to a payment of
interest or a swap payment under the Reference Assets shall be deemed
to be a payment of interest in respect of the Class A Notes and/or the
Class B Notes, as the case may be, hereunder.

Each Distribution Amount will be paid on the applicable Distribution
Amount Payment Date. For purposes hereof, “Distribution Amount”
means each payment or distribution of any kind (including of
principal, interest, swap payments, fees, penalties, rights or property
of any type) actually received by the Issuer from the Reference Assets
Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets and to be applied to payment
under the Indenture (and not already so applied). The Distribution
Amount shall include any payment or distribution of any kind with
respect to any distribution relating to the Reference Assets’ interest
period (if any) that commenced immediately prior to the Issue Date.
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Distribution Amount Payment Date.....................

Reference Assets Distr

ibution Date...........ccueeee..

Reference Assets Liquidation Distribution Date ..

Conditions to Payment

The Distribution Amounts will be paid in U.S. dollars.

There shall be no further Distribution Amounts payable or deliverable
in relation to any payment or distribution of any kind (including of
principal, interest, fees, penalties, rights or property of any type)
which is made in respect of the Reference Assets after the Maturity
Date.

The dates set out under “Distribution Amount Payment Dates” in
Annex B, provided that the funds are received in the Collection
Account prior to 11.00am New York time on the relevant Distribution
Amount Payment Date, failing which the Distribution Amount
Payment Date will be the next following Business Day. These dates
are the same as the Reference Assets Distribution Dates.

For purposes hereof, each Distribution Amount Payment Date
corresponding to a payment of interest or a swap payment on the
Reference Assets shall be deemed to be an Interest Payment Date, and
each Distribution Amount Payment Date corresponding to a payment
of principal or other amount (other than interest or swap payments) on
the Reference Assets shall be deemed to be a Principal Payment Date.

There shall be no further Distribution Amounts payable or deliverable
in relation to each payment or distribution of any kind (including of
principal, interest, fees, penalties, rights or property of any type)
which is made in respect of the Reference Assets occurring after the
Maturity Date.

Each date upon which the Issuer actually receives each payment of
interest or principal or any distribution of any kind (including of
interest, swap payments, fees, penalties, rights or property of any type)
from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets.

The expected Reference Assets Distribution Dates are set out in Annex
B.

Distributions will be paid into the Collection Account and pending
application to pay the Holders are expected to be invested in Permitted
Investments provided that the Trustee receives the written instruction of
100% of the Holders at least five Business days prior to the succeeding
Distribution Amount Payment Date. The Trustee will also be permitted
to use the distributions to satisfy the Issuer’s obligations under the
OOSL | Swaps and the OOSL Six Swaps in exchange for receipt of the
counterparty payments from OOSL thereunder.

Each date upon which the lIssuer actually receives any Liquidation
Proceeds Amount, early repayment, prepayment or termination
proceeds or other similar amounts in connection with the liquidation,
repayment or termination of any of the Charged Assets.

Subject to the occurrence of an Early Redemption Event or an Indenture
Event of Default, payments of the Distribution Amounts and the
Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount or liquidation
proceeds on the Notes shall be subject to the actual and timely receipt
and retention by the Issuer of the relevant corresponding amounts (net
of tax) due to it from the Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the
Reference Assets, or the Liquidation Proceeds Amount. The Issuer
shall not be obliged to make any payment to Holders under the Notes
unless and until it has actually received a corresponding payment from
the Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets or the
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Order of Seniority ....

Priority of Payments

Liquidation Proceeds Amount. Actual receipt by the Issuer after the
relevant due date for payment in respect of any payment under the
terms of the Reference Assets will result in a delay to the corresponding
Distribution Amount Payment Date and may cause the Maturity Date
for a Class of Notes to occur after the relevant Scheduled Maturity Date
of such Class.

None. Class A Notes rank pari passu with Class B Notes.

Payments will be made in accordance with the following Priority of
Payments:

On each Distribution Amount Payment Date, or other date of distribution,
payments by the Trustee will be made in the following amounts and in the
following order of priority:

(i) first, to the payment of (1) first, Administrative Expenses and (2)
second, Administrative Indemnities, up to the amounts provided for in the
Base Indenture;

(i) second, to each Class of Holders pari passu, an amount equal to:

(1) the amount of interest due and payable in respect of such Class of
Notes on such Payment Date; and

(2) the amount of any overdue interest in respect of such Class of Notes
on such Payment Date; and

(3) if such date is a Principal Payment Date, the Principal Balance of
such Class of Notes due and payable on such Principal Payment Date;
and

(iii) third, to the payment of any Administrative Expenses and
Administrative Indemnities not covered in clause (i) above without
limitation and in the same order; and

(iv) fourth, in respect of the final Principal Payment Date only, all
remaining amounts held by the Trustee in the Collection Account as of
such final Principal Payment Date to the Holders of the Notes outstanding
with a Principal Balance greater than zero immediately prior to the
application of clause (ii) above, and if there remained more than one
Class of Notes outstanding with a Principal Balance greater than zero
prior to such application, then to each Class of Holders pari passu; and

(v) finally, to the Reference Assets Issuer, an amount equal to all
amounts due and payable by the Issuer to the Reference Assets Issuer on
or prior to such Payment Date pursuant to the termination provisions of
the OOSL Swaps.

With respect to Notes within a particular Class, payments will be applied
among the Notes within such Class according to their respective Principal
Balances.
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Payments on or after the Maturity Date and upon

an Early Redemption Event:

On or after the Scheduled Maturity

Date.....coooeveeeiiiinnnns

Early Redemption

Unless an Early Redemption Event or an Indenture Event of Default
occurs on or prior to the Scheduled Maturity Date of the Notes, upon
determination by the Issuer that it has actually received payment in full
of all amounts due under the Reference Assets, the Notes remaining
outstanding will be redeemed in an amount (the “Redemption
Amount”) equal to the final payment or distribution of any kind
(including of principal, interest, swap payments, fees, penalties, rights
or property of any type) actually received by the Issuer from the
Reference Assets Issuer in respect of the Reference Assets. Payment of
the Redemption Amount will be made in accordance with the Priority of
Payments set out herein (and not as set out in the Registration
Document). The Redemption Amount will be paid on the Maturity
Date.

The Notes will be subject to early redemption by the Issuer following an
Early Redemption Event (as described below) (an “Early
Redemption”).

(1) If a Reference Assets Default occurs, the Calculation Agent will, as
soon as it becomes aware of such Reference Assets Default, notify the
Trustee and the Issuer in writing of such Reference Assets Default,
upon receipt of which the Trustee will, within two Business Days, (i)
notify the Reference Assets Issuer of the occurrence of such event and
(ii) request the Reference Assets Issuer to (a) repay the Reference
Assets comprising the OOSL | Credit Agreement and the OOSL Six
Credit Agreement in full as soon as practically possible but in no event
later than five (5) calendar days following the date of such request (the
“Cure Period”) and (b) to pay any termination payment to be paid by
the Reference Assets Issuer on the OOSL Swaps as if they were to be
terminated at the end of the Cure Period, except if the Reference Assets
Default was caused by the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Reference
Assets Issuer, in which case no Cure Period will apply and the
provisions of this paragraph (I) will not apply to such Reference Assets
Default.

If (@) the Reference Assets Issuer repays, either partially or fully, the
Reference Assets within the Cure Period or (b) a Reference Assets Early
Redemption Event occurs, the corresponding redemption amount of the
Notes will be an amount (the “Early Redemption Amount”)
proportionally equal to (i) the prepayment or repayment proceeds of the
OOSL | Credit Agreement and the OOSL Six Credit Agreement plus (if
an amount is owed from the Reference Assets Issuer to the Issuer) or
minus (if an amount is owed from the Issuer to the Reference Assets
Issuer) the early termination payment from the OOSL | Swaps and the
OOSL Six Swaps, minus (ii) an amount equal to all claims which rank
in priority to the claims of the Holders in accordance with the Priority
of Payments. The Calculation Agent will calculate the amounts due and
payable on each Class of Notes based on, in addition to other relevant
information, the applicable proportion payable in respect of such
Distribution Amount Payment Date to each of the Class A Notes and the
Class B Notes and will notify the Trustee in writing of the amounts due
and payable on each Class of Notes.

Subject to the Settlement Conditions being satisfied at any time within
90 calendar days (the “Physical Delivery Period”) of the occurrence of
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the relevant Early Redemption Event, a Holder is required to take
delivery (“Physical Delivery”) of its entitlement to the Reference
Assets that have not been paid in cash. If the Calculation Agent notifies
the Trustee in writing that the Settlement Conditions are satisfied within
the Physical Delivery Period, the Trustee will, within five Business
Days of receipt of such notification, direct the Issuer to effect a transfer
or novation to such Holder of its entitlement to the Reference Assets
into the name that such Holder directs. A Holder’s entitlement to the
Reference Assets at any date will be in a principal amount that is equal
to the greater of (i) zero and (ii) such Holder’s pro rata share of the
amount equal to (x) the principal amount of the Reference Assets that
have not been paid in cash prior to such date minus (y) an amount equal
to all claims which rank in priority to the claims of such Holder in
accordance with the Priority of Payments.

If the Settlement Conditions are not satisfied within the Physical
Delivery Period, then the Calculation Agent will notify the Trustee
thereof, upon which the Trustee will, within five Business Days, direct
the Collateral Disposal Agent to carry out the procedures specified
under (I1) below.

(1) If (i) following the end of the Cure Period, the Reference Assets are
not repaid in full or terminated and settled in full by the Reference
Assets Issuer, (ii) a Reference Assets Default caused by the insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Reference Assets Issuer has occurred, (iii) a
Reference Assets Early Redemption has occurred but not all Reference
Assets are repaid in full or terminated and settled by the Reference
Assets Issuer, (iv) a Tax Redemption Event has occurred or (v) an
Indenture Event of Default (other than a Reference Assets Default) has
occurred, then, subject to the Settlement Conditions being satisfied
within the Physical Delivery Period, a Holder is required to take
delivery of its entitlement to the Reference Assets that have not been
paid in cash. If the Calculation Agent notifies the Trustee in writing
that the Settlement Conditions are satisfied within the Physical Delivery
Period, the Trustee will, within five Business Days of such notification,
direct the Issuer to effect a transfer or novation to such Holder of its
entitlement to the Reference Assets into the name that such Holder
directs.

If the Settlement Conditions are not satisfied within the Physical
Delivery Period, then the Calculation Agent will notify the Trustee
thereof, upon which the Trustee will, within five Business Days, direct
the Collateral Disposal Agent to:

(A) request firm bid quotations to purchase the aggregate amount of
outstanding Reference Assets (a “Bid Quote”) from, to the extent
reasonably practicable, three leading banks, dealers, brokers or any
other active market participants that deal in obligations of the type as
such Reference Assets (as selected by the Collateral Disposal Agent in
its reasonable discretion) (each such dealer or entity, which may or may
not include an affiliate of such dealer, a “Reference Dealer”), in respect
of the purchase of some or all of the Reference Assets from the Issuer;
or

(B) arrange for the sale of the outstanding Reference Assets to the
Reference Dealer which provided the highest quotation(s) and transfer
to the Collection Account an amount equal to the Liquidation Proceeds
Amount received by the Collateral Disposal Agent.
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Liquidation of Charged Assets Due

to an Early Redemption Event

The “Liquidation Proceeds Amount” will be an amount in U.S.
dollars equal to the greater of (i) zero and (ii) (x) the liquidation
proceeds of the Reference Assets determined in accordance with the
provisions described below under “Liquidation of Charged Assets Due
to an Early Redemption Event”, minus (y) an amount equal to all claims
which rank in priority to the claims of the Holders of each Class in
accordance with the Priority of Payments.

In the event the Reference Assets are not redeemed by the Reference
Assets Issuer or Physical Delivery is not effected in accordance with the
foregoing procedures set out under “Early Redemption”, upon receiving
notification from the Calculation Agent or the Trustee of an Early
Redemption Event or an Indenture Event of Default, the Holders will be
required to timely deliver Disposal Directions to the Trustee. The
Trustee’s appointment of the Collateral Disposal Agent shall be subject
to (i) timely receipt of the Disposal Directions, (ii) the Trustee’s prior
receipt of adequate assurance (as determined by the Trustee) that costs
and expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with its appointment
of the Collateral Disposal Agent shall be paid by the Holders and (iii)
the satisfaction by the Collateral Disposal Agent of all required legal
and compliance requirements of the Trustee, including without
limitation any “know your customer” regulations under any applicable
law (“KYC Requirements”). Upon receipt of such Disposal Directions,
adequate assurance and satisfaction of the Trustee’s KYC
Requirements, the Trustee shall, within two Business Days and pursuant
to a power of attorney substantially in the form of Annex E hereto (but
subject to adjustment to its terms to comply with then-current
documentation requirements of the Trustee in connection with the
granting of any power of attorney), appoint the Collateral Disposal
Agent to request firm Bid Quotes to purchase the aggregate amount of
outstanding Reference Assets from, to the extent reasonably practicable,
three Reference Dealers that deal in obligations of the type as such
Reference Assets (as selected by the Collateral Disposal Agent in its
reasonable discretion) or any other entity selected by the Holder in the
Disposal Directions (each such Reference Dealer or entity, which may
or may not include an affiliate of such Reference Dealer, a
“Liquidation Reference Dealer”), in respect of the purchase of some
or all of the Reference Assets from the Issuer. Upon receipt by the
Collateral Disposal Agent of such quotations (to the extent provided),
the Collateral Disposal Agent shall, in accordance with the terms of the
power of attorney granted to it by the Trustee, arrange for the sale of the
Reference Assets to the Liquidation Reference Dealer which provided
the highest quotation(s). If no Collateral Disposal Agent is specified by
the Holders in the Disposal Directions and an unsolicited firm bid
quotation to purchase the outstanding Reference Assets (an
“Unsolicited Bid”) is received by the Trustee, the Trustee shall arrange
for the sale of the outstanding Reference Assets to the entity that
provided such Unsolicited Bid unless it has received prior objection to
such sale from the Holders. If the Reference Assets have not been sold
within nine (9) months from the date of the occurrence of an Early
Redemption Event or Indenture Event of Default, then the Liquidation
Proceeds Amount shall be deemed to be zero, the Notes shall be
cancelled by the Issuer and the Reference Assets shall be cancelled,
discharged or terminated by the Reference Assets Issuer.

The liquidation proceeds or acceleration proceeds (as the case may be)
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of the Reference Assets that are received by the Collateral Disposal
Agent shall be transferred by the Collateral Disposal Agent to the
Collection Account immediately upon receipt of such proceeds.

“Disposal Directions” means a written direction of at least 75% of the
Holders of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes
delivered to the Trustee by the Holders, which direction shall (a) specify
the Holders’ selection of a Collateral Disposal Agent which shall be (i)
a financial institution established in the United States or Brazil and duly
authorized to conduct its business by the relevant bank regulatory
authority and (ii) have a combined capital and surplus of at least U.S.$
250 million (or local currency equivalent), (b) specify the entity, if any,
selected by the Holders (with the consent of the Collateral Disposal
Agent) to provide firm bid quotations to purchase the outstanding
Reference Assets and (c) set out the CDA Terms.

None of the Calculation Agent, the Trustee, the Issuer or any Agent
shall have any responsibility or liability in respect of the entity selected
by the Holders as Collateral Disposal Agent, the failure of the Holders
to duly or timely select such Collateral Disposal Agent or the failure of
the Holders to provide the Trustee with adequate assurance that the
Trustee’s costs and expenses incurred in connection with appointing the
Collateral Disposal Agent shall be paid by such Holders.

By their acceptance of the Notes, each Holder thereby agrees and
acknowledges that:

(i) neither the Issuer nor the Trustee shall have any responsibility
whatsoever to monitor or supervise the Collateral Disposal Agent;

(ii) neither the Issuer nor the Trustee shall be required to enter into any
document which requires it to compensate, reimburse or indemnify the
Collateral Disposal Agent in any manner whatsoever;

(iii) the Holders are responsible for the selection, compensation,
indemnification of the Collateral Disposal Agent and that they are
responsible for negotiating these terms with the Collateral Disposal
Agent and memorializing them in a contract with the Collateral
Disposal Agent (the “CDA Terms”), which contract shall be delivered
to the Trustee as part of the Disposal Directions;

(iv) such Holder waives any and all claims arising out of or relating in
any way to the actions of the Trustee, the Issuer and the Collateral
Disposal Agent in connection with their actions related to or arising out
of the sale, liquidation or other actions to realize proceeds from the
Reference Assets, including without limitation the adequacy of the bids
or the Liquidation Proceeds Amount;

(v) any and all of claims of such Holder under the Notes or the
Indenture will be satisfied in full by its receipt of its pro rata portion of
the liquidation proceeds, if any, from any sale, liquidation or
termination of the Reference Assets, minus an amount equal to all
claims which rank in priority to the claims of the Holders in accordance
with the Priority of Payments;

(vi) all fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee’s agents and counsel and
the Issuer’s agents and counsel in connection with any sale, liquidation,
termination or other actions to realize proceeds of the Reference Assets
(including liaising with the Collateral Disposal Agent) will be paid in
accordance with the Priority of Payments.
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Early Redemption Event..........c..........

Settlement Conditions

The occurrence of any of the following events, as determined by the
Calculation Agent, will constitute an Early Redemption Event:

(i) a Tax Redemption Event; or
(ii) a Reference Assets Default; or
(iii) a Reference Assets Early Redemption.

“Tax Redemption Event” shall have the meaning given to such term in
the Registration Document.

A “Reference Assets Default” means one of the following events: (i)
the acceleration of the outstanding Reference Assets under the terms of
the Reference Assets; (ii) the failure of the Reference Assets Issuer to
pay an installment of principal of, or any amount of interest due on (to
the extent that interest is not permitted to be deferred under the terms of
the Reference Assets), the related Reference Assets after the due date
thereof and after the expiration of any applicable grace period; (iii) the
occurrence of any event of default under such Reference Assets caused
by the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Reference Assets Issuer; or (iv)
any early termination of the Reference Assets either automatically in
accordance with its terms or where the Reference Assets Issuer is the
defaulting party or the affected party. A Reference Assets Default shall
be deemed to have occurred for all purposes notwithstanding the
rescission or annulment of such declaration of acceleration under such
Reference Assets or the subsequent payment (after such applicable
grace period) of such overdue principal or interest or the subsequent
performance of the Reference Assets Issuer’s obligations thereunder.

A “Reference Assets Early Redemption” occurs when the Reference
Assets are prepaid or terminated early pursuant to an early prepayment
or termination prior to their scheduled maturity date, unless such
Reference Assets amortize in accordance with their terms following the
occurrence of an early amortization event in respect of the Reference
Assets pursuant to the terms thereof and the holder of such Reference
Assets receives payment in full in respect of the principal amount of
outstanding Reference Assets being prepaid or terminated.

If an Early Redemption Event has occurred, the following conditions
(the “Settlement Conditions”) must be satisfied for Physical Delivery
to a Holder to occur:

(i) such Holder must have paid to (a) the Trustee its pro rata share of
any amounts due ranking in priority to payments to such Holder under
the Priority of Payments and (b) the Calculation Agent the costs
incurred by the Calculation Agent (including legal expenses) in
connection with its determination that the Settlement Conditions have
or have not been satisfied;

(ii) such Holder provides the Trustee with the details of the entity to
which it would like the Reference Assets to be transferred by
assignment and assumption or novation;

(iii) (a) such Holder directs any financial institution or custodian
through which the Holder has a beneficial interest in any Notes that are
held by Euroclear, Clearstream, or a common depositary for Euroclear
or Clearstream, as applicable, to send a message (which may be by
SWIFT or any other electronic messaging service) to Euroclear,
Clearstream, or such common depositary, disclosing (A) the ISIN
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number of such Notes, (B) the account number through which it holds
such Notes, (C) the name and contact details of the direct or indirect
Account Holder(s) (each a “Financial Intermediary”) through which it
holds such Notes, (D) the nominal amount of such Notes and the
currency in which such Notes are denominated and (E) the name, email
address and other contact details of such Holder, (b) such Holder
provides the Trustee with any information that may be requested or
required by the Trustee to effect settlement by Physical Delivery and (c)
such Holder provides a written undertaking to the Trustee and the Issuer
that it will, within five Business Days after Physical Delivery has taken
place, send to the Financial Intermediary (with a copy to the Trustee and
the Issuer) a duly signed notice in the form set out in Annex C,
addressed to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, as applicable (the “Clearing
System Notice”);

(iv) such Holder represents that it is legal under the laws of the
jurisdiction of incorporation of the entity which is to take Physical
Delivery for such entity to receive such Physical Delivery; and

(v) the Calculation Agent, on behalf of the Issuer, determines, in its sole
discretion (which may be exercised in reliance on one or more opinions
of counsel, provided that it shall not be liable for any action it takes or
omits to take in good faith in reliance on any such opinion of counsel),
that the Issuer can make such Physical Delivery legally in the manner in
which delivery of instruments similar to the Reference Assets are made,
and without limiting the Issuer’s ability to effect Physical Delivery to
other Holders.

The Calculation Agent will determine whether the Settlement
Conditions have been satisfied or not within the Physical Delivery
Period. If the Calculation Agent fails to make such determination then
the Reference Assets will be liquidated as provided for under the section
entitled “Liquidation of Charged Assets Due to an Early Redemption
Event”. Otherwise, payment by Physical Delivery shall be made as
provided for under the sections entitled “Payments on or after the
Maturity Date and upon an Early Redemption Event — On or after the
Maturity Date” and “Payments on or after the Maturity Date and upon
an Early Redemption Event — Early Redemption”; provided that if
Physical Delivery is not effected within thirty Business Days of the
Calculation Agent’s determination that the Settlement Conditions have
been satisfied, then the Reference Assets will be liquidated as provided
for under the section entitled “Liquidation of Charged Assets Due to an
Early Redemption Event”.

If the Calculation Agent, on behalf of the Issuer, fails to make the
determination provided for in clause (v) above within the Physical
Delivery Period, the Settlement Conditions shall be deemed not to be
satisfied.

Upon satisfaction of the Settlement Conditions and subject to the
procedures set out under “Early Redemption” above, the Issuer shall
effect Physical Delivery to the relevant Holder.

Each Holder may be required to make the representation and provide
the evidence detailed in clause (iii) above in respect of any date even if
it has previously made such representation or provided such evidence
on a prior date. Each Holder must deliver the Clearing System Notice
to the Financial Intermediary, with a copy to the Trustee and the Issuer,
instructing Euroclear and/or Clearstream to (a) in respect of any
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Reference Assets Purchase Price Avoidance........

Additional AMOUNTS.........ccovvvveeieiiiee e

Specified CUITENCY ..viveeeece e

Authorized Denominations and Minimum

Subscription.....
Ratings.............
Listing..............

MS Note Redemption .......cccceveveriereeninsnsieeiiennens

Governing Law

payment of an Early Redemption Amount or Liquidation Proceeds
Amount, cancel and reduce the outstanding principal amount of its
Notes, in an amount proportional to the principal amount of Reference
Assets in respect of which the Physical Delivery to it has taken place or
(b) in respect of any Interest Payment, make a record on the Notes that a
payment of interest (in respect of the applicable interest period) has
been made, in each case within five Business Days after Physical
Delivery has taken place.

The Trustee, the lIssuer, the Calculation Agent and the Collateral
Disposal Agent make no representations as to the current or future
legality of delivering the Reference Assets.

After the purchase of the Reference Assets by the Issuer, if and to the
extent amounts (the “Returned Amount”) due to the group of
international banks originally lenders thereunder are returned to and
actually received by the Issuer as a result of any part of the purchase
price being voided or rescinded, the Trustee shall, on behalf of and
pursuant to written notice from the lIssuer, (i) cause the Returned
Amount to be set aside and not applied in accordance with the Priority
of Payments and (ii) arrange for the payment of the Returned Amount
from the Collection Account to the account of the relevant original
lender, provided that such payment shall be made only to the extent that
the relevant Reference Assets corresponding to the Returned Amount
have not been returned to the relevant lender.

If the Issuer receives any amounts from the Reference Assets Issuer
under the terms of the Reference Assets other than amounts in respect
of interest or principal or swap payments (an “Additional Amount”)
then, to the extent that any such Additional Amount exceeds amounts
to be retained by the Issuer to reimburse it for any costs or expenses
incurred by it (and howsoever described) in connection with it being
the lender under or counterparty to the Reference Assets, any such
Additional Amount shall be applied in accordance with the Priority of
Payments and any amount due to Holders of the Notes shall be paid
two Business Days following the date on which the relevant
Additional Amount was actually received by the Issuer.

All payments of interest and principal under the Notes are payable in
U.S. dollars.

U.S.$1,000,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess thereof.

The Notes will not be rated upon issuance.

This Securities Note has been approved by the Central Bank as
competent authority under the Prospectus Directive. The Central Bank
only approves this Securities Note as meeting the requirements imposed
under Irish and EU law pursuant to the Prospectus Directive.
Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the Notes to
be admitted to the Official List and trading on the Regulated Market.

Not Applicable.

The Notes will be governed by the law of the State of New York.
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Transfer REStrCtIONS.......cccvvvvviveeeiieceee e

Limited Recourse

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities
Act and the Issuer will not be registered under the Investment Company
Act. The Notes will be offered only to non-U.S. persons in offshore
transactions in reliance and in accordance with Regulation S under the
Securities Act, in Authorized Denominations for any single beneficial
owner. Each purchaser of the Notes (whether by initial purchase or by
transfer) will be deemed to have made the representations and
agreements set forth in the Notice to Investors and the Transfer
Restrictions sections in the Registration Document.

Each Holder and beneficial owner of a Note will be deemed to
acknowledge and agree that (a) the Distributor may obtain or be in
possession of non-public information regarding the Reference Assets
Issuer which may not be made available to any Holder and (b) the
Distributor makes no representations with respect to the Reference
Assets Issuer or the accuracy or completeness of any information
regarding the foregoing.

The Notes are limited recourse obligations of the Issuer. The payment
of principal, interest and other amounts in respect of the Notes will be
made solely from amounts actually received in respect of the Charged
Assets in accordance with the Priority of Payments and not from the
assets relating to any other Series or from the general assets of the
Issuer. Holders of the Notes will not have any recourse to the general
assets of the Issuer or any assets forming part of the Charged Assets of
any other Series of Notes. Moreover, no recourse shall be had for the
payment of any amount owing in respect of the Notes or the Indenture
against any officer, director, employee, stockholder or incorporator of
the Issuer. The Charged Assets in respect of the Notes shall not be
available or used to meet liabilities to, and shall be absolutely protected
from, any creditors of the Issuer who are not Secured Parties in respect
of the Notes, and who accordingly shall not be entitled to recourse to
such Charged Assets. The fees and claims of, amongst others, the
Trustee and any agent or receiver shall have priority over the claims of
the Holders of the Notes in respect of the Charged Assets. The
obligations of the Issuer to pay any amounts due and payable in respect
of the Notes shall be limited to the proceeds available at such time to
make such payments in accordance with the Priority of Payments. If the
net proceeds of realization of the security constituted by the Indenture
upon enforcement thereof (as converted to U.S. dollars in accordance
with the terms hereof) are less than the aggregate amount payable in
such circumstances by the Issuer in respect of the Notes and to the other
Secured Parties (such negative amount being referred to herein as a
“shortfall™), all of the obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Notes
and its obligations to the other Secured Parties in such circumstances
will be limited to such net proceeds which shall be applied in
accordance with the Priority of Payments. In such circumstances the
Issuer will not be obligated to pay, and the other assets (if any) of the
Issuer will not be available for payment of, such shortfall which shall be
suffered by the Secured Parties in accordance with the Priority of
Payments (applied in reverse order), the rights of the Secured Parties to
receive any further amounts in respect of such obligations shall be
extinguished and shall not thereafter revive and none of the Holders or
the other Secured Parties may take any further action to recover such
amounts. The application of any proceeds by the Trustee in accordance
with the Priority of Payments shall be without any liability as to the
consequence of such action and without having regard to the effect
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to any Reference Assets..............

Voting and Noteholder Meetings

thereof on, or being required to account for such action to, any Secured
Party; provided that the Trustee will not be required to take any action
that would involve the Trustee in any liability or expense unless
previously indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction in its sole
discretion.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Base Listing
Particulars, the Collection Account shall be an account located in the
United States established with the Trustee, operated by the Trustee
through its London Branch.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Registration Document,
the Applicable Indenture will contain provisions for the indemnification
of the Trustee for any loss, liability or expense incurred without
negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith on its part arising out of or
in connection with the acceptance or administration of the trust, subject
to the provisions of the Standard Terms of Indenture pertaining to
limited recourse and non-petition. In addition, the Trustee has been
indemnified by Odebrecht Oleo e Gas S.A., the parent company of the
Reference Assets Issuer, in relation to certain losses arising out of, in
relation to or in connection with a failure by the Reference Assets Issuer
to pay amounts falling due under the terms of the Reference Assets.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Registration Document,
if an event of default occurs and is continuing with respect to any
Reference Assets, the Trustee will notify each Holder of the Notes of
such occurrence only after receipt of written notice of such default.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Registration Document,
without the consent of 100% of the Holders of both Classes of Notes,
the Issuer may not (a) change the Scheduled Maturity Date for either
Class or any Payment Date for either Class, or reduce the Principal
Balance of any Note or the amount of interest payable thereon or
change the coin or currency in which any Note or interest thereon is
payable; (b) change the Priority of Payments for the application of
Collections; (c) impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of
any such payment on or after the date any such payment becomes due
and payable; (d) reduce the percentage of Principal Balance, whether of
a Class or Classes, the consent of the Holders of which is required for
the execution of any amendment or supplement to the Applicable
Indenture, or the consent of the Holders of which is required for any
waiver of compliance with provisions of the Applicable Indenture or for
any waiver of Indenture Events of Default under the Applicable
Indenture and their consequences provided for in the Applicable
Indenture; (e) change any obligation to redeem Notes or change any
redemption price or dates; (f) permit the creation of any lien ranking
prior to or on a parity with the lien of the Trustee for the benefit of, inter
alios, the Holders under the Applicable Indenture with respect to any
part of the Charged Assets, or except as otherwise permitted thereunder,
terminate the lien under the Applicable Indenture on any property at any
time subject thereto or deprive a Holder of the security afforded by such
liens; or (g) modify certain provisions of the Applicable Indenture
relating to amendments, control or limitation on suits by Holders. In
addition, without the written consent of at least 75% of the Holders of
both classes of Notes, the Issuer cannot, or cannot direct the Trustee to,
accelerate the OOSL Credit Agreements upon the occurrence of an
event of default thereunder (other than an event of default the
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occurrence of which leads to automatic acceleration).

FUINEr 1SSUBS......viveiveereeeerie e Not Applicable.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Securities Note must be read and construed in conjunction with the Registration Document, available at
http://www.ise.ie/debt_documents/Regdoc_ee84d052-22h6-4348-9ff0-ec8f0acfde12.PDF which is incorporated by reference
into, and forms part of, this Securities Note, save that any statement contained in any of the documents incorporated by
reference in, and forming part of, this Securities Note shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this
Securities Note to the extent that a statement contained herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether
expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified
or superseded, to constitute part of this Securities Note.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Notes are to be applied by the Issuer to acquire the Reference Assets.

27



THE CHARGED ASSETS

Annex A of this Securities Note provides information with respect to the Reference Assets Issuer as provided by the
Reference Assets Issuer. An investor in the Notes should review such information and obtain and evaluate such
other information concerning the Reference Assets Issuer as it would if it were investing directly in the Reference
Assets.

The information on the Reference Assets set out below is provided as to the form in which the Reference Assets are
expected to be on the Issue Date following the issue of the Notes and the purchase of the Reference Assets.

Reference ASSets ISSUET ........ccocvvvivceieeviiieeenne Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd.

OOSL was incorporated on September 14, 2001 under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. All of its shares are owned directly by Odebrecht Oleo e Gas S.A.
(“O0G”), which was incorporated on June 23, 2006 under the laws of Brazil
with registered number 08.091.102/0002-52. The controlling interest (81.4%)
in OOG is owned by Odebrecht S.A. The address of the registered office of
OOG is at Av. Pasteur, 154, 10° Floor, CEP 22.290-040 Rio de Janeiro — RJ,
Brazil.

The address of the registered office of OOSL is Maples Corporate Services
Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands.

The corporate purpose of OOSL is unrestricted and OOSL has full power and
authority to carry out any object not prohibited by the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

Reference Assets: OOSL | Credit Agreement, OOSL Six Credit Agreement and OOSL Swaps, as
summarized below.

OOSL I Credit Agreement Summary

Parties

BOITOWET ...ttt Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd.

Credit Agreement.........ccoeveneieneneneeieneenn Credit Agreement dated as of December 14, 2010, as amended, restated and
novated by a Deed of Amendment and Restatement, Release and Novation
dated on or around August 6, 2013 (the “OOSL | Credit Agreement”)

Administrative Agent.........c.ccooveriiniiiinnne The provisions relating to the Administrative Agent shall apply directly to the
sole Lender or be disapplied.

LENAEIS ...t EM Falcon Limited

Types and Amounts of Credit Facilities

CloSing Dates.......cccvvvrveeereeiereneseseeseseenens Tranche A Loans: December 14, 2010
Tranche B Loans: December 14, 2010

Original AMOUNtS .....cccovevvererere e, Tranche A Loans: U.S.$442,110,000

Tranche B Loans: U.S.$447,890,000

Tranche A Loans and the Tranche B Loans (the “Loans”) are fully drawn and
there are no outstanding commitments.

Outstanding AMOUNES .........ccccererererieeieneennn. Tranche A Loans: U.S.$433,267,800
Tranche B Loans: U.S.$442,291,375
PUIPOSE ..ot The proceeds of the Loans were primarily applied to finance the construction of
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Maturity Dates

Principal Repayments Schedule

Collateral .......ccoevvvieceiicie e

Certain Payment Provisions

Interest Rate.........ccocvvvveeeei e,

two drilling ships (ODN | and ODN I1).
Tranche A Loans: September 12, 2022
Tranche B Loans: August 28, 2022

The Loans are repayable in 20 installments, the first installment of which has
already been paid. The remaining installments are set out below. Each
installment is due on the last Business Day of each of March and September of
each year, with the second installment due on September 30, 2013, except for
the last installments, which are due on August 28, 2022 and September 12,
2022.

Remaining Tranche B
Principal Payments (U.S.$)

Remaining Tranche A
Principal Payments (U.S.$)

Installment Payment Installment Payment
2 12,158,025.00 2 12,093,030.00
3 14,368,575.00 3 14,556,425.00
4 16,137,015.00 4 16,124,040.00
5 18,789,675.00 5 18,811,380.00
6 18,789,675.00 6 18,811,380.00
7 21,221,280.00 7 21,498,720.00
8 21,663,390.00 8 21,498,720.00
9 22,547,610.00 9 22,394,500.00
10 22,989,720.00 10 22,394,500.00
11 24,537,105.00 11 23,738,170.00
12 24,537,105.00 12 24,186,060.00
13 26,305,545.00 13 25,753,675.00
14 26,305,545.00 14 25,753,675.00
15 27,852,930.00 15 27,321,290.00
16 28,073,985.00 16 27,545,235.00
17 29,621,370.00 17 29,112,850.00
18 29,621,370.00 18 29,336,795.00
19 31,389,810.00 19 30,904,410.00
20 16,358,070.00 20 30,456,520.00
Total 433,267,800.00 Total 442,291,375.00

None

Interest in respect of the outstanding principal amount of each Loan from the
date of Borrowing thereof until the maturity of such Loan (whether by
acceleration or otherwise) at a rate per annum which shall, during each Interest
Period applicable thereto, be equal to the sum of (i) the Eurodollar Rate (as
determined by the Administrative Agent) and (ii) the Applicable Margin.

“Eurodollar Rate” means, with respect to each Interest Period in respect of a
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Interest Periods ..........covcveveeiiieie e

Interest Payment Dates ..........cccocvvevivieiivennnenn
Default Rate ........cocevvvivece e,

Rate Basis

Optional Prepayments............ccocoevveneeieneennn.

Principal Covenants and Events of Default

Covenants

Loan, the rate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100
of 1%) appearing on Reuters Screen LIBORO1 Page (or any successor page) as
the London interbank offered rate for deposits in U.S. dollars at approximately
11:00 a.m. (London time) two (2) Business Days prior to the first day of such
Interest Period for a term comparable to such Interest Period. If for any reason
the rate specified on Reuters Screen LIBORO1 Page is not available, the term
“Eurodollar Rate” means, for any Loan for any Interest Period therefor, the rate
per annum determined by calculating the arithmetic mean (rounded upwards, if
necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%) of the offered rates, advised to the
Administrative Agent at approximately 11:00 a.m. (New York City time) two
(2) Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period for a term
comparable to such Interest Period, for deposits in Dollars by any three
reference banks active in U.S. dollars in the London interbank market selected
by the Administrative Agent, acting reasonably.

“Applicable Margin” means:
(@) up to, but excluding, August 28, 2016, 255 basis points per annum; and
(b) from and including August 28, 2016, 280 basis points per annum.

The initial Interest Period for any Loan shall commence on (and include) the
date of Borrowing of such Loan and end on (but not include) the next
succeeding Interest Payment Date. Each Interest Period occurring thereafter in
respect of such Loan shall commence on (and include) the last day of the
immediately preceding Interest Period and end on (but not include) the next
succeeding Interest Payment Date.

The last Business Day of March and September in each year.

Overdue principal and, to the extent permitted by law, overdue interest in
respect of each Loan and any other overdue amount payable by OOSL under
the OOSL | Credit Agreement shall bear interest at a rate which is equal to the
sum of (i) the Eurodollar Rate in effect from time to time with respect to the
Loans, (ii) the Applicable Margin, and (iii) two percent (2%) per annum.

All computations of interest under the OOSL | Credit Agreement shall be made
on the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days elapsed.

OOSL has the right to prepay the Loans, without premium or penalty, in whole
or in part at any time and from time to time at its discretion, on the following
terms and conditions: (i) OOSL shall give the Lender (with a copy to the
Trustee) at least five (5) Business Days’ prior written irrevocable notice of its
intent to prepay the Loans and the aggregate principal amount of the
prepayment; (ii) prepayment of a Loan may only be made on the last day of an
Interest Period applicable thereto, unless OOSL pays all amounts owing under
the OOSL I Credit Agreement as a result of prepaying such Loan on a day other
than the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto, (iii) such prepayment
shall be in an aggregate principal amount of at least U.S.$5,000,000 (or an
integral multiple of U.S.$1,000,000 in excess thereof); and (iv) such
prepayment shall (x) first be allocated pro rata between the Tranche A Loans
and the Tranche B Loans in proportion to their respective principal amounts
outstanding and (y) then be applied to reduce the scheduled Tranche A
principal payments and scheduled Tranche B principal payments in inverse
order of their due dates.

OOSL undertakes various covenants, including:

1. delivery of annual financial statements;
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10.
11.
12.

13.

14.

give written notice of occurrence of a default or event of default under
the OOSL | Credit Agreement

provide copies of certain material notices, demands or other
communications given or received by OOSL;

maintenance of existence and conduct of business;
compliance with laws;

payment of taxes;

maintain accounting and financial management systems;

obtain, maintain and comply with all necessary governmental
approvals;

maintain certain hedging agreements;
certain restrictions on transactions with its affiliates;
certain restrictions on transfers and issue of equity interests of OOSL;

requirement to take any action necessary to ensure that at all times the
Loans rank at least pari passu in priority with all other unsecured
obligations of the OOSL,;

requirement to provide certain assistance to the Lenders in complying
with “know your customer” procedures in cases where evidence or
documentation necessary to carry out such procedures is not already
available to the Lenders;

limited recourse and non-petition against the Issuer as Lender.

Events of Default........cccccooovvvviviivinciices Events of Default comprise:

1.

failure by OOSL to pay principal or interest when due unless payment
is made within three (3) Business Days of its due date;

default by the Borrower under any of the OOSL Six Credit Agreement
or the OOSL Swaps, or any event shall occur and continue in respect
of any of them the effect of which is to cause or permit the lenders or
counterparties to cause OOSL’s obligations to become due or prepaid
in full prior to their stated maturity or payment to be liquidated as a
result of the early termination thereof;

any representation, warranty or certificate made by or on behalf of
OOSL in the OOSL I Credit Agreement and the OOSL | Swaps shall
prove to have been false or misleading in any material respect when
made or deemed made, unless the circumstances giving rise to such
misrepresentation are capable of remedy and are remedied within 21
days of notice from the Lenders or after OOSL becomes aware of such
misrepresentation;

failure by OOSL to comply with or perform any other agreement or
covenant contained in the OOSL | Credit Agreement or the OOSL |
Swaps and such failure shall continue unremedied for 30 days after
OOSL becomes aware or should have become aware of such failure,
subject to a proviso permitting extension of the cure period in certain
circumstances;

OOSL shall admit in writing its inability to, or be generally unable to,
pay its debts as such debts become due;
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Certain Documentation Matters

Limited Recourse

6. insolvency-related events occur with respect to OOSL;

7. a final judgment for the payment of money in excess of
U.S.$10,000,000 against OOSL in the aggregate, shall be rendered by
one or more courts, administrative tribunals, or other bodies having
jurisdiction against OOSL, and is not discharged within sixty (60)
days;

8. OOSL shall fail to obtain, renew, maintain or comply with any
necessary governmental approval or any necessary governmental
approval shall be revoked, terminated, withdrawn, suspended,
modified or withheld or shall cease to be in full force and effect or any
proceeding is commenced to revoke, terminate, withdraw, suspend,
modify or withhold any necessary governmental approval and such
proceeding is not terminated within thirty (30) days; unless, in any
such case, such failure, revocation, termination, withdrawal,
suspension, modification, withholding or failure to be in full force and
effect could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect (as defined in the OOSL I Credit Agreement); or

9. 0OOG ceases to own, directly or indirectly, 51% of the share capital of
OOSL.

If an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default specified in 5 above)
occurs and is continuing, the Trustee shall direct the Issuer as Lender to
accelerate all of the obligations of OOSL under the OOSL | Credit Agreement
upon the written instruction of at least 75% of the Holders of each Class of
Notes to the Trustee. If an Event of Default specified in 5 above, occurs, all
obligations of OOSL under the OOSL | Credit Agreement shall be
automatically accelerated.

Obligations of the Issuer as Lender to OOSL under the OOSL | Credit
Agreement are limited recourse obligations. Once the Issuer has purchased the
Loans under the OOSL | Credit Agreement, it will have no resources to make
any payments to OOSL as a Lender since its available resources are pledged in
favor of the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders. OOSL has agreed in the
OOSL | Credit Agreement that the obligation of the Lenders to make Loans
thereunder has been discharged in full, that no new Loans may be requested by
OOSL, that the obligation of the Issuer as Lender under the OOSL | Credit
Agreement excludes any kind of monetary obligation to OOSL, and that OOSL
has no recourse to the Issuer as Lender (or any of its officers, directors,
employees, stockholders or incorporators) for the payment of any kind of
monetary obligation and any such monetary obligation (if it arises) will be
extinguished and OOSL may not take any action to recover against the Issuer as
Lender in respect of any such monetary obligation. The Charged Assets in
respect of the Notes shall not be available or used to meet liabilities to, and
shall be absolutely protected from, any creditors of the Issuer who are not
Secured Parties in respect of the Notes, and who accordingly shall not be
entitled to recourse to such Charged Assets. OOSL as Borrower is not a
Secured Party in respect of the Notes. Therefore, the application of any
proceeds by the Trustee in accordance with the Priority of Payments shall be
without having regard to the effect thereof on, or being required to account for
such action to, OOSL as Borrower; provided that the Trustee will not be
required to take any action that would involve the Trustee in any liability or
expense unless previously indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction in its
sole discretion.
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Modification and Amendment..........cc.cccvnee. The Series Indenture provides that the Trustee will not approve or consent or
otherwise agree to any amendment or supplement to or other modification of
the OOSL | Credit Agreement (save for certain exceptions, including corrective
or clarifying amendments), without the consent of the Holders of at least 75%
of the Principal Balance of the Notes entitled to vote.

Transfers and Security ..........ccccocvveeriiininnnn A Lender may, with prior written notice to OOSL, assign any of its rights or
transfer any of its rights and obligations to one or more commercial banks or
other financial institutions or to a trust, fund, corporation, partnership or other
entity which is regularly engaged in, or has as one of its purposes, making,
purchasing or investing in loans, securities or other financial assets.

A Lender may, without obtaining consent from OOSL, at any time charge,
assign or otherwise create security in or over (whether by way of collateral or
otherwise) all or any of its rights under the OOSL | Credit Agreement to secure
obligations of that Lender.

GOVErNINg LaW ....ccvvveveieicse e English law

FOIUML . England

OOSL Six Credit Agreement Summary

Parties

BOITOWET ...ttt Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd.

Credit Agreement.........cccocevevenenceieniecne e Amended, Restated and Novated Credit Agreement dated June 26, 2012 as
further amended, restated and novated by a Deed of Amendment and
Restatement, Release and Novation dated on or around August 6, 2013 (the
“OO0SL Six Credit Agreement”)

Administrative Agent.........ccccoevvvvviviireierennen, The provisions relating to the Administrative Agent shall apply directly to the
sole Lender or be disapplied.

LENAEIS .ot EM Falcon Limited

Types and Amounts of Credit Facilities

CloSing Dates.......ccccverieieiineie e Tranche A Closing Date: August 16, 2007
Tranche B Closing Date: August 16, 2007

Original AMOUNTS ......cceeiiiiiiieicreeeie e, Tranche A Loans: U.S.$393,795,000

Tranche B Loans: U.S.$36,205,000

Both Tranche A Loans and Tranche B Loans (the “Loans™) are fully drawn and
there are no outstanding commitments.

Outstanding AMOUNLS .......ccccevrevrvreieeiereennns Tranche A Loans: U.S.$279,924,957
Tranche B Loans: U.S.$22,352,230

PUIPOSE ottt The proceeds of the Tranche A Loans and the Tranche B Loans were primarily
applied to finance the construction of a drilling ship (Norbe V1).

Maturity Dates .......coeovereieneienesereeeeeee e Tranche A Loans: April 28, 2017
Tranche B Loans: April 28, 2017

Principal Repayments Schedule...................... The Loans are repayable in 14 installments. The first six installments have

already been paid. The remaining installments are set out below. Each
installment is due on the last business day of each of April and October in
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Collateral ....

Certain Payment Provisions

Interest Rate

each year, with the seventh installment due on October 31, 2013.

Remaining Tranche A Remaining Tranche B
Principal Payments (U.S.$) Principal Payments (U.S.$)
Installment Payment Installment Payment
7 21,779,203 7 2,536,038
8 24,711,018 8 2,605,779
9 25,129,849 9 2,677,438
10 27,224,003 10 2,751,068
11 29,318,157 11 2,826,722
12 32,249,973 12 2,904,457
13 33,925,296 13 2,984,329
14 85,587,457 14 3,066,398
Total 279,924,957 Total 22,352,230

Interest in respect of the unpaid principal amount of each Loan from the date of
Borrowing thereof until the maturity of such Loan (whether by acceleration or
otherwise) at a rate per annum which shall, during each Interest Period
applicable thereto, be equal to the sum of (x) the Eurodollar Rate (as
determined by the Administrative Agent) for such Interest Period, and (y) the
Applicable Margin.

“Eurodollar Rate” means, for any Loan for any Interest Period therefor, the
rate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%)
appearing on Reuters Screen LIBOR 01 Page (or any successor page) as the
London interbank offered rate for deposits in U.S. dollars at approximately
11:00 a.m. (London time) two (2) Business Days prior to the first day of such
Interest Period for a term comparable to such Interest Period; provided,
however, if more than one rate is specified on Reuters Screen LIBOR 01 Page,
the applicable rate shall be the arithmetic mean of all such rates (rounded
upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%). If for any reason the rate
specified on Reuters Screen LIBOR 01 Page is not available, the term
“Eurodollar Rate” shall mean, for any Loan for any Interest Period therefor, the
rate per annum determined by calculating the arithmetic mean of the offered
rates (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%), advised to the
Lenders at approximately 11:00 a.m. (London time) two (2) Business Days
prior to the first day of such Interest Period for a term comparable to such
Interest Period, for deposits in U.S. dollars by any three major banks active in
U.S. dollars in the London interbank market selected by the Lenders.

“Applicable Margin” means:
(a) as to the Tranche A Loans:

(i) for the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and ending
on (but excluding) 16 August 2014, 200.5 basis points per annum; and

(i) for the period commencing on (and including) 16 August 2014, 212.5
basis points per annum.
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INterest PEriods .......ccccvveveeeiiicveec e

Interest Payment Dates .........cccoovveeieniieneennee
Default Rate.........cccooveeveiiiceese e,

Rate Basis

Optional Prepayments..........c.ccocovvereeieneennn.

Principal Covenants and Events of Default

Covenants

(b) as to the Tranche B Loans, 25 basis points per annum.

The initial Interest Period for any Loan shall commence on (and include) the
date of Borrowing of such Loan and end on (but not include) the next
succeeding Interest Payment Date. Each Interest Period occurring thereafter in
respect of such Loan shall commence on (and include) the last day of the
immediately preceding Interest Period and end on (but not include) the next
succeeding Interest Payment Date.

The last Business Day of April and October in each year.

Overdue principal and, to the extent permitted by Law, overdue interest in
respect of each Loan and any other overdue amount payable by OOSL under
the OOSL Six Credit Agreement shall bear interest at a rate which is equal to
the sum of (i) the Eurodollar Rate in effect from time to time with respect to the
Loans, (ii) the Applicable Margin, and (iii) two percent (2%) per annum, with
such interest to be payable on demand.

All computations of interest under the OOSL Six Credit Agreement shall be
made on the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days elapsed.

OOSL has the right to prepay the Loans, without premium or penalty, in whole
or in part at any time and from time to time on the following terms and
conditions: (i) OOSL shall give the Lender at least five (5) days’ prior written
notice of its intent to prepay the Loans and the aggregate principal amount of
the prepayment; (ii) prepayment of a Loan may only be made on the last day of
an Interest Period applicable thereto, unless OOSL pays all amounts owing
under the OOSL Six Credit Agreement as a result of prepaying such Loan on a
day other than the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto; (iii) such
prepayment shall be in an aggregate principal amount of at least
U.S.$5,000,000 (or an integral multiple of U.S.$1,000,000 in excess thereof);
and (iv) each prepayment of Loans shall (x) first be allocated pro rata between
the Tranche A Loans and the Tranche B Loans in proportion to their respective
principal amounts outstanding and (y) then be applied to reduce the scheduled
Tranche A principal payments and scheduled Tranche B principal payments in
inverse order of their due dates.

OOSL undertakes various covenants, including:
1. delivery of annual financial statements;

2. give written notice of occurrence of a default or event of default under
the OOSL Six Credit Agreement

3. provide copies of certain material notices, demands or other
communications given or received by OOSL;

maintenance of existence and conduct of business;
compliance with laws;
payment of taxes;

maintain accounting and financial management systems;

© N o g &

obtain, maintain and comply with all necessary governmental
approvals;

9. maintain hedging agreements;

10. certain restrictions on transactions with its affiliates;
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11.
12.

13.

14.

certain restrictions on transfers and issue of equity interests of OOSL;

requirement to take any action necessary to ensure that at all times the
Loans rank at least pari passu in priority with all other unsecured
obligations of OOSL;

requirement to provide certain assistance to the Lenders in complying
with “know your customer” procedures in cases where evidence or
documentation necessary to carry out such procedures is not already
available to the Lenders;

limited recourse and non-petition against the Issuer as Lender.

Events of Default........ccccooovvivvviiviinciiices Events of Default comprise:

1.

failure by OOSL to pay principal or interest when due unless payment
is made within three (3) Business Days of its due date;

default by the Borrower under any of the OOSL | Credit Agreement or
the OOSL Swaps, or any event shall occur and continue in respect of
any of them the effect of which is to cause or permit the lenders or
counterparties to cause OOSL’s obligations to become due or prepaid
in full prior to their stated maturity or payment to be liquidated as a
result of the early termination thereof;

any representation, warranty or certificate made by or on behalf of
OOSL in the OOSL Six Credit Agreement and the OOSL Six Swaps
shall prove to have been false or misleading in any material respect
when made or deemed made, unless the circumstances giving rise to
such misrepresentation are capable of remedy and are remedied within
21 days of notice from the Lenders or after OOSL becomes aware of
such misrepresentation;

failure by OOSL to comply with or perform any other agreement or
covenant contained in the OOSL Six Credit Agreement or the OOSL
Six Swaps and such failure shall continue unremedied for 30 days after
OOSL becomes aware or should have become aware of such failure,
subject to a proviso permitting extension of the cure period in certain
circumstances;

OOSL shall admit in writing its inability to, or be generally unable to,
pay its debts as such debts become due;

insolvency-related events occur with respect to OOSL;

a final judgment for the payment of money in excess of
U.S.$10,000,000 against OOSL in the aggregate, shall be rendered by
one or more courts, administrative tribunals, or other bodies having
jurisdiction against OOSL, and is not discharged within sixty (60)
days;

OOSL shall fail to obtain, renew, maintain or comply with any
necessary governmental approval or any necessary governmental
approval shall be revoked, terminated, withdrawn, suspended,
modified or withheld or a proceeding is commenced to revoke,
terminate, withdraw, suspend, modify or withhold any necessary
governmental approval and such proceeding is not terminated within
thirty (30) days; unless such failure, revocation, termination,
withdrawal, suspension, modification, withholding or failure to be in
full force and effect could not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect (as defined in the OOSL Six Credit
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Certain Documentation Matters

Limited RECOUISE.......ccvuvvivieicreriirie e

Modification and Amendment.............ccoee.e...

Transfers and Security .........ccoccocveeviiniiennn

Governing Law

Agreement); or

9. 0OOG ceases to own, directly or indirectly, 51% of the share capital of
OOSL.

If an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default specified in 5 above)
occurs and is continuing, the Trustee shall direct the Issuer as Lender to
accelerate all of the obligations of OOSL under the OOSL Six Credit
Agreement upon the written instruction of at least 75% of the Holders of each
Class of Notes to the Trustee. If an Event of Default specified in 5 above,
occurs, all obligations of OOSL under the OOSL Six Credit Agreement shall be
automatically accelerated.

Obligations of the Issuer as Lender to OOSL under the OOSL Six Credit
Agreement are limited recourse obligations. Once the Issuer has purchased the
Loans under the OOSL Six Credit Agreement, it will have no resources to make
any payments to OOSL as a Lender since its available resources are pledged in
favor of the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders. OOSL has agreed in the
OOSL Six Credit Agreement that the obligation of the Lenders to make Loans
thereunder has been discharged in full, that no new Loans may be requested by
OOSL, that the obligation of the Issuer as Lender under the OOSL Six Credit
Agreement excludes any kind of monetary obligation to OOSL, and that OOSL
has no recourse to the Issuer as Lender (or any of its officers, directors,
employees, stockholders or incorporators) for the payment of any kind of
monetary obligation and any such monetary obligation (if it arises) will be
extinguished and OOSL may not take any action to recover against the Issuer as
Lender in respect of any such monetary obligation. The Charged Assets in
respect of the Notes shall not be available or used to meet liabilities to, and
shall be absolutely protected from, any creditors of the Issuer who are not
Secured Parties in respect of the Notes, and who accordingly shall not be
entitled to recourse to such Charged Assets. OOSL as Borrower is not a
Secured Party in respect of the Notes. Therefore, the application of any
proceeds by the Trustee in accordance with the Priority of Payments shall be
without having regard to the effect thereof on, or being required to account for
such action to, OOSL as Borrower; provided that the Trustee will not be
required to take any action that would involve the Trustee in any liability or
expense unless previously indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction in its
sole discretion.

The Series Indenture provides that the Trustee will not approve or consent or
otherwise agree to any amendment or supplement to or other modification of
the OOSL Six Credit Agreement (save for certain exceptions, including
corrective or clarifying amendments), without the consent of the Holders of at
least 75% of the Principal Balance of the Notes entitled to vote.

A Lender may, with prior written notice to OOSL, assign any of its rights or
transfer any of its rights and obligations to one or more commercial banks or
other financial institutions or to a trust, fund, corporation, partnership or other
entity which is regularly engaged in, or has as one of its purposes, making,
purchasing or investing in loans, securities or other financial assets.

A Lender may, without obtaining consent from OOSL, at any time charge,
assign or otherwise create security in or over (whether by way of collateral or
otherwise) all or any of its rights under the OOSL Six Credit Agreement to
secure obligations of that Lender.

English law
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Master AgQreement .......cccoccvveveeninenneesieesneen

Aggregate Notional Amount..........cc.cceevevenene.

Fixed RAte......ocovcviiiiiieiee e

Floating Rate Payer Payment Dates................

Fixed Rate Payer Payment Dates ...................

England

OOSL Swaps Summary

The “OOSL | Swaps” are 36 fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps under the
Master Agreement and schedule (as set forth below) and the relevant Swap
Confirmations, the materials terms of which are set forth below.

The “OO0OSL Six Swaps” are 8 fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps under the
Master Agreement and schedule (as set forth below) and the relevant Swap
Confirmations, the materials terms of which are set forth below.

On August 7, 2013, the Issuer and the Swap Counterparty entered into a master
agreement consisting of a 2002 ISDA Master Agreement (Multicurrency-Cross
Border) published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.
(www.isda.org) and a schedule thereto (the “Master Agreement”)
incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions.

OOSL | Swaps: U.S.$875,559,175

OOSL Six Swaps: U.S.$302,277,186

OOSL I Swaps: The weighted average rate is 3.082443%
OOSL Six Swaps: The weighted average rate is 4.33874%

OOSL I Swaps: 6 month LIBOR except with respect to the final interest period,
for which the floating rate is 5 month LIBOR or, if 5 month LIBOR is not
available, an interpolated rate based on 3 month LIBOR and 6 month LIBOR

OOSL Six Swaps: 6 month LIBOR
OOSL I Swaps: Actual/360 for both fixed rate and floating rate
OOSL Six Swaps: Actual/360 for both fixed rate and floating rate

For all OOSL Swaps, originally a group of international banks. Pursuant to
certain transfer and novation arrangements, the current Party A is the Issuer.

OOSL | Swaps: Originally ODN | GmbH. Pursuant to certain transfer and
novation arrangements, the current Party B is OOSL (the “Swap
Counterparty”).

OOSL Six Swaps: Originally Odebrecht Drilling Services LLC and then ODN
Six GmbH. Pursuant to certain transfer and novation arrangements, the current
Party B is the Swap Counterparty.

OOSL | Swaps: Semi-annually, on the last calendar day of each of March and
September, other than the final Floating Rate Payer Payment Date which shall
occur on the Termination Date, subject to adjustment in accordance with the
Modified Following Business Day Convention.

OOSL Six Swaps: Semi-annually, on the last calendar day of each of October
and April, to and including the Termination Date, subject to adjustment in
accordance with the Modified Following Business Day Convention.

OOSL | Swaps: Semi-annually, on the last calendar day of each of March and
September, other than the final Fixed Rate Payer Payment Date which shall
occur on the Termination Date, subject to adjustment in accordance with the
Modified Following Business Day Convention.

OOSL Six Swaps: Semi-annually, on the last calendar day of each of October
and April, to and including the Termination Date, subject to adjustment in
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Scheduled Termination Date .............cceeuvene.

General........cccoveeeiunnne

Swap Confirmations ...

Currency ......ccoeeeeeeene

Modification and Amendment............ccc.........

Transfers and Security

accordance with the Modified Following Business Day Convention.

OOSL | Swaps: March 31, 2022 as to two of the OOSL | Swaps, August 28,
2022 as to 17 of the OOSL Swaps, and September 12, 2022 as to 17 of the
OOSL Swaps, subject to (i) adjustment in accordance with the Modified
Following Business Day Convention and (ii) earlier termination in accordance
with their terms.

OOSL Six Swaps: for five of the OOSL Six Swaps, October 31, 2016, and for
the remaining three OOSL Six Swamps, April 28, 2017 subject to (i)
adjustment in accordance with the Modified Following Business Day
Convention and (ii) earlier termination in accordance with their terms.

Under the OOSL Swaps, the Issuer and the Swap Counterparty will each agree
to exchange certain payments on each payment date under the applicable OOSL
Swap. All payments to be made by the Issuer will be made by the Trustee in
accordance with the provisions of the Applicable Indenture. The amounts to be
exchanged by the parties on a payment date will be one floating amount,
calculated with reference to the notional principal amount of the applicable
OOSL Swap and an interest rate base, and one fixed amount, also calculated
with reference to the notional principal amount of the applicable OOSL Swap.
Under no circumstances will the Issuer or the Swap Counterparty be required to
gross up any payment on account of any applicable tax. The Issuer is not
considered to have any Affiliates for the purpose of the OOSL Swaps. OOSL’s
Affiliates are limited to those entities controlled, directly or indirectly, by it.

The terms of the OOSL Swaps are set out in Swap Confirmations between the
Issuer and the Swap Counterparty (the “Swap Confirmations”).

Under the Swap Confirmations, on each Fixed Rate Payer Payment Date, the
Swap Counterparty will be obligated to pay to the Issuer a fixed interest rate on
a notional amount equal to the aggregate outstanding principal balance of the
Loans under the OOSL Credit Agreements. On each Floating Rate Payer
Payment Date, the Issuer will be obligated to pay to the Swap Counterparty a
floating interest rate based on LIBOR on the same notional amount. The fixed
rate payments to the Issuer will form part of the basis (along with the
performance of the OOSL Credit Agreements) for determining the amount of
payments on the Notes.

The amount that the Issuer is obligated to pay to the Swap Counterparty will be
netted against the amount that the Swap Counterparty is obligated to pay to the
Issuer in respect of payments under each OOSL Swap. Only the net amount
payable in respect of each OOSL Swap will be due from the Issuer or the Swap
Counterparty, as applicable, and for receipt by the Issuer payable to the Trustee
for application in the Priority of Payments.

U.S. dollars

The Series Indenture provides that the Trustee will not approve or consent or
otherwise agree to any amendment or supplement to or other modification of
the OOSL Swaps (save for certain exceptions, including corrective or clarifying
amendments), without the consent of the Holders of at least 75% of the
Principal Balance of the Notes entitled to vote.

OOSL may not transfer its obligations under the OOSL Swaps without the
consent of the Issuer and the Trustee. The Issuer may create security over its
rights under the OOSL Swaps, and may transfer the OOSL Swaps to any person
after an Event of Default or Termination Event in which Party B is the
Defaulting Party or the Affected Party, as applicable, and otherwise to, and in
the same proportion as the transfer of loans, an assignee or transferee of the
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Limited Recourse

Calculation Agent.........cocoveviieiinenieenenn,

Governing Law ...

Jurisdiction..........

Reference Assets Default

Events of Default

loans under the OOSL Credit Agreements.

Obligations of the Issuer as Party A under the OOSL Swaps are limited
recourse obligations. Once the Issuer has purchased the OOSL Swaps, it will
have no resources to make any payments as Party A to OOSL, including swap
payments due by it on any payment date under the OOSL Swaps, since its
available resources are pledged in favor of the Trustee for the benefit of the
Holders. OOSL has agreed in the OOSL Swaps that it will not have any
recourse to any assets of the Issuer or any assets forming part of the Charged
Assets of the Notes or any other Series of Notes, including for swap payments
due by it on any payment date under the OOSL Swaps, although OOSL will be
able to net payments due to it from the Issuer against payments due from OOSL
on the same day. Moreover, OOSL has agreed in the OOSL Swaps that it will
not have recourse for the payment of any amount owing by the Issuer to OOSL
under the OOSL Swaps against any officer, director, employee, stockholder or
incorporator of the Issuer. The rights of OOSL to receive any unpaid amounts
in respect of such obligations shall be extinguished and shall not thereafter
revive and OOSL may not take any action to recover such amounts. The
Charged Assets in respect of the Notes shall not be available or used to meet
liabilities to, and shall be absolutely protected from, any creditors of the Issuer
who are not Secured Parties in respect of the Notes, and who accordingly shall
not be entitled to recourse to such Charged Assets. OOSL as Party B is a
Secured Party only in respect of any termination payment upon early
termination of the OOSL Swaps. The application of any proceeds by the
Trustee in accordance with the Priority of Payments shall be without any
liability as to the consequence of such action on OOSL and without having
regard to the effect thereof on, or being required to account for such action to,
OOSL; provided that the Trustee will not be required to take any action that
would involve the Trustee in any liability or expense unless previously
indemnified and/or secured to its satisfaction in its sole discretion.

Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc., subject to the provisions set out in the
OOSL Swaps.

English law
England

“Events of Default” under each OOSL Swap are limited to any of the
following:

1. the failure of the Issuer to pay any amount when due under such
OOSL Swap after giving effect to the applicable grace period, if any;

2. the failure of the Swap Counterparty to pay any amount when due
under such OOSL Swap after giving effect to the applicable grace
period, if any;

3. the failure of the Issuer to comply with or perform any agreement to be
complied with or performed under such OOSL Swap after giving
effect to the applicable grace period, if any;

4. the failure of the Swap Counterparty to comply with or perform any
agreement to be complied with or performed under such OOSL Swap
after giving effect to the applicable grace period, if any;

5. representation made by the Issuer or a Swap Counterparty proving to
have been incorrect or misleading in any material respect;

6. the occurrence of certain events of insolvency or bankruptcy of the
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Issuer, the Swap Counterparty; and

certain other standard events of default under the Master Agreement,
including “Merger without Assumption” (with respect to the Swap
Counterparty), as described in Sections 5(a)(iii) and 5(viii) of the
Master Agreement.

The following events of default are not Events of Default under the OOSL
Swaps with respect to the Issuer: “Default Under Specified Transaction", and
“Cross Default” as described in Sections 5(a)(ii), 5(a)(iv), 5(a)(v), and 5(a)(vi),
respectively, of the Master Agreement.

Termination EVENtS.......cccoevevevvvvsececeees “Termination Events” under each OOSL Swap consist of the following:

1.

6.

the adoption of any change in any applicable law, or the change in the
interpretation of any law by any court or governmental authority,
which causes it to become unlawful for the lIssuer or the Swap
Counterparty or both, as applicable (the “Affected Party” or
“Affected Parties”), to perform any obligation to make or receive a
payment pursuant to the OOSL Swaps;

actions taken by a taxing authority or brought by a court of competent
jurisdiction or a change in tax law, with the result that one of the
parties to such OOSL Swaps (an “Affected Party”) will probably be
required to (A) pay an additional amount to the other party as a result
of the imposition of certain withholding taxes or (B) receive a payment
from which an amount is deducted or withheld on account of the
imposition of such withholding tax, in each case under the OOSL
Swaps (a “Tax Event”);

a “Force Majeure Event” as such term is more particularly described
in Section 5(b)(ii) of the Master Agreement occurs;

a “Tax Event Upon Merger” as such term is more particularly
described in Section 5(b)(iv) of the Master Agreement occurs with
respect to the Swap Counterparty;

a “Credit Event Upon Merger” as described in 5(b)(v) of the Master
Agreement occurs with respect to the Swap Counterparty; and

the Additional Termination Events specified below occur.

Additional Termination Events............c.......... “Additional Termination Events” under each OOSL Swap consist of the
following:

1.

if an Indenture Event of Default in respect of the Notes occurs and the
Trustee gives the relevant notice to the Issuer (the “Affected Party”)
and the Collateral (as defined in such Indenture) is sold or liquidated;

if an Early Redemption Event in respect of the Notes occurs and the
Notes are to be redeemed and the Collateral (as defined in such
Indenture) is sold or liquidated provided that if the Notes are to be
redeemed in part only, the termination event shall be in respect of the
pro rata portion of the aggregate notional principal amount
corresponding to the pro rata portion of the Notes being redeemed,;

if a Class of the Notes is redeemed in whole prior to the Scheduled
Maturity Date of such Class (otherwise than as a result of an Indenture
Event of Default) or the outstanding principal balance of both Classes
of Notes becomes zero (the Issuer is the “Affected Party”);

Redemption of Reference Assets and/or Permitted Investments such
that cash flows will be insufficient to meet the Issuer’s (the “Affected
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Party”) obligations under such OOSL Swap; or

if either party is required to receive a payment from the other party
(the “Affected Party,” but if the Affected Party is Party A then either
party may designate an Early Termination Date) from which an
amount is required to be deducted or withheld because of Tax and no
transfer to an Affiliate is effected that avoids such result.
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10.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Issuer is not and has not been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings which may have or
have had during the 12 months preceding the date of this Securities Note a significant effect on the financial position
of the Issuer, nor so far as the Issuer is aware are any such proceedings pending or threatened.

There has been no material adverse change in the financial position of the Issuer since June 30, 2012.

Save as disclosed herein, there has been no significant change and no significant new matter has arisen since the
publication of the Registration Document.

Copies of the following documents in physical form will be available for inspection during usual business hours on
any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the registered office of the Issuer and the
Principal Paying Agent for so long as the Notes are outstanding:

Q) this Securities Note;

(i) the OOSL | Credit Agreement, the OOSL | Swaps, the OOSL Six Credit Agreement and the OOSL Six
Swaps, together comprising the Reference Assets;

(ili)  the Memorandum and Articles of Association of OOSL;

(iv)  the most recently published audited financial statements of OOSL as of and in respect of the periods ending
on December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,

(v) the Applicable Indenture;
(vi)  the Registration Document;
(vii)  the Memorandum and Acrticles of Association of the Issuer; and

(viii)  the most recently published audited financial statements of the Issuer in respect of the period ending on June
30, 2012.

On issue, the Notes will be represented by a Regulation S Global Note registered in the name of a nominee for a
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream. The Regulation S Global Note will be exchangeable in whole but
not in part for Definitive Notes in the limited circumstances specified in the Regulation S Global Note.

The Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream. The Common Code and the ISIN
for the Regulation S Global Notes are 094422515 and XS0944225159, respectively for Class A Notes and 094422523
and XS0944225233, respectively for Class B Notes.

The Issuer has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in Ireland (if any) in connection with the
issue and performance of the Notes. The issue of the Notes was authorised by resolutions of the Board of Directors
of the Issuer passed on or about August 2, 2013.

The Issuer does not intend to provide post issuance transaction information regarding the Notes and/or the
performance of any Charged Assets, other than information which it is required to provide to the Holders of the Notes
in accordance with the Conditions of the Notes.

Arthur Cox Listing Services Limited is acting solely in its capacity as listing agent for the Issuer in relation to the
Notes and is not itself seeking admission of the Notes to the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange or trading on
the Regulated Market for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive.

The total expenses incurred in connection with the issue of this Securities Note and the admission to the Official List
and trading on the Regulated Market of the Notes are approximately EUR3,250.
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ANNEX A
THE REFERENCE ASSETS ISSUER
The Reference Assets Issuer

Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd. (“OOSL”) is an exempted company incorporated in Cayman lIslands on March 10, 1982
(government incorporation number: 16859) whose registered office is at PO Box 309, Ugland House Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands, phone number + 55 21 3850-3000, and operates under the laws of Cayman Islands.

The Auditors of OOSL

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Auditores Independentes

CRC 2SP000160/0-5 “F” RJ

Av. Tancredo Neves 620, 30° e 34° andar, Ed. Empresarial Mundo Plaza, Caminho das Arvores
Salvador, BA, Brazil, 41820-020, Phone: + 55 71 3319-1900

Felipe Edmond Ayoub (Contador CRC 1SP187402/0-4 “S” RJ)

PwC are independent accountants in accordance with Brazilian applicable laws and regulations, including those established
by the “Conselho Federal de Contabilidade™ (Brazilian Federal Accountancy Council), the IBRACON and the “Comisséo de
Valores Mobiliario” (Brazilian Securities Commission) (the “CVM™).

Management

Name Address Function
Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil
Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil
Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil
Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor, Director and Chief Executive
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil Officer

Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil
Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil
Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil

Avenida Pasteur, No. 154, 12° floor,
Botafogo, Rio de Janeiro, RJ, Brazil

Herculano de Almeida Horta Barbosa Director and Officer

Jorge Luiz Uchoa Mitidieri Director and Officer

Jose Claudio Breviglieri Grossi Director and Officer

Roberto Prisco Paraiso Ramos

Carlos Alberto Brenner Director and Officer

Roberto Lopes Pontes Simdes Director and Officer

Guilherme Pacheco de Britto Director and Officer

Rogério Luis Murat Ibrahim Director and Officer

There are no potential conflicts of interest between any duties of any of the directors of OOSL to OOSL, and their private
interests and/or other duties.

Description of Principal Activities

OOSL is a 100% owned subsidiary of Odebrecht Oleo e Gas S.A. (*O0OG”), sharing the same activities. OOG is a sociedade
andnima incorporated in Brazil on June 23, 2006 (registered number 08.091.102/0002-52) whose registered office is at Av.
Pasteur, 154, 10° Floor, CEP 22.290-040 Rio de Janeiro — RJ, Brazil, telephone number: + 55 21 3850-3000, and operates
under the laws of Brazil. OOG is a leading Brazilian oilfield services company focused on providing integrated solutions to
its clients in the exploration, development and production of offshore oil and gas fields. OOG is part of the Odebrecht
Group, which has been active as a general service provider for the oil and gas industry for nearly 60 years. OOG’s operations
include the following services:

e  Offshore Drilling. Odebrecht has been operating in this segment since 1979. As of 2006, OOG has been focused
on deep- and ultra-deepwater drilling rig operations. Currently, OOG has seven ultra-deepwater rigs under operation
for Petrobras. Three of these rigs have been operating since the second half of 2011: Norbe VI, which began
operating in July 2011; Norbe VIII, which began operating in August 2011 and Norbe X, which began operating in
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November 2011. Three other rigs started operations in the second half of 2012: ODN Delba Il and ODN Il in
August 2012 and ODN 1 in September 2012. The last rig to begin operations was ODN Tay IV, which began
operating in March 2013. All of these rigs are chartered by Petrobras under seven- to ten-year contracts. OOG has
also entered into a partnership with Sete Brasil S.A. to build and operate five ultra-deepwater rigs for Petrobras
under fifteen-year charters for four drillships and one semi-submersible drilling platform. These rigs will be built in
Brazil and are expected to start operations between the second half of 2016 and the first half of 2020. As of March
31, 2013, the total portfolio of revenues already contracted by OOG and its subsidiaries represented by these
charters and services agreements, or backlog, amounted to U.S.$10.5 billion.

e Offshore Production Platforms. OOG charters and operates floating production, storage and offloading vessels, or
FPSOs, and other oil and gas production facilities to its clients, as well as manages the conversion of these units.
FPSOs are the preferred deepwater option in Brazil and Angola and use technology in which major oil companies
have expertise and operating experience. OOG, through its wholly-owned subsidiary OOSL, has a 50/50 joint
venture partnership with Maersk Company Ltd., or Maersk, in the North Sea Production Company, or NSPC, for the
operation of an FPSO. This NSPC joint venture has successfully operated this FPSO since 1997 and is currently
contracted through 2019. Odebrecht Oil & Gas also has a 50/50 joint venture partnership with Teekay Petrojarl
Production AS, or Teekay, in the FPSO Cidade de Itajai, or CDI, for the charter and operation of CDI. CDI began
operations in February 2013 in a nine year contract with Petrobras, with annual optional renewals by mutual
agreement between the parties for up to six years. As of March 13, 2013, the total backlog of these contracts
amounted to U.S.$474 million.

e Maodification and Maintenance. OOG engages in offshore maintenance, modification and operation services of
platforms, or MMO. These services include engineering, fabrication, installation, commissioning, start-up,
preventive and corrective maintenance, shutdown planning and execution and systems revamp. OOG currently
provides MMO services to Petrobras, through contracts to service certain of its production and drilling platforms in
the Campos Basin; to Shell and to Statoil/Maersk for two production platforms and one FPSO.

e Subsea. OOG is the first Brazilian company to effectively invest in the subsea market. Its focus within the subsea
area is on investments in pipe laying vessels for long-term charter and construction and installation of rigid and
flexible subsea pipelines. OOG’s subsea involvement started with two projects. The first project, concluded in the
second half of 2012 for a total amount of approximately U.S.$240 million, is an agreement to install, in partnership
with Subsea 7 (formerly known as Acergy), rigid pipeline for Petrobras’s Sul Norte Capixaba Project. The second
project is for the charter and operation of two PLSVs, in a 50/50 joint venture partnership with Technip S.A. These
two PLSVs are being built in South Korea by Daewoo Shipbuilding Marine Engineer, or DSME, and are expected to
start operations in October 2014 and April 2015.

The Odebrecht Group

Founded in 1944, the Odebrecht Group is one of Latin America’s largest privately-owned corporate groups, active across
various industries, including engineering and construction, petrochemicals, oil and gas, sugar and ethanol, environmental
engineering and real estate. In the 1950s and 1960s, the Odebrecht Group constructed numerous refineries, terminals and
pipelines. In the late 1970s, the Odebrecht Group operated over 12 rigs, of which five were owned by the Odebrecht Group,
and constructed offshore production platforms and was the first Brazilian private enterprise to drill offshore in Brazil. In the
1990s, the Odebrecht Group expanded its drilling operations to offshore deepwater, among others, in the Campos Basin and
established a presence in oil production in the North Sea, owning and operating an FPSO jointly with Maersk.

The Odebrecht Group has developed a strong relationship with Petrobras over the past 55 years. Petrobras has been one of
the most important clients of Construtora Norberto Odebrecht S.A., or CNO, the engineering and construction company of
the Odebrecht Group. In the late 1970s, Odebrecht S.A. was the first Brazilian private enterprise to drill an oil field offshore
the Brazilian coast, and thereafter, Petrobras became the primary client of its drilling business. In addition, Petrobras holds a
36.2% equity interest in Braskem S.A., or Braskem, the petrochemical company of the Odebrecht Group, and has been the
primary supplier of the main raw materials used by Braskem since its formation. OOG is committed to maintaining the
Odebrecht Group’s strong relationship with Petrobras by continuing to provide high quality integrated oilfield services.

Today, the Odebrecht Group is focused on the integrated oilfield services industry through OOG, which was created as a
separate company in 2006 and is pursuing promising opportunities primarily in Brazil and Angola. Since 2010, OOG has run
its business independently from the Odebrecht Group. The shareholders of OOG are Odebrecht S.A. with 81.4%, Temasek
Holdings, a company owned by the Singapore Government, with 13.6% and Gavea, a private fund managed by the former
president of Brazilian Central Bank, with 5.0%. These shareholders have entered into a Shareholders Agreement governing
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their relationship as shareholders of the Company and the corporate governance of OOG. All shareholders have
representatives in the board of directors and the minority shareholders have certain veto rights.

Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd.

OOSL is an entity 100% owned by OOG and does not have any dependence on any other entity in the group. OOSL is party
to a number of financings with international banks and is subject to various covenants and restrictions on change of control.

Litigation
OOSL is not or has not been engaged in or, so far as OOSL is aware, has pending or threatened, any governmental, legal or

arbitration proceedings which may have, or have had, a significant effect on the its financial position or profitability during
the 12 months preceding the date of this Securities Note.

Financial Statements

The Reference Assets Issuer’s accounts are prepared in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil, or Brazilian
GAAP, which are based on:

e the accounting standards issued by the Brazilian Institute of Independent Auditors (Instituto dos Auditores
Independentes do Brasil), or IBRACON, and the Brazilian Federal Accounting Council (Conselho Federal de
Contabilidade), or the CFC; and

e the accounting standards issued by the Brazilian Accounting Standards Committee (Comité de Pronunciamentos
Contabeis - CPC), or the CPC.

Brazilian accounting standards have changed in recent years to converge with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”). The accounting practices adopted in Brazil applicable to
the Reference Assets Issuer’s financial statements differ from IFRS only in relation to the valuation of investments in
subsidiaries and associates based on the equity accounting method, instead of cost or fair value in accordance with IFRS.

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Reference Assets Issuer and no significant change in the
financial or trading position of the Reference Assets Issuer since December 31, 2012. The Reference Assets Issuer’s
financial statements for the financial years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are set out on the following
pages. The Reference Assets Issuer’s financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2011 includes an other
matters paragraph stating that the comparative information as at, and for the period ended, December 31, 2010 has not been
audited.
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Odebrecht Oil Services Ltd.

Financial statements at
December 31, 2012
and independent auditor’s report
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Independent Auditor's Report

Ta i Bawrd off Thirenctars and Sharehalders
leheecht €8] Serviees Lid,

Wi hanve audited the accompanying finamdal statements of Cdebrecht O8] Serdees Lo, (Cthe Company ™,
which comprke T bakinee shiet 3 a1 December 31, 2012 and the statements of opemtions,
compirehensive ineame:, chamges in equity and cash lews for the vear thes ended, and o sammary of
significant accounting policies and other cxplonatory information,

Muomugement's respansibiliny
for the fimncial statements

Managemient is responsible for the preparation amd @i preseptation of the finandal siatements in
srcordanee with nocounting prectices adapéed in Brazil, and for such internal comirol 23 management
determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of fimancial statements Ehat are froc from meaedal
i ss At e s, whethar Jue 1 fraud or emor,

Auvelitor's responsibilily

Cur nsibality is ta express an opindon on these financial satements based an cur audit, We conducted
auir audit in gecordance with Bradlian and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with cthienl requiremenis and plan and perform the audit ta obitsin eassnabls asuranom
aboat whiether the financial stabements are free from material misstabament.

Am audit nvolves performicg procedures to obtain audit esidence abaut the ameanis amd disdosare in
the financiad statemests. The procedures selected depend oo the awditor's judgment, ingduding the

gememsrment of the rigks of malterial masstatemnent of the Anancal stitements, whether due bo frand or
EITE.

Ty miaking Lhose ik assesaieants, the awditos considers internal contood relevamt to the entity’s
preqarntion asd falr presentation of the financial strterments ls arder to desien audil procedures that are
appropriate in the circumsiapees, at oot for the pumpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal contral, An awdit alse includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting palicies
usied ol the reasanalbsbeness of acoouniing estimates made by mamagement, 1= well moalumtinge the
overall presentation of the financial stotensents.

W biliovs that the: awdif evidlence we hive chinined s sufficient and appreprate 1o provides o lagis for oer
it opinian.

FrimraterhmsCoopers, A Temcnedo Meves 82T, 50 ¢ 347, Bl Empresaru’ suedds Plasa, Camdaba s Areees,
Sovvador, B4, Hrosil dISMLO30, T (710 37193900, F: (700 3205 1957 wvew, e o hir
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Oclehrecht Oil Services Lid.

Opinion

In our opinsan, the financiol statements gzirly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Ocebrecht O8] Services Lid. s o1 Dece &1, 2002, and its fnancel performance and cash Nows for the
war then ended in pecordance with practices adopied in Brazil.

Salvadar, April a6, 2015
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Odebrecht o1l Services Ltd.

Stutements of operations
For the vears ended December 31
I Bhmwsserids of 15, dhl lnrs, wmndbess otherwise nedicsted

Revenne (Moke 23]
Costs of service rendered

iross profit (loss)

General and administrative expenses (Note 140
Share of profit of Investees (Rote 10]

rperating profit {loss)

Fimancial expenses
Financial income

Financinl resalt, met (MNote 150

Profit {lass) for the vear

Basic and dilhsted profit (loss) per thousamnd
shares attributshle to shareholders of the
Company (in US38) (Mote 16)

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2of 24
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48 27 130345
11,608 (3399
=1 g {15,888
389,15 (52.53)
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Statements of comprehensive income (loss)
For the years ended [kecember 31
1o Bvrmssarnds of U 52 thsllmrs

RONZ ZOul
Profit {lass) for the vear g1 UL ]

Exchange rate vaniation of foreign subsidianies 571 450
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year g quz )]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Odebrecht 01l Services Lid.

Statements of changes in equity
e e b a5, dall

Al Jammary 1. 2001
Lcwics i the Wi
Axchaige mile variation of Tors ga subsidiasis
Capital ricduetson [Hole £2)
Cajpital inepeeas | Nobe 12)
Translers of vsstnents in Nors VT asd T be 000 84 (Hole 12

Al Deornsber 51, 2014

Al Jamma ey i BOLZ
Prrofin o thes iy
Axchaige mile variation of Tors ga subsidiasis
Capinal raluston [Hole =)
Cajpital ineieicas | Mobe 12)
Edmare premminm o pitalicetion [Hote 12)
Transfers of investments in Norbe W 1o 0060 54 (Hsle 12)

Al Decrasber 31, 2012

Aftribaied o ibe caapasy’s shareholders

Hher

Share canmpre hensive Aeoemmn e led
Cmprital prensinmny Juso lusnssrs Tisial
FUTEd4 H00, 000 [=337) [60,500) EXE008
[#0.185) {149,588]
(45] [5]
(L85 5420 (146,342])
140,458 140,458
{313,808 Zi9,508)
B3.Bab 309,116 | 2.5582) [=2.4097) ZUEOTE
Sa.B96 05,106 (2.982) [=8.407) 5.0
Ei84i 51,841
gn Lp |
(7o) [roa) [7Er7]
AT 97830

58S 502 525)

[LEEER] [z E14)
#0358 (L1} L3, 656] 52,801

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4ofzg

Annex A-10




Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Statement of cash flows
For the vears ended [ecember 31
I sk of 15 dasllnrs

ZoiZ e
Casl Mows fram operaling sclivilies
Profii (bosa) for the year SLE41L { v, 188]
Bhii of profit of |nyvelns (88,604 (423 2]
Finasee resull, net HGIEL [
Lami ot Their Bdp vl e ol derivitive finahcsl iEStrimei s o, ZEE 1,593
48,859 {58.m34]
Cluissgass in ascits and Balsilities
Tiche geinls ricd valde [E87)
Advanis bo suppliers (1,368) {10
Critheer immels (Bg)h 4544
Relital parts= Czoi BE0) £ qoa
Trmde payalodes 4,663 2504
Onher acxrunis payalde B, 2o (ot )
Mol cash provided by (msed in) operating sclivities (50, 5656 11, 5032
Cash Mows from isvesting sclivilies
Cupiial incrmse in seboidErie (el {1339,665]
Liwuaines Third partiss loan e T ] [z7.a81])
Angieation of property, phnl sl g pies| &l
Anguation of intangile wesis =3
Drivilends nnasipl 4,897
Nt cash used in invesiing setivities | 25,086) 508 k]
Cash Mows from Minancing sctivilies
Finasssing il SRS (Tl
Furpments of barroings [zL420)
Pyt of inbenesis {14.623) e
Reepayrreenl of inlenesis on rebied partis 3,005
Capilnl incnmse 0, DR 3116
Nl cash provided by inascing aclivilies 0 Ol [E L LE
Detervase in cash and cash eguivalesis {36,684 94,1430
Cash and cash equivalrals al the beginsing of The year SHEZ STE 4o el
Cash and cazh equivaleais al the end of the year g BRG P A ]

The main nom cash tamsaction is disclosed in nobe 1
The necompamying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Odebrecht ol Services Ltd.

Maotes to the financial statements
nt December 31, 2oaz
1m Bunossruls of | 5. dollars, unbess obherw b inedicsted

(iperating context

ikdehrecht 06l Serviees Lid. COO0EL" or "Compamy™), was constituted on September 1y, 2001, in the
Caymam Islands. It was ﬂ'luirlnd 'I'r:r-l.'il-:‘f.l:m:tl'-f:lm & Cids S (500G on October 3, 3007, as the
result of the process of business ssgregation of the corpomte strochare of the Odebrecht Organimbon,
thirough the partial split-off of squity of Constrstom Rorbertn Odehrmcht 54 FCNOL

[ts activities comprises rendering services related to the extmaction of 0il and gas and investment o OO0
Gironp Comipanies that directly or indirectly operate in this segment.

Ais of June 26, 2002 the Compamy transferred the control of the investee Odebrecht Drilling Servioes LLC
(SOAE™) b O thmongh carpital reduction. This operation did not involwe any cash transactinn.

Um December 31, 312 the imeestments of the Company are represented by North Sea Production
Enrn;ﬂmfud?ﬂﬂ't']. a company acqoired om December 90, 2007 fiom enge UK Lid. FTUE"), ina
fransaction under commion eontrol. This entity is jointly controlled with Maersk Compamy Limited and
its main activity consists of the mana nt and operation of the Soating production, storage and
affloading system (FFS0) Morth Sea opemting in the Morth Sea

Thie issie of these nancial statements of (0SL was antharized by the Directors on Apeil 24, 2013

Summary of significant sceounting policies

The significant aceounting policies apphied in the prepamtion of these financial staternents are set out
hedow. Thess poficies have been consistently applied to the years presepted, unless othensise stated.
Basis of preparation

The finanrial statements have heen prepared om the historical cost hasis, exeept for ceriain financial
assets amd liabilities (inclnding derhative instromests ], which are measured at their fair wloe.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain oritical accounting estimabes. K also
requires the Company's management to exercise fis judgment in the of applying the Compamy's
aoronnting policies. - areas that mqjim;highrjuﬂpﬂﬂtﬁli:ﬂmnmmplu.uﬂl s
other areas requining significant estimates and assomptions forthe financial statements, are disclosed in
niobe 3

The Company has not presented the consolidated financial staterments, as required by CPC 36020
*Consalidated Financial Statements", Beramee it is a cnntrolled of Ddehrecht Oleo & (s 5.4
MO0, which presents romsalidated financial statements ina re with the accomnting practices
adopted in Brazil, which da not require the Compamy to prepare consolidated Snandal statements.

The finanrial statements have heen prepared in acoordance with the accounting practices adopbed n
Brazil including the standands issned by the Brazilinn Arcounting Pronouncements Committes (CPCL

Ineomie tax

The Compamy did not engage in oprmtions, in the periods presented, subject to income taxin the
Cayman Islands.

& of 2
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Odsbrecht onl Services Ltd.

Motes to the financial statements

nt December 31, 2002
1m Bvvsseuds of |5 dallars, anbess odherwbse inedicsted

Conversion of foreign currency

Funictional enrrency and presentation ourreney

[tems indnded in the Anandal statements of each of the Company entity is measured using the currenicy
of the primary sconomic enviroament in which the entity operates ('the fimctional correney®). The
financial statements are presented in U.S. dollar, which is the Company’s functional corrency, and also
the Compary’s presentation curmenicy.

Transnctions and kalances

Foreign curmency transactions are translated into the functional morrency nsing the exchange mtes
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or the dates of valmation where iterms are remeasured. Foreign
exrchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchanmge mtes of monetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign curmencies are
recngnized in the statement of opemtions.

Exchange nrinn.ﬂ?: non assets and linbilities are classhied as *Financial [ncome™ and “Financial
EApEses, Esperiively.

Subsidiaries with a different functional corrency

Thie resmlts amd fimancial position of the entities that bave a functional currency different from the
presentation morrency are translated imto the presentation cuemency, as follows:

Assets and Rahilities for each balanice shieet presented are translated at the dosing mte at the date of that
halance sheet, maintaining the inftial equity acenunts for the same converted valoes on the final balance
sheet of the previons period. The changes in equity other than income are converted at the rates on the
dates of these changes.

[nioomee and expenses of each statrment of operations are tamslated at average exchange mtes (nnless
this average is not A ressomathle approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaifing on the
tramsaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
fransactions].

All resulting exchange differences are recognized as the sspamte component *Otber comprehensive
income” in aquity.

The functional curmency adopted by MSPL is the pound steding. All others are U5, dollars.
Cash nnd eash equivalents

iCagh and cash eguoivalents comprise msh, bank deposits and other highly Bpeid short-ferm investments
with original matorities of op to 9o days, and for which the risk of change in value is insignifimnt.

7of g
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Motes to the finnncial statemients

nt December 31, 2oaz
1m Bhossrds of 1L 5. dollars, unless obherwlsr inedicsted

Prepaid expenses

Frepaid expenses represent prepayments, for which henefits or services will be received at a later dabe.
At December 30, 2012 and December 31, 2on1, this account represents the expenses with the insurance
pnli..:'snl:'drii'lin.g rigs (MNorbe VI, Norbe D, Tay W and ODN [and IT) amousting to U5% 72226 and
158 4,373, respectively, enotracted with third parties. Swch expenses are initially recorded s prepaid
expenses and expensed in the statement of opemtions over fime as the benef is received. Such costs are
changed to the sperific companies on a monthhy hasics.

Imvestments
Subsidiaries
Suhsidiaries are all entities (imdnding special purpnse entities] over which the Company has the poser
to determine the financial and cp-r:Erg ]:Ill'ﬂh:fﬂl, generally accompanying a sharebnl ding of more than

ane half of the voting rights. The existence and efect of possible vobing rights that are currently
exercisable or conwertihle are considered when assessing whether thie Compamy controls another entity.

Jointly-controlled entities

Jainthy=comtrolled entities are all thase entities in which the Company shares control over the economic
acthvaty, inclnding the unanimous agreement betwern the parties on strategic, Ainancial and operstional
deisions related to the activity.

Acrourting policies of these entities are changed, where necrssany, to ensure comsistenicy with the
policies adopted by the Company.

[nvestmienis in suhsidiaries and joingly=-controlled entities are acconnted for nsing the equity miethod.
Financial nssets
Classification

The Compary classifies its fimancial assets in the following mbegories: measored at fair value throwgh
proft or lass, loans and receivables and awmilable-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
wiiich the financial assets were aoquirsd. Management determines the dassification of Tts fimancial
assets at the mitial recognition. There are no financial assets classified as “amilable-for-sale® in the
perinds presenbed.

Fimancial nssets measured st fair value through profit or loss

Fimancial assets at @irvaloe through proft or loss are fimancial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this if acqgmired maindy for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categnrized as for trading, unless they are designated as hedges.

Gnfay
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Odebrecht 01l Services Lid.

Motes to the financial statements
nt December 31, 2002
1m Bonssrds of 15 dhollars, smless ohorwber nedicsted

Laans and receivahles

Loans and recefvables are monederivative financial assets with fined or determinable payments, nok
quoded in an sctive market. They are classfied as mment assets, mooept for those with maharty dates of
over 12 months after the alance sheet date (thess are dassified as non-mrrent assets). Loans and
receivahles of the Company inchede *Loans™ (Kote 81, *Other assets™ and “Cash and msh eqoivalents®
Hote ).

Avnilnhle-for-snle financinl nssets

Availahle-for-sale financial assets are non=derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any other categony. They are induded in non-coment assets unless management intends to
realize them within 12 months after the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, which is the date on
winch the Compary commits to porchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair
valur plus tansaction costs for all financial assets not carmied ot &ir valoe through profit or loss:
Fimanrial assets marmied at fair value throngh profit or loss are initially recogrized at fair wahoee, and
fransaction msts are expensed in the statement of cperations. Financial assets are derecogmized when
thie rights to receive msh flows from the imeestments fave expired or have been transferred, and the
iCompany has transfrrred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Avmilable-for-sle fimancial
aserts and fnancial assets at fair wiue throsgh profit or lnss are suhsequently carried at fairvaloe.
Loans amd receivables are cammied at amortized cost nsing the effective interest method. Gains or losses
related to the changes in the fair value of Gnandial assets measured at fair wlue throsgh profit or bnss are
recognized in the statement of opemtions as finandal inmome {(expense) as they orcur.

Compensation of fineneinl instruments

Fimancial assets and [iahilities are offset and the net amount reported in the halance sheet when there i
a legally enforceable right to offset the ized amoumts and there is an imtention toseftle onoa net
hass, or realze the asset and settle the labality simultaneossly.

Impairment of financial nssets — pssets mensured ot amortized cost

Thie Compary assesses at the end of sach reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
finamcial asset or a growp of financial assets is impaired. An asset or a group of fimancial assets is
impaired and impairment lnsses are incummed only if thene is ohjective evidence of impaimment as a resnlt
of one or more evenis comared after the initial recognition of the assets (an “event of loss™) and that
event [or evends) of koss has an impact in the foture estimated msh flows of the fimancial asset or group
of financial assets that can be estimated in a reliahle mammer.
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The criteria nsed by the Company's to identify chjsstive evidenors of an impairment loss inchade:
Hignificant financial difficulties of the isswer or debior
A breach of contract, ssch as default or delay in the paymest of interest or principal;

The Company, for economic or legal reasons related fothe financial diffimlt of the borrower, gramts to
the borrower a concrssion that 1t would not otherwise consider;

It is prohable that the borrower will enter hanknaptoy or other fimancial restrucharing:
‘The disappeamnes of an active market for the financial asset due to the financial diffionlties; or

(Ihsermable data indimting a measurable reduction in the estimated futhere cash Sows for 8 porifolio of
finandal azsets since initial recogmition, althongh the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual finandal assets in the portfolin, indeding:

s Abwerse changes in the payment situation of the bomowers in the portfolio;

s Lipeal or national eronomic conditions that correlate with the defamlts on payments of the assets
in the portfolin.

The amount of any impairment loss & measured & the difference bebwern the mmying amount of the
assets and the present value of the estimated fishore cash Sows (excluding Srbore credit losses that have
mot heen incurmed) discounted at the original interest rate of the finandal assets. The carmying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the kes is recngnized in the statement of cpematicns. For practical
reasons, the Company can meazare the impairment based on the fair value of an instmament using an
oheeramble market price.

If. in & subssgoent perind, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
ohjectively with an event that cenarred after the impairment was recognized (i.e.: an improvement in the
credit rating of the bormower), the reversal of this loss rerognized previously is credited to the satements
of operatinns.

Dertvative financial instruments

[nitially, derivatives ane repognized at fair walee on the date a dervative contract is eotered into, and are
subsequentty remeasured at &ir whee. Changes in the &ir wlee of any of these derivative instruments,
are recognized immediately in the statement of operations as a Gnancial expense finmme.

Up to December 30, 2012, 0SL has not adopted hedge accoumting as part of its acoonnting policies.
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Imparirment of non-financial assets

Aszets that bave am indefinite nseful life, for example goodwill, are not subjert to amortization and are
tested smemally for impairment. Assets that are subject to amartization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in drrnmstances indicate that the camying amonnt may oot be recovernble.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carmying amonni exceeds its
recovrable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair valoe less costs to sell and its
valoe in use. For the purpnses of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest lewels for wiich
thiere are separately identifinble cash flows (eash-genemting units - O Impaired non-fnancial
us:t:,_-:ﬂwd‘:un goodwill, are suhsequently reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
TEpOMIng catr

Trade neconnts paynble

Trade accounts payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that bave been acguired from
suppliers in the normal conrse of bosiness. Acconnis payable are dassified as corrent lahilities if
payment is doe in one year or less. 1f not, they are presented & non-marrent liahiihes

Trade accounts payables are recognized inthally at fair vahee and subsequently measured at amortized
cost msing the effective inferest method. In pmctice, they are nmally recognized at the amount of the

redated imvoioe
Fimancings
Financings are recogrized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs inourred. Financings are

subsequently mmisd at amartzed cost. difference between the prooreds [net of tramsaction costs)
amd the emient valee is recognized in the statement of cpemtions over the period of the fimancing

nsng the effective intrrest method.

Fers paid on the establishment of credit facilities are recognized as transaction mosts to the exbent that it
is prohahle that some or all of the fclity will be drawn upon. In this case, the fee is defermed ontil the
drmw down peoTs.

Financings are classified as corrent liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right o defer
settlement of the [ahility for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (i) the Company has a present obfigation or a constructive obligation as
a result of past events; (1) it is prohahle that a disbursement of resourmes will be necessany to settle the
ahligation; and (Ti) the amoumts man be measured reliakbly.

Capital

Thie commicn shames are dassified 'mm incremental costs directly attribartable to the issmance of
new shares are stated in equity as a inn of the proceeds, net of tees.
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Fevenue recognition

Reverme comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services inthe
onlinary course of the Company's adivities. Reverme is shown net of taxes, rebabes and discoumnts.

The I:l:-mpm].' recognizes revenne when the amount of revenoe can be reliably measored, when itis

1I'::-|.' * that fishare eccnomic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific oriteria have been met
each of the Company’s activities. The Company bases its estimates on bistorical resolts, taking imbo

consideration the type of costome, the type of tmnsaction and the spercifics of each armogement.

New standards, nmendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are nint vet effective

Thie eary adnption of these standards, has not been implermented in Bzl by the Bmanlinn Acconnting
Pronouncements Committes (CPC)L

. mﬂ{ﬁ:]'hmuﬁmnfﬁmmﬁalﬂdmrh'miﬁmmﬁn December, 3011 The main change
is a requirement for entities up items nied im “other comprehensie income® on the hasis of
uiﬁ!'rrtl'uy'rrill'rm::l.m to profit ar ar remain in equity. The amendment fo the standard &
applicable as from Janmary 1, 2. The Company expects that the adoption of this amendmest will cnly
give rise bo impacts on disclosure.

. CPC 19 (K], “Joint ventures * was issued in Bovwember, 2012 The standard provides fora more
realistic reflertion of joint amangements by foousing on the rights and obligations of the aTmngement,
rather tham its begal form. Thene are e aof joint armangements: (1) joint operations - arise whiene a
Jnint eperator has Aghts to the assets I.E;nhn:-m relating to the armangement and henee accounts for
its interest in assets, linbdlities, reverme and expenses; and (@) joint vertores = anse whene the joint
operator has rights to the net assets of the armngement and hence equity accounts for its interest. The

propartional consalidation method will no lomger be permitted in joint vestores. The standard is
applicable as from Jannary 1, 2oy bt it will not bave smy impact for the Comipany.

. P ab "Fairvalue t* muﬂrﬂmlﬁhﬂrﬂﬁnu-ﬂ?ﬂﬂuuﬂhnﬂpﬂr
consistency and rediee eomplexity by ]:rl'rl."nﬁ'lg a precise definttion of fair walee and a single soaree of
fair walue measurement. The standand is applicable as from Janwary 1, 2003 The impact of this sandard
will be: hiasically an addition to disclosmre.

Thiere are nio other CPC that are not yet effective that wonld he expected to have a material impact on the
Compamy.

Critieal necounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenience and other
factors, including expectations of firture events comsidered reasomable under the ciroumstances.

o
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Critieal aeoounting estimates and assamptions

Based on assomptions, the Compamy makes estimates concerming the firtnre. The resmling accounting
estimates will rarely be equal to the actoal results. The estimates and the assnmptions that re nta
significant risk of musing a material adpsment to the mmying an amoants of assets and liakalities
within that next finandial year ane addressed bellons.

Fair value of derivatives designated as hedge

The fair value of Anancial insnaments that are oot traded in an adive market is determined by using
valnation techmiques. The Company ses judgment to select among a wanety of methods and make
assumptions that ane maindy based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
The Compary has used discounted cash flows smalysis to ealmalate the fair value of the hedging
derivative.

The Compamy contracted a derivative instrument to hedge the working capital lnan (Note 12). The fair
valur of this instrument is recorded i aorordance with the acoounting policy deseribed in Note 2.6 and
thir asset and Rability positions are presemted in Mote 7.

Financial risk management
Financial risk factars

The Compamy's activities expose it to varions fnandal risks: mariost risk (imdoding carrency risk and
cash flow interest mte risk), credit rfisk and liguidity risk. The Company’s cverall sk t
program focuses on the anpredicabifity of finameial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
efferts on the Company’s finandal performance. The Compary nses derivative financal nstnaments to
hedge cash flow interest ate risk.

Kisk management is carmied cut by a ceniral treasury depariment (Grouep treasny) nnder policies
approved by the Board of Directons. Company treamary identifies, evaluates and hedges the Company
against possible financial rsks in dose coopemion H‘Eh the Company's opemting units. The Board
provides written princples foroverall risk management, as well as for specific areas, such as foreign
m&nnﬁle risk, interest mte risk, cresfit risk, wse of derwabve Gnancial nstroments ard non=derwitve
fimamcial instroments, and investment of surphs Bquadity.

i(m) Mnrket risk
Foreign exchange rate risk
The Compamy opemites imtemationally and is to foreign exchange mte risk resulting from

cumency exposires, related to pounds sterfing. The foreign exchange mte risk is the result of commercial
fistare contracts, recognized assets and liabilities and foreign investments.
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The associated risk arises from the ibility which aims at acting in the derivatives market only to
hedge contracted cash Sows, -r.'n:'lu.-:ﬂn.g amy posshility of sperulative transactions. The Company enters
into hedging opermtions to chamge floating rates to fixed rates on borrowings, with matched matorities,
amounts and types of rate, thus L‘]i.Tn.i.Tl.lﬁ:I'Ij_ mismnatch risks. The Company also enters into transactions
to avnid mismatches between revennes and costs in different carmencies within limits and safety margins
adopted in its cash flow forerast, minimidng echange mte impacts.

Cash flow interest rate risk
Thiis risk arises from the possihility that the Compa incur losses doe to Suchmations in inferest
1'-1-:.I:I'|n1:l-:ndI'u:-nmmmn-mﬁmuiw&trﬂvmﬁmmn}umﬁimﬂvmrhtﬂr

financing contracted for working mapital purposes is subject to floating interest ates, hedged by
derivative swap instroment into fixed imterest rate.

Sensttivity analysis
We present bedow a table with derivative financial |r|.':|:r||.rr|n|-.'|1L'.ltEl:|r1.'=l|:|=. desrrihi Ih-ri.iksl:l'lnt
may lead to material kasses for the Compamny in a probable seenanio (scemamio I, ng to

management's judgment. In addition, another ban scenarios are shown with a 'Eli.1.:1-rl5.|:|1'i.
deterioration in the risk factor identified (interest rate), (scenarios 1T and 1T, respectivedyl.

Instrement Iescripton Soenario |l Scenario Il Scenario 111
[Derivatives LIEOR drecrease {a052) (3.0570 (3.060)
Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a corporate hasis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative
fimancial instroments and deposits with Banks and other fimancial instifutions, as well & oredit
exposures tn mustomers. For banks and financial instibrtions, only independently mted parties with a
minimmum rating of *A' are acrepted. There are no defanlt events related to oor astomers and
management does not expect any lnss arising from default by these counterparties.

Lignuidity risk
Cazh flow forecasting is performed in the operati -r.'rrl:rhrs-:-fﬂm 11:|r.1.11ur|.n
finance department. This department rn:m:h:-r: m;;hm |.|:|-r|.|:t:|rrl|-.-:_|||.|.1'r:rru-.'|1L'.

to ensure it has sufficent cash to meet opeational nmt:.ﬁu&ﬁrmﬂgtabsmtnmmdnﬁmlhr
iCompany’s debt finamcng plans, covenant compliance, and compliance with intermal halanee sheet
ratios.
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The table below presents the Company’s non=-derivative financial labilities by maharity mege,
corresponding to the perind remaining at the balance sheet date nntil to the contractnal rn.1:|.1|.1'r|.'_|. The
derivatives finandal liahilities are inclnded in the analysis if their maturities are indispensabdes to an

nnderstanding of cash Sows. The amounts reported in the table are undiscounted contractnal cash
flows

Af December 31, 2002

Less than Hetween 1 Between = {ver

1 VE&T nnd 2 years  nnd 5 yenrs 5 VERTS

Principal of financings 4z 57 fraofy 4zby 25, IXKE

[nterests on financings e T gl 138 128
Trade accoumts payahle .50
Related parties i e
[nsumnce payable 8B

At December 31, o011

Less than Between 1 Between = Uryer

1 VEar sl 2 Vears nmd 5 yenrs 5 VEeArs

Principal of financ 21,429 42, 15 T SR

[ntm'rgn:m ﬁmrh:iE 15,01 |_'-|..Eq5ﬂ'r E:H:;H 4800
Trade accoumts payahle 2,45
Related parties 152,457
[nsnmnice payable 5SS

Caprital mamagement

The Compamy has and follows financial policies that provide the goidelines for management of risks and
thie consequent impacts on capital structure. Under these policies, the natore and general position of
financial nsks is regulardy monttoned and managed in order to evaluate resatts i:|1|§'=1h- financial impact
on cash flows. The main finandal instihstions with which (OGS L maintains opemtions are those
presentred inm Hode 11,

Under these policies, market risks are hedged when necessany to support eorpomte strategy.

Arcomiing to the risk management policy, derivative instroments for speculative parposes are
profibited.

Fair value estimates
The Company helirves that the balances of tmde accounts receivahble, after impairments and trade
aorounds payable, do not differ significantly from fair valoes. The fair values are estimated by

discoumting firture contractnal msh flow, using market interest mtes available for similar Snandal
instruments.
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For financial instruments designated as fair walwe throngh

t or loss, the Com

follonss CPC 20

Thie Company’s fimancial instroments ane not traded on actve markets and their tair valhee is cal enlated
nsing valation technigues. These valmation techriques preferentially nse information awmilable in the

market and minimize Company-specific estimative.
Financial instroments by category
Financial assets are classified as follosw:

Assels

Laans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4]
Acronints recebvable from customers
Loans (Mote )

Uither receivahiles (%)

Finnneinl essets measured at foir

vnlue through profit or lnss
Swmp derfvative instmaments (Mote 7)

i(*) prepayments are excleded from S0ther receimbles®
Financial linhilities are classified as follows:

Lishilities

irther financial lighilities
Firancings (Mot 11]

Trade payables

Related parties (Mote )
Imsumance payable

Cither linhilfities

Hedging derivatives
Swap derfvative instruments (Mobe 7]
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Cash and eash equivalents
December 31, December 31,
2012 =
Cazh and ham ks O] LA
Bank deposits un5.cly 2oL A4S
5o ARG 2 STS

At December 3u, 2012, bank deposits are represented by fixed and Soating rate operations in shor -
term time depostts with maturity of up o g days, denominated in S dollars, with Grst=rlass financial
instinations.

Svap derivative instroments
December 31, 206z ecember 31, 2011
Aszet Liability Aszet Linhility
Imterest rate swap 1,653 at =l nd 1,685 MLk

The derivativr fimancial instroments are intended to hedge the Company's opemtions against the risks of
flectuations in interest rates and are not nsed with the ohjective to generating finandal income, i.e. they
are not speoulative.

The remaining perind to the matarity of the hedged Thems is more than 12 months, and therefore the fair
value of these dervatives is classified as a non-morrent asset or liahilTty.

Interest Fate swap

The notional amount of the interest mte ;eap contmcts, as of December 31, 202, is U188 misn (Eon0
- 18§ 2=s 000

As of Deremiber 31, 2012, the fived Interest mbes variesd bebween 1ot and 1.60% (2011 - La0% and
L% ) and the variahle rates are hased on LIBOE The gains and losses related to these interest mte
swap coniracts are rerognized in the statement of operstions op to the full repayment of the hedged
Inans.
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Lisnnes

Refers to bnans grasted to Dedha GmbH, 8 minaority shareholder of ODS 1 GmbH ((ODN T and 117 and
(MO Tay IV GmbH ("ODN Tay IV7), indirect subsidiaries of (00, related to the apital contributions to
e made by Delha, whenever it does not bave sufficient financial resourees to pay the amounts doe.
These contracts bear interest of 13% and 14-5% pua, with payment due in 7 and 10 years, respertively.
The loams will be repaid with funds from dividend distrilbutions and Delba can also nse its own fimancial

resources for this purpose. Fthere is any remaining halance at the end of the ontract, 000 bas the
right to mse that amonnt to incresse fis shareholding. Delba’s shareholdings in QDN Tand 11 and 0D

Tay IV were given in guaranters of the loans. On December 31, ooz the balances amonnis to U588 zig 887
(LSS 88,840 - 2011}
Felnted parties

The balances of assets, liabilites and revenues with related parties are as follows:

Ay L Limlrilities Rrvrmers
ZilE Eiil BilE Eiil HFLE kLA
Dl Dvilling Cooperatie LA 20, T 4475 4.748 iy, 08 FLadd 15,625
North Sea Frodedion Comgsany FLre] (e bl ol [ i,
Tecksap Oulatinndt FLEV CV I Tal] 4. Bioa (W)
Tiets e CFversemos Corpara lon T, IR0 25675
OO0 [ CmbH 10, 356 4, R B Qe g, 40 L7450
OO Tay IV GeslvH 1,0 g1, 78 rg, 058 =r.£88
Celetsranchi Olase Dis 5.4 0000 Booog  S6031  5HG59
Odetorenhit Drilling Norbs WIII FEalr] 4.6 6,617 2T
Odetsrechit Drrilling MNorbs IX 3,057 iy ] Fr.80 BE 5
Oedetsrendit Dirilling MNiortss W1 B
Oedalsradit O & G DealvH ey =]
OOC-TEF FRSD JimbH & O KO .53
Cdetorenhi Servigra no exterior Lid 1,088
Basttinas Drilling B- VW iy
Odetorenhi Ol il Chick Ayl o Tl o Ol L2 Ta )
330,004 DaNdy  TROST  I5T 457 347,837 #0751
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Investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Diecemher g, December 31,
EOLE 2Kl
At the beginning of the year 280 142 Ao g
N orth Sea Production I;'.‘nr[mrl.ﬂm{':l
Exchange rate variation of foreign subsidiaries 571 [a5]
Eguity in the results 54K 1280
Dividenids paid [4.837]
(kdebrecht Drilling Services 11C
Capial increase 483 s 1Eh
Eguity in the results wa e 351,08
Transfer to QN Six (b= o)
(kdebrecht Drilling Norhe YITI(™ )
Capital increase 254
Transfer to CON Eight GmbH (157.467)
(kdebrecht Dirilling Morhe T3]
Capital increase 25,146
Transfer to G0N Mine GmbH {156,411
R VI
Eguity in the results L3
At the end of the year i, 742 280,142
Irterest in suhsidinries (%)
December Diecember
Coumitry 1, 2 31, 2001
Subsidiaries
Morth Sea Production Company (%] United Kingdom S 50
Oidebrecht Drillimg Services LLC (%] Unied States 1M
Cidebrecht Drilling Morhe VTTI=) Unted States 1
Cidebrecht Drilling Norhe D) Unted States pLial
QDM W TX Cayman Islands pLial

i*) dointly=comtrlled snbsidiary

(**) Odebrecht Drillimg Norbe Six GebH recefved from its indirect shareholder C0G the totality of the

shares issned by ODS.

(***) Entities wound up in @000, Their assets and BHabilities were transferred to QDN Eight and Nine

o of
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[nformation on the results of operations, assets and lahilities of the main direct investees of the
Company, privately-held comparies, are summarzed as foll ows:

recember 1, 2oz Assels Linhil ities Hevenues Praofit
WEP [ X 165,178 [ ) 110
ecember 41, 2011 Aszels Linhil ities Hevenies Prafit
MERC 44548 477 43,254 2560
DS B8, 383,637 S7a88 i
11 Financings
December December
Type L, L 7. BN
Itari BAA Working mpital 130,345 151,50
HBradesco Working mpital 7172 i, 120
Bamen do Brasil Working mpital 1R, 191 7L a1
Citibamk Working mpital G g
BTG Pachzal Working mpital U513, 254D
=G Working mpital AR
g, 432 vz 068
Carrent (4a318) {=5,297)
Hon=rurrent =r7. 114 g
(al  Summary of bank borrowings
(i) Itmis BEA
{(in September 3, 20w, the Company sgned a long-term loan agreement in the amount of LSS 150,000
for working capital purposes that is hedged by a derivative instrument to swap a floating for fived
irterest mde. 'h?r wahie of this rln:mb}l:i presented in Hote 5.
incipal amiount will he id in semi-armizal insmllments as from ber 2ouz. The final
1'r|=n.1' is scheduled for September 2015, The interest will be paid in March and September of rach
].'-.-ﬂr and the final settlement is scheduled for September 20315
iy Bradesco

{(in September &, 2011, the I:-:nrn]1:|11
far working capital purpnses that is
irterest mie. The fair wmhee of thas rl:mntrl.'l.- is ]1r=:-|:r|:tr:d in Mode 5.

o o
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1m Bnssands of U % dhsllars, wmbess odherwber Insdicsded

pal will be id im semi-anmzal installments as from September 2oet. The final installment

isse 'Fn-r < v The imterest will be paid in March and Septemnber of each year and the
'Fl:rl.i.'r.lﬂcrrr:rrtuﬂ'}uﬂl.dr::l for September 2008,
Banco do Brasil

iin Decemiber 27, 2001, the Company signied a long-term lnan agreement in the amount of USS 75,000
for working capital purposes. In Jammary 2oz, A seap dermtive was contrcted in order o hedge the
loan.

The principal amount will be fully repaid in December aoeb. The interest will be paid in May and
Wowvemnher of esch year and the final settlement is scheduled for November 2ouf.

Uin Decemiber &, 2o, the Company signed a long=term loan agreement in the amount of US§ 25000
for working capital purposes.

The principal amount will be fully repaid in Getober 20a7. The interest will be paid in May and
Hmﬂn}urnfwh}urmdﬁr al settlemnent is scheduled for Oofokber =007

Citihank

in July 19, iz, the Company signed a kong-term loan agreement in the amount of USS so.o00 for
working capital parposes.

The principal ameant will be repatd in semi-anmual installments as from December 2004, The final

installment is schednled for H;Il 7. The interest will be paid in Jone and December of each year and
the final setilement is schednled for May =07

BTG Pactonal

(in September 2, 2012, the Company signed a long-term loan agreement in the amount of U85S 157,000
for working capital purposes.

The principal amount will be repaid in himonthly installments as from October 2014, Thie final
installment is scheduled for September 2007, The interest will be paid in Manch and September of 2oy
and =g and bimomthly as from Ceinber 3014 The final settiement is scheduled for September 2017,

MG

iin Decemiber 14, 2012, the Company signed a long-term loan agreemenit in the amount of U138 so0o00
for working capital purposes.

The principal amount will be repaid in semi-armmal insmllments as from June @015 The final
installment is schedunled for Derember 2017, The interest will be padd in June and December of esch year
amnd the final setilement is scheduded for December 2007,

o nf s
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Maotes to the financial statements

nt December 31, 2o02
Im Bhosmeruls of |5 dodlars, unless otherwbsr inadicsted

(b} Composition of long-term financing by year of maherity

December Iecembier

1, BINIE 1, B

LY 4hay
1Y fra 08y 42643
2005 134,320 42543
zah 13136 S
BT 1, 7R N UHCHD
0¥ pnards 24 Hen 25 (MEH
g17.114 7

{ch Infaormation aon book valoe and fair valoe

Thie difference bebween the book value and the market value of Snancings denominated in foreign
currency, determined based on the discounted cash flow method at the mte prevailing on the balance
sheet date, can be summarnized as follows:

December 31, 3oz December 21, =o11
Fair Fair
Boak valee vmlue Book valae v lme
Teal BELA 130,545 191 0 1L 05 153,443
Bradesco 172 a3 7,1 7h, 122
Bamen do Brasil TN, 1S 1011, ey T T a4
Citibank isiG 5519
BTG Pachaal 1G5LZHY 15520
NG JhL5 D 441,520
i, 43 57,5 a0y, 008 A0,
1 Equity
The Company is a whaolly owned suhsidiary of Odebrecht Oleo e Gis 5.4
(m) Capital

O December g, soae: OO0 S.4 increased the m_pit:] of the Company in the amount of US8 149,458,
Additional, the Company redwced the share premium by repaying the capital to OO0 5.4 in the amonnt
totals of USE 1e6,342 and transferred the investments in Morbe VITT and T to OO0 5.4 via capital
repapment in the amount of U5 13,808,

2o nf 2
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Odebrecht o1l Services Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
nt December 31, 2012
Im Bnusserds of 115 dollars, amibess othrrwisr indicsted

001 BLA incressed the capital of the Company in the amount of US$ o7 837 and the Cnmpany redoced
thie capital and share premiom by repaying mpital to 000 5.4 in the amounts of D88 70006 and 1155

T, respectively.

iOm June 25, 200z the Company transferred share preminm fo capital in the amount U5% 302325 via
share preminm capitalization.

O June 2, 2o the Company transferred the isnestments in Norhe W1 to OO0 5.4 via capital
repapmnent in the amount of USS =fo tuy

i0m December 31, 20n2 the Compamny's paid up capital totals US55 194,958 (2011 - USS 83 856) dnided
intn 154,957,728 comman shares cowned by Odehrechi Cileo o (hds 5.4

ither comprehensive income {loss)

Refers to the cumulative tmnslation adjustent of the Company” s suhsidiaries established abroad
whinse funcional marrenicy is different from the presentation cumency.

Heverine

i0m December 31, @012 the revense s maindy cnmprised by the vessel maintenancs montract (Spedafized
i0il Indnstry Services Agreement - SOTSA].

Greneral and administrative expenses

b o) oL
Personne] expenses (EE (135)
Third-party services (zau08) (r3504)
Crthers (1) (430

(43m26) (a0 6820

Fimnneial result, net

B2 P b
Financial expenses
Interest on financing [15.051) (8 8g7)
Exchange mte variaticn (4,281)
Derivatives Insses 11,1541 iag7)
Cilaranter expenses R (3.B43)
(rhers (3a] [}
(36.871) (16,743)
Finamneinl income
Exchanige mte varation B R =3
Interest on bnans 2376 11,131
Derivatives gains B, 763 1560
Crtbers fg G
4847 13345
Financial result, met 11 (3958)
230fzg
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Odebrecht il Services Ltd.

Motes to the financial statements

nt December 31, 2o02
1m Branussruls of L 5% dallars, wmbrss obhrrwber | msdicsted

Earnings {loss) per one thousand shares
Basic
The basic eamings (loss) per one thowsand shares is calenlated by dviding the profit or loss attribotahle

to the Company’s shareholders by the weighted avwrage smmber of common shares ootstanding during
thie period fvear, excliding the common shares purchased and held in treasory.

EI1 =K1
Mt profe: (oss) attribstable to commmon

share holders: — Basic and diluted G1A3 (19,188]
Weightesd avermge number of catstanding .

. chares 133214 800 ey Crdep 1
Basic and dilsted proft (loss) per ane _ .
thomsand shares - in LSS 38015 ()

Thie Compamy has irhkmnngmfrﬂ'g’rng:.m igned bn mitigate losses and moatracts insumnce in
thir market compatihle with its size and operations. The amounts insured are considered to be sufficient

ty management tocover eveninal Insses, congsidering the natare of the activities, the risk invohved im
operations and the recommendations of insmanes hrokers.

Um December 31, 2002, the Company had the following insumnee policies contracked with third parties:

Covered items Covered risk Amount

Drillships Hull and machinery fincreased USE 5 o gi
valuefacrelermted cost of
ponstrnactionprotection and
indemmityy =l linbalityy delay in
delivery
The insurmnees contracted by OOSL, in mse of koss, have the ODN T GmbH, ODN Eight GrmbH, O
Hine GimbH and ODN Tay TV as the beneficiany.

Subseqguent events

Cin April of, =013, the Company received dividends resournees from QDN Holding in the amoont of TS0
15,040 as repayment of the loars gramted to Delba GenbH (Mioke §).

o o 24
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Odebrecht Oil Services Lid.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Odebrecht Oil Services Lid. ("the Company"),
which eomprise the balance sheet as at December 21, 2011 and the statements of operations,
eomprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s responsibility
for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial slalements in
accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil, and for such internal control as mEnagement
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frand or ercor,

Aunditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted
our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the andit to olitain reasonable assurance
about whether the finaneial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or

L=

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polieies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well a3 evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
andit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Av. Tamcredn Meves G20, 307 ¢ 307, Ed. Empresarial Mundo Plrza, Caminhe daz Arvares,
Salvedor, BA, Bras] S7820-030 T (71) 3319 1908, F; (F1) 3319-i037, WA T oD T
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Cudebrecht Ol Services Lid.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Odebrecht 0l Services Lid. as at December 31, 2011, and its financial performance and cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with practices adopted in Braxil,

Other matters

The accompanying financial statements include comparative information as required by the aceounting
practices adopted in Brazil. The comparative information as at, and for the period ended December 54,
2010 has not been audited,

Salvador, May 29, o1

=

V!
[ e = )
Pﬂcnu‘at&rhnumﬂww
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Odebrecht 0il Services Ltd.

EBalance Sheets
In thousands of 1.5, dollars

Assets

Current
Cagh and cash eguivalents [Nots 6)
Advances to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Non-current
Swapderivative ingtruments (Noke 7)
Laans (Mote B)
Redated partie [Note §)
Inrvestments (Nate 10)
Intangibles
Property, plant and squipment

Total assets

December 31, December 31,
poiity 200
(umnansdited )
292 58 323,78
1,350
437
1,149 4,958
200,453 328,676
1,685 854
83,841 30,860
R
280,142 Joefi 342
e 249
a1 11,718
65,075 450,023
64528 TIR.609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1of 24

Linbilities and eguity

Current
Financings (Note 11)
Trade payables
Related parties (Not= g)
Insurance payahble
Other lishilities

Non-current
Financings (Note 11)
Swap dervative instruments {Mote 7)

Equity (Note 12)
Capital
Share premium
Accumulsted other comprehensive loss
Accumulated losses

Tokal equity

Total Habilities and equity

Annex A-34

o ——— D her 31,
il i)
{unaudited)
28,247 2,407
2,05
L5457
5005
43 L]
186,571 2,006
277821 L4605
R
28 L8y L4605
83,836 307634
303,116 00,000
(2.382) (2.337)
(83,4997) (63.300]
206,07 B8 008
THg528 778600




Odebrecht Qil Services Ltd.

Statements of operations

For the vears ended December 31
In thouwsanads of 175, dollars, unless otherwise indicated

011 2010
{ummudited)
Fevenue (Mote 13) 107,620 33934
Costs of service rendered (155,088) {36,877
Gross loss (47.468) (z943)
General and administrative expenszes (MNote 14) (10,682) (1,602)
Amortization of goodwll (14,783)
Share of profit of investees (Mote 1) 42,360 (B7g)
Operating loss (15,790] (zo,013])
Financial expenses (16,743) (6,826)
Financial income 13,345 4,371
Fimancial result, net (Note 15) (2:398) (z,455)
Loss for the vear (19,188) (22,468)
Basic and diluted loss per thousand shares
attributable to shareholders of the
Company (in TSS) (Mote 16) (33,63) (35.30)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statement=.

2 of 24
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odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Statements of comprehensive income (onss)
For the vears ended [December 31
Lt Bssmarils ol 1L 5 sl lnrs

Lass for the vear

Exchange mate variation of foreign subsidiaries

Total eomprehensive loss for the year

fAd 0 N f=Ld 8 [ ]
s Harad

[15,188) (FELEL |
(45) (451
(1G22 (220000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemests.

3o 24
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Statements of changes in equity
I & s el L2 ksl L

Altribaied to the censpas s sharcholhlers

Other
Share sumprehensive Accmmualsted

Cmprital pi i Tuss s Tislal

Al Jammiry 1. 2000 (ussadited ) F3E4a4 [12=25] [46,84.1) SBg S
Lt Tsr ke vimar (22,468] [=x458)
Fouhatnge rate variation of foed gs sulsidiasde (ast] (a5
Capital redietssn {Hole 2] [75.581) 75.581]
Cajpital ineresee | Mobe 1) 194 S04 O, Doy 458 801
At Decensber 31, 2000 { nnnmdited § 30754 300,000 [2537) (6n500)  _ Gas ons
Al Jammary 1, 2001 37644 Fo0y oo (=337] (60 5009] E23,008
Liwici Tust it i [ #4,185]) [19,588)
Foechange male varintion of furd gs sulbsidiaries [as] ()
Capital recduetion [Hoe £ (146.342) (146 342)
Capital ineiwice | Mobe 1) 149,458 458
Transiers of inviestments in HNorbes VITT asd T e 000 84 (Bote 2] [=z19,B08) [=i13.508)
Al December 31, 2011 S5Bq6 Joguis [EREHE [E8407) S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Odebrecht 1l Services Ltd.

Statement of cash flows
For the vears ended December 31
L Bvnusernls of LS. dasl lars

Cash Mows from operaling selivilies
Lass e The year
Dhagiimssi Uiy, il s T2 i
Shie ol profic of invesins
Amcirtizalion of goodwill
Fliisse fesiill, el

Freaf it {Boses] o thee fair value of derivative Gnancml SEstruments

Clussgass i asiesets aind BEabilities
Frepaid ixpassus
Acdvanees 1o suppliers
e Y
Fiskilind parties
Tl i ildes
Caber aerrsunis payalble

Netleash provided by opemting activilies
Cask Mows from isvesling eclivilies
Capital incnsuss in seboafaris

Tesismanecat ol Thike] puartiet hosi
Angersition of properTy, phant sl g piesi

Assgeesition of inbangile ikl
Neleash used in invesling setivilies
Cash Mows from lnancing aetivities
Finiscing issel
Pt of | nlenssls
Ciapital inicniss
Nl cash provided by Doascing aclivilies

Inereass [(decrenss) in sk and cash eqgmivabenls

Caskh and cash equivalbeats al the beginzsing of the year

Cash and cash squivalests al the end ol ke vear

The main non cash tmnsaction s disclosed innobe 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

sof g
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Lo, 150 (= 468)
5

{42.560) T
L 7Y

L Sz { 1 oee])
155 [Beg)

(540320 (B, gai)
(45730
(1,o46)

4,544 L&, adil
58 go=z ALY
23,051

5758 £m
N1 Ta - 23 458

(ig55550 {18z, 7]
(ET o) {27a4)

{1, Boeg)
{29]

{ga, BE00 224 a0
1 508, 00 (LR e
{zBaz) 2135

5,105 AhNE
137,454 Sli542
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Mates to the financial statements

ot ecember 31, 2zom1
Im Brususmerids o L5, dasllmrs

(perating context

Odebrecht 0] Serviees Lid. (00SL" or "Company™), was constituted on September 14, 2001, in the
Cayman Elands. 3 was ﬁ!ll'llﬁrl'.d h:.r-l':-.’r.l:lm:tl-l':l-n: & (fds S0 (POOGT) on October 32, 3007, as the
result of the process of business ssgregation of the corpomate strochare of the Odebrecht Organization,
thirnugh the partial split-off of equity of Constnstom Morberto Odebrecht S0 (FENO)L

[ts activities comprises rendering services related to the extraction of 0l and gas and inwestment to Q0K
Gronp Companies that directly or indirecthy operate in this segment_

O June 7, 2o the -I'.‘nru]l.ln.:r received from its inditect shareholder Qdebrecht Heo e Gés SAL (SO0
thie brtality of the shares ssoed by Odehrecht Drilling Mocbe VITT LLC (SO0 VIITF) and Odebrecht

Drillimg Maorbe T LLC (SO0 [X™), a transaction with parties nnder common eontrol. This operation
did mod imeabee any eash transaction.

The izsie of these financial statements of (051 was anthorized by the Direcbors on May =9, 2003,

Summary of significant sccounting policies

The significant accounting policies apphied in the prepamation of these financial statements are set ot
hedow. Thess poficies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
Basis of preparation

Thﬁﬁnmd:lﬂmnﬂhnt?m_pﬂp;ﬂdmﬂﬁhiﬂ:ﬁu]nﬂhﬁ;mptfﬂrmﬁhﬁ:ﬂmiﬂ
assets and liabilities (including demative instraments], wiich are measored at their fair valoe.

Thie preparation of finamicial statemests requires the use of certain eriticn] seoousting estimates. B oalso

requires the Company’s management to exercise its judgment in the process of applyng the Compamy's
aceonniing policies. Those areas that require a ligher judgment which are more complex, a5 well as

ather areas requiring significant estimates and assnmptions forthe financial satements, are disclosed in
niote 3.

The Com humlprﬂrﬂﬂithmﬂ;dﬂnﬂdﬁumuﬂﬂ:ﬂmﬁ,ummfdhyﬂﬁgﬂﬁgﬁ
*Consoli Financial Statements”, beeanse it is a enntralled eompany of Odehrechs Oleo e Gis 5.4

(OOG™), witich presents consolidated financial statement in accomlance with the accounting practices
adnpted in Brazil, which do not requirne the Company to prepare eonsolidated fSinandal statements.

The financial statements have been prepared in arcordance with the accounting practices adopted in
Brazil including the standands issned by the Bazilian Arcounting Pronosaneements Committes (CPCL

Inecoimie tax

Cioen did miot & in i im the pen resented, et to imenme tax in the
pasy ngage in operations, perinds p subject

& of 24
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Naotes o the finnncsl statements

nt ecember 31, 2ou1
1m Banussrls of L % dsllmrs

Conversion of foreign currency

Funetional enrrency and presentation ourreney

[tems indpded in the Gnandal satements of each of the Company entity is measured using the curmrency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the fincfional comrency). The
financial statements ate presented in U5 dodlar, which is the Company’s fanctional eorrency, and also
thir Compamy's presentation curmency.

Transnctions and kalances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional eorrency nsing the exchange rates
prevailiog at the dates of the transactions or the dates of valwation where items are remieasored. Foregn
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the tmamslation at
year-rnd exchange mtes of monetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the statement of opermtions.

Exchange wariances on assets and linbilities are elassified as “Firancial Ineome™ and “Financial

Subsidiaries with a different functional carrency

The resolts and financial position of the entities that bave a functiomal commency different from the
presentation ourrency are translated into the presemtation cumenicy, as follows:

Msmets and Rahilities for each balance sheret presented are translated at the cosing mte at the date of that

halance sheet, maintaining the inftial equity accounts for the same converted values on the final balance
shieet of the previons pericd. The changes in equity other than income are converted at the rates on the
dates of these changes.

Ineomee and expenses of each statrment of aperations are translated ot awmage exchange mtes (unless
this average is not a reasnmable approcimation of the comolative effect of the rates prevaifing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
fransactions].

All resnting ewchange differences are recognized as the sepamte component “Other comprehensive
income™ in squity.

The functional curmency adopted by BSPC is the pound steding. All others are UL, dollars.

Cach nnd ensh equivalents

iCash and cash equivalents comprise msh, bank and other highly hquid short-ferm investments
with original maturities of up to g0 days, and for w mhﬂur&:fduwmwllu is imsignifimnt.

Prepaid expenses

Prr;mdup*mﬁmpmﬂpm}ﬂmmfmﬂmhlmﬁnmmﬂ}umuwnﬂulhﬂm
At December 32, 2011, this acoount r:prucnlstl'h: with the insurance policies of drlling rigs
(Norhe VI, Noche VITT and Narbe [X) amounting to LSS 4972 contracked with thind parties. 51
expenses are mitially recorded as prepaid expense and expensed inthe statemient of operations over
time as the benefit is received. Sinch onsts are changed to the specific companies on @ monthly hasis.
Tofag
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Maotes to the financial statements

nt December 31, 2oa
1m Bhavussauls of L %, dadlars

Investments
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (indoding special purpose entities] over which the Company has the poswer
to determing the financial and opemating policies, gmﬂ:rmmpa:n]ﬂng a shareholding of more than
ane half of the voting rights. Thee existenice and effect of possible voting rights that are currently
exercisable nrmnm'l'rilﬁ.- are ponsidered when assessing M:rhn%cmpu@' eontrols another entity.

Jointly-comtrolled entities

Jaointty-rontrolled entities are all those entities in which the Company shares control cver the enonomic
activity, induding the nnanimons agreement betwesn the parties on stmategic, financial and operstional
decisinns related to the activity.

Accounting policies of these entifies are changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the
policies adoqrted by the Company.

[nvestmients in suhsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities are acconnted for nsing the equity method.
Financial nssets

Classificntion

The Company classthies its financial assets in the following mategories: measured at fair value thmoegh
proft or kass, loans and recebvahles and awmilable-for-sale. The dassification depenids on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the dassification of its financial
assets at the itial recognition. There are no fnancial assets classthied as “awwilable-for-sale® in the

perinds presented.
Finnncial assets messured st fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at Birvaloe through or loss are firgncial assets hedd for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if aogmred maindy for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives

ame also categnrized ulﬂi&wtld:rgmlml’tr._rlm-inrigm-nd s hedges.
Loans and receivahles

Loans and recefvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable not

quided in an active market. They are classfied as corment assets, evorpt for those with matety dates of

over 12 manths after the balance sheet date (these are dassified as non-morrent assets ). Loans and

Wﬁs of the Company inclade *Loans™ (Mote &, “Ofher assets”™ and “Cash and msh sqoival ents™
o ],

Availahle-for-snle financinl nssets

Availahle-for-sale financial assets are non-dervatives that are sither designated in this category or not
classified in any other cabegony. They are included in non-mment assets unless management intends to
realze Ihmm'}'tl.'hm 12 manths after the reporting period.

Hofza
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Odesbrecht ol Services Ltd.

Mates to the financial statements

nt December 31, 2o11
Im Bunssanls of U5, dollars

Kecognition and messurement

Frgular parchases and sales of financial assets are recognized onthe trade-date, which is the date on
which the Compamy commits o purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recogrized at fair
valoe plus tmnsaction costs for all financial assets not carmied at Gir valoe through profit or loss
Financial assets marmied at fair valee thromgh profit or loss are imitially recogmized at fair whee, and
transaction costs are sed in the statement of operations. Financial assets are derecognized when
thie rights to receive msh flows from the imeestments have expired or have been transfermed, and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and resmnds of ownership. Availablesfor-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair wlue throsgh profit or lnss are suhsequently cartied at fair value.
Loans anid recefvables are mammied at amortized cost nsing the effective interest method. Gains or losses
redated to the changes in the fair value of finandal assets measured at fair walue throsgh profit or loss ane
recognized in the statement of opemations as financial income {expense) as they ooeur.

Compensation of financial iInstruments

Financial assets and lishiltties are offset and the net amount reported in the halance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offsrt the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net
hasis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simmitaneoshy.

Impairment of financial pssets - assets mensured ot amortized cost

The Comparry assesses at the end of each reporiing pericd whether there is objective evidence that
fimancial asset or & growp of financial assets is impared. An asset or a groap of financial assets is
impaired and impairment Insses are incErmed anly if thene is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of ooie or more events conarred after the imitial recogaition of the assets (an “event of loss™) and that
event (or events) of nss bas an impact in the foture estimated msh flows of the financial asset or groop
of financial assets that can be estimated in 2 reliable manmer.

The criteria nsed by the Company's to identify objedtive svidenor of an impaitment loss inchade:
Hignificant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor

& breach of contract, such as default or delay in the payment of interest or prindpal;

‘The Company, for economic or legal reasoms related to the financial difficaht of the barrower, grants to
the hormroser a concrssion that it would not otherwize consider;

It is prohahble that the homower will enter hankmaptey or other fimamcal restrochering:

‘The disappearmnes of an active market for the financial asset due to the financial diffionlties; or

(Ihsermhble data indimting a measurable redction in the estimated fuhere cash Sows for o portfolio of

financial assets since initial recogmition, althongh the decreass cannot vet be identified with the

individual financial assets im the portfolio, indeding:

s Adbverse changes in the payment siuation of the bomowers in the portfofin;

5 Local ar national emonomic eonditinns that correlate with the defamlts on payments of the assets
in the portfolin.
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The amount of any impairment lnss s measured as the difference bebween the mmying amount of the
assets and the present value of the estimated fishare cash Sows (excluding frrore credit losses that have
mot been incurned ] discoumted at the original interest rate of the Gnandal assets. The carmying amonnt of
the asset is redoeed and the amount of the koss is recognized in the statement of operations. For practical
reasons, the Company can measare the impairment based on the fair value of an instmamens using an
oheermble markst price.

If, in & subseguent period, the amonnt of the impairment loss decreases and the decrense can be related
ohjectively with an event that ccomrred after the impairment was recognized (i.e.; an improvement in the
credit rating of the bormower ), the reversal of this loss recognized previously is credited to the smbements
of operations.

Dierivative financial instruments

Initially, derivatives are recognized at fair walee on the date a dervative confract is emtered inta, and are
subsequently remeasured at Gir value. Changes in the Gir value of any of these derivative instruments,
are recognized immediately in the statement of operations as a Gnancial expenss finmome.

Up fo December 31, 2011, COEL has not adopted bedge aconumting as part of its aceounting policies.
Imprirment of non-financial sccets

#ssmets that bave an indefinite nseful life, for eoample goodwill, are not subject to amortization and ane
tested amomally for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviesed for impairment
whenever events ar ﬂum-u in drmmstances indicate that the carmying amonnt may oot be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amoant by which the asset's carnying amount exceeds its
recovemhbile amount. The recoverable amourt is the bigher of an asset’s far = bess oosts o sell and its
valne in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets ane grouped at the | owest lewels for which
thiere are separately identifiable cash flows {eash-genemting wnits - GG |E]:I|III.'EI'|. man-financial
assets, other than goodwill, are suhsequently reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting datr
Trade acenunts pavahle

Trade accounts pi]."ﬂﬁlmdﬂlﬂlﬂllﬂpi}'ﬁﬂgﬁbﬂ!mmﬂlﬂhﬂhﬂm acuired from

suppliers in the normal conrse o ess Acronnds payable are cdlassified as current hiahilities if
payment is due in one year or less. 1§ not, they are presented as non-marrent liahilithes.

Trade accounts les are recognized inthally at fair vahee and suhsequently measared at amortized
cost sing the ive interest method. In practicn, they are nmually recognized at the amoumt of the
Fimancings

Financings ame Iy at fair value, net of tramsaction eosts incurmed. Financings are

subsequently mmi .ulrn:n n:d.'Lﬂ.:wd.lE‘cnmnr beetween the proceeds (net of tansaction eosts)
and the setflement valee is Tﬂ:q!n.mn:] in the statement of cpemtions over the period of the financing
nsing the effective inbenest method.

Fers paiid an the estmblishment of eredit faclities are recognized as transackion mosts to the extent that it
is prohable that some orall of the: Gslity will be dravwn epon. In this case, the fee is deferned nntil the
drmw down ooonrs.
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Fimancings are classified as corrent liabilities undess the Company has an unconditinnal right to defer
settlement of the liahility for at least 12 months afterthe balance sheet date.

Provisinns

Provisions are recognized when: (i) the Company has a present chfigation or a constructive obligation as
a result of past events; (7i) it is prohable that a disbursement of resonrees will be necessary to settle the
ohligation; and (Ti) the amounts can be measured reliahiy.

Capital

Thie common shares are dassified in equity. The incremental eosts directly attributable to the isnmance of
niew shares are stated in equity as a dedwction of the proceeds, net of taxes.

Eevenne recognition

Reverme comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services inthe
ondinary course of the Company's activities. Reverme is shown net of taxes, rebates and discounts.

The Company recognizes revenne when the amount of revenoe can be relinbly measared, when it is
probatie that fishare economic benefits will flow fo the entity and when gt criteria have been met
for each of the Company's activities. The Company bases its estimates on bistorical resmlts, taking ima
consideration the type of ustomer, the type of tamsaction and the sperifics of sach armmngement.

Standards, amendments and interpretations of existing standards that are not yet
effective

Standards, amendments and interpretations of exsting standards that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been publishied and are
mandatary for the Company s accounting perinds heginning on or after Jarmary 1, 2011 o later perinds.
Howeser, the ﬂ?ﬂwﬂ not earty adopbed them.

- CPL os (Rl "Related party dischosunes”, issoed in Septemiber oo, (PC o5 (R is ma for
peninds beginming on or after Jarmary 1, 2. Earier application, in whale or in part, is perm:

The revised standard darifies and simplifies the defindtion of & related party and remioves the
requirement for gevernment-related entities to disclose details of all tmnsactions with the
government and other government-related entities. The Company will apply the revised standard
from Jamuary 1, =012 When the revised standand is applied, the Company and the parent will nesd fo
disclose any tansmctions between its subsidiaries and its assodates. The Company is correnthy
putting systems in place fo capture the necessary information. Tt is, therefore, not possibile at this
stage to discinse the impact, if any, of the revised standard on the related party discosures.
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- ICPC o, “Extimguishing financial Rabilities with equity instruments”, issed in December zoa0. The
interpretation clarifies the accounting by an entity when the terms of a finandal ability are
remegotinted and result in the entity issuing equity instruments fo a oreditor of the entity to
extingrish all or part of the financial liability (debs for equity ssapll It requimes a gain or koss to be
recognized in the statemnent of operations, which is measured as the differener between the camying
amoumt of the financial liability and the fair value of the squity insmaments sseed. I the fair wle of
tihe equity instruments issed cannot be reliably measared, the equity instnoments showld e
miegsired to reflect the fair valee of the Snandal Rahility extingnished. The Company will apply the
interpretation from Jamzary 1, 200z, | is not expected to have any impact on the Company or the
parent entity’s financial statements.

Interpretations of standards and smendments to existing standards thet are not yet
effective and mot relevant to the Company’s operntions

Thie Enllowing inberpretations and amendments to the existing standards bave been published and are
mandatory for the Company “s acrounting perinds beginning on or after Jarmary 1, 26m1 or later perinds,
It are miot relesamt for the Company *s operations.

Below is a list of standardsinterpretations that have been isseed and are effectire for periods affer
Jamuary 1, =mo.

[CPC a6 - "Extinguishi iDarifies the requimements of [FRSs when Julyn, 2000
Fimancial Liahilities wit an entity renegotiates the terms of a
Equity Instnuments" firancial liahiity with its creditor and the

creditnr agrees to aoeept the entity's shares
or other eqatty instruments to seftle the
financial liahility fuolly or partially.

iCPC o5 (R, - “"Related parties  Amends the defimition of a related party Jamuary 1, 2011
dimclocenres™ and modifies certain related party

disclosure requiremients for government -

relabed entities

Thiere are nio other CPC that are oot yet effective that wonld e expected to have a material impact on the
Company.

Critieal aceonnting estimates nand judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are hased on historical ecperience and other
factors, including expectations of firtore events monsidersd reasomable under the ciroumstanoes.

b
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Critienl necounting estimates and nssumptions

Based on assnomptions, the Company makes estimates concerming the firtore. The resolting accounting
estimurtes will rarely be equal to the actnal resulis. The estimates and the assnmptions that re nta
significant sk of musing 8 material admament o the mmying an amoants of assets and liakalities
withian that next Sinamcal year are addressed Bellow.

Fair value of derivatives designated ns hedge

The Exir value of fnancial ingruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valnation techmiques. The wses judgment to seledt among a vanety of methods and make

assumptions that are mainky om market conditians existing at the end of each reporting period.
Thie Compamy has used discounted cash flows analysis to calaglate the fair value of the hedging

dervative

The Company contracted a derbrrtive instrument fo hedge the working capital lnan (Note 1), The xir
valne of this instrament is renorded in acrordance with the sccounting policy deseribed in Wofte 2.6 and
thir asset and Rability positions are presented in Mote 7.

Fimancial risk management
Finanrisl risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to varkons Snancial ﬁﬂ:.mrhrtﬁiﬁmiudiﬂgnmq'risk.md
cash flow inferest mte risk), credit nsk and Ilquu{iqrﬂ}_'lhrﬂmpnn}"s overall sk

program focuses on the unpredictabifity of fimancial markets and seeks to minimize potential l-I‘|!'|l'.'I'."-|!
effects om the Company's financal performance. The Company nses derivative financal insmaments to
hedge cash flow interest rate risk.

Risk management is carried out by a central tressury department (Group treamary) nnder policies

approved by the Baard of Directors. Company treamary identifies, evalaates and hedges the Company

agninst possible financinl risks in dose cooperation 'IIIE"L the Company's operating units. The Board

provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as for specific areas, such as foreign

r.m:'hnn.%: risk, interest mte msk, credt sk, wse of dedwative Anancial nstrements and non=der e
instroments, and investment of surplus Bquadity.

Market risk
Foreign exchange rate risk

Thrﬂmnp;rwnmmﬂrylrﬂuﬁatmﬁﬂ@mdunp rate risk resulti
CITEnCy exposares, related bo foredgn exchange rate risk is the mndtrgt'mrnrrrmu'l
fishare contracts, recognized assets a.'ru'l. Iuhﬂmﬁ and foreign investments.

The assoriated risk arises from the possibility which aims at acting in the derivatives market only to
harl.g enmracted cash Sows, excluding any passhility of speaulative transactions. The Company enters

hesdging opemtions fo change floating rates to fixed rabes on bormowings, with matched maturities,
11'r||:-|.|r|:r.'n and Types of rate, thus eliminating mismatch risks. The Company also enters into transactions
to avnid mismatches between revenoes and costs in different currencies within limits and safety margins
adopted in s cash flow forecast, minimizing exchange mbe impacts.
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Cash flow interest rate risk

Thiis risk arises from the possibility that the Compamy may incur losses doe to Suchations in interest
rates that kzad fo an increase in financial expenses related to Gnancing obtained in the market. The
financing contracted for working mapital purposes is subject to floating interest mtes, hedged by
derivative swap instroment inkn fixed interest rate.

Senstivity analysis

'We present below a table with derivative financial instruments at fair value, describing the fisks that
may lead to material kasses for the Compa: 31 a prohahle scenanio (seemanio I, aceonding to
management's udgment. In addition, a twn scenarios are shown with a 25% and so0%
deterioration in the risk factor identified (interest mte), (seenarios 11 and I, respectivedyl.

Instruement Deseriphan Seenario |l Seenario [l Scenaria 111
Derivatives LIBOR decrease {437 (e ] LET2
Credit risk

Cresdit risk is managed on a enrporate hasis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalests, derivative
fimancal instruments and deposits with banks and otber firmncial instifotions, as well & ooedt
exposures to mastomers. For banks and financial instibrtions, only independently mted parties with a
mimirmum rating of 'A' are acrepted. There are no defamit events related fo oo nestomers and
management does nof expect any Inss arsing from default by these commterparties.

Liqui dity risk

Cash flow forecasting is perfarmed in the operating entities of the Company and aggregated by the
fimamee depariment. This department monitors rolling forecasts of the Compamy's liqudity requinements
to ensure it has sufficent cash to mert operational needs. Soch forecasting takes imto ronsidemation the
Company's debt financing plans, covenant compliance, and compliance with internal halanes sheet
Tathos.

The table helow presents the Company’s nen-derivative financial Rahilities by AREE,
rgbnﬂir]m-uﬂrrrn.l:nmglttl'uh]nn.nr:luﬂ'datrunrﬂ tn the confractnal maturity. The
deriwatives finandal liahilties are incheded in the analysis if their maturities are indispensable to an

Erﬂu’.ﬁ:ﬂ-ﬁ:‘lg#mhﬂm.{ The amoumts reporbed in the table are undiscouanted momtractoal cash
T
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At December 31, zom
Less than Between 1 Bebween 2 iwer
1 VEAT ond 2 years  and 5 years 5 VEATS
Principal of financings T4 a2 Bea 15,114 RO, [0
[nterests on financings 15,614 135HHE = AR 4436
Trade accounts payahle )]
Related parties 15457
[nsmrmnce payable R.405
At Decembeer 31, m000 (enaudited )
Less than Befween 1 Between 2 iver
1 VEAT and 2 years  and 5 vears 5 VEATS
Principal nf'ﬁrﬂm:'l_n.g:: LA gz Bsr 42 8= 42 By
[nterests on financings 7424 5830 B LS4
Capital mansgement

Thie Compary has and follows financal policies that provide the goidelines for management of risks and
thie consequent impacts on capital structore. Under these policies, the natore and geneml position of
financial risks is regulady monitored and managed in order to evaluate reaitts and the financial impact
on cash flows. The main finandial instihetions with which OOSL maintains opemtions are thoss
presented in Nofe 1.

Under these policies, market risks are hedged when necessany to support corporate strategy.

According to the risk management policy, dervative instroments for specalative parposes are
profibited.

Fair value estimates

Thie Compary helirves that the balanees of trade acconnts recehvahle, after impairments and trade
accounts payable, do not differ significantly from fair values. The fair values are estimated by

discoumting fobore contractoal msh fliow, using market interest mbes awmilable for similar Snandal
instruments.

For financial instniments designated as fair value throngh Elm'ﬁl: nr lnss, the Com Erllionas: CPC a0
The Company’s fimancial instroments are not traded on actve markets and their fair vahoe is caloolated
nsng valuation technigues. These vahmation techmiques preferentially nse information available in the
market and minimize Company-speafic estimatie.
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Financial instroments by estegory
Financial nssets are clussified as follow:

Agnzeln

Lavnris anid receivahles

Cash and cash equivalents {Note 6]
Lnains (Mobe 8)

Cither receivabiles (%)

Finnneinl assets measured at fair
vinlue through profit or lnss

Swmp derivative instumenis (Note 7)

i(*) prepayments are exiracted foom SOther receivables™
Financial linhilities are cassified as follows:

Lishilities

{rther financial liahilities
Firancings (Mot 11]
Trade payables

Related parties [Mobe o)

Insurance payable
(rther linhifities

Hedging derivatives
Swmp derfvative instruments (Note 7)
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(Cmsh nnd cash equeivalents
December 31, December 31,
KL SAKLE
[mnaudited )
Cash and hanks 140 LAz
Bank deposits 2435 20004
oy PR 3 il

At December 31, 2011, bank deposits are represented by fued and Soating rate cperations in short ~term
time deposits with matority of up to 90 days, denominated in U8 dollars, with first-class financial
institutions

Swap derivative instruments
Decembeer 30, 2o1 December 1, 2omie
(mnmudiled]
Asmet Limbility Asmet Linhility
Imterest rate swap 1, s Py g

The derivative fimancal instroments are intended to hedge the Company's operations against the risks of
fluctuations in interest rates and are not nsed with the ohjective fo generating finandal income, i.e. they
are not speoulative.

The remaining period to the matharity of the hedged thems is more than 12 months, and therefore the fair
value of these derivatives is classified as a non-nrment asset or liability.

Interest rabe swap

The notional amount of the intrrest mbe ;mp contmacts, as of December 31, 2000 is 158 2ms, 000 (2010
= 58 150,000 - nnandited )

As of Decemiber 31, 2011, the foeesd interest mates variesd hebween 130% and 166% (200 - 1.20% and
Lg% = mnandited) and the variable rates are based on LIBOR. The gains and losses related to these
inberest rate swap confracts are recogrized in the statement of operations up to the foll repayment of the

hedgrd loams.
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Lisans

Refers to koans graebed to Defha GmbH, a minority shareholder of QDM 1 GembH (FODN Tand IT7) and
0N Tay IV GenbH (ODR Tay IVT), indirect suhsidiaries of 00K, related to the mpital contributions to
e made by Delba, whenever it does not bave sufficient financial resonrees to pay the amournts due.

These contracts bear imterest of 13% and 14 5% pa, with payment due in 7 and 10 years, respectively.
Thie loans will be repaid with funds from dl'ﬂ%ﬂl‘l distribustions and Dedha can also nse s own financial

resourees for this purpose. I there is any remaining halance at the end of the comtract, OO0 has the
right to nse that amonnt to incresse its shareholding. Delba’s shareholdings in QDN T and 11 and G0N
Tay IV were given in guarantee of the loans. On December 31, 2011 the nee amemnnds to 1158 98 840

(188 30,860 = 2000 = nrandited).

Helated parties
The balances of assets, liabilThes and revenes with related parties are as follows:

Ao Ly Linlsilaties Hrvrmmres
Ziil 20 L i pre i bl irid i} La]
(mnmudited] [ummudited ] [moaudited)
Dl Dilling Cosperatie LA 4.47% (Tala ] 5/
Horth Sea Prodedion Cospsny 157 1, 1,585
Techsip Oudabnda FLEY OV L0
Tiettas reigs Crorssnicn Coirpsia Lasin 2,400
OO0 [ GralsH 1,002 LT 454 3.550
OO Tay TV SeslvH T, R =7 488
Oelelspendit Oilas & Olls 5.4 B elny ERESn
Oedelsracdit Derilling Bodts V1T 4,565 ST % 850
Oelelsracdit Derilling Mol I il 7 B2 450 % 850
Olelsracdit Ol s Cics Anigola 2 50
Q2O 152457 g 35 50
ol of g
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Investments

Investments in subsidinries

At the beginming of the year

ikdebrecht (il and Gas Angols
Transfer to TOC

™ orth Sea Production I;'.‘nr[rnrl.ﬂm{':l
Exchange mte variation of foreign subsidiaries
Eqmity in the results

(kiebrecht Drilling Services LLC
Capiml increase
Eqmity in the resalts

ikdebrecht Drilling Norbe VIIL™ ")
Capiml increase
Transfer to DN Eght GmbH

(kiebrecht Drilling Norhe D)
Capial increase
Transfer to (OK Nine GenbH

CKINE WX
Egmity in the reslts

Af the end of the year

Decemnher 731, Decembeer 31,

2kl AN

{umsadiled)

S g PR e ]

23

(251 {451}

1,280 Lo

G5, L0 b 485
Aauhii

“Eed 732
(15748671

251465 i, 040
izh 341

LG [nyed)

Interest in suhsidinries (%)
December Lecember
Coammitry 1, 211 L, A
{umsadiled)

Subsidinries
Miorth Sea Prodisction Compamy (%] United Kingdam Sk 5
debrecht Drilling Servioes LLC (7] Unfted Stabes BORH T
(debrecht Dirilling Worbe VITH**) Unfed States BORH L
Odebrecht Drilling Morhe T Unfted States 1 3 w1
QDN VII/TX Cayman [slands 1ia ] gL

i* ) Jointly=comtrolled subs

i*¥ Odebrecht Dnlling Horbe Ei:: (imbH receved from its indirect shareholder OO0 the totality of the

shares mmed by (DS,

i(***) Entities wound up in zo0n. Ther assets and Rahilities were tramsferred to ODN Eight and Bime.
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[nformation on the results of operations, assets and liahilities of the main diredt investees of the
Company, privatedy-held compamies, are summarnized as follows:

ecember g1, 2o01 Assels Linhilities Hevenines Prafit
MEPT 44,50 14,77 a3.256 2560
Ll 48, g 483,637 57188 bl
Iecember 1. 2ini Asscin Linhilities Hevennes Prafit
(nnmandited)  (umaedited)  (unauditedd  (uneoditedd
MAFT L 1,955 45158 e ]
] R B cE 48,6
M e VT Had8g Tarahg
e T 740,778
Morhe VI IX 1,450,130 1405
11 Fimancings
December December
Type SE1, E011 SEL, SE1AE
{umamdited]
Teanl BBEA Working capital 15LEHS 152, 12
Bradesco ‘Working mapital -, 12
Banco do Erasil Working apital Th.041
qoohE 152120
Carrent (o247} (=477)
Heom=rurment 277 8a L s

imj Summary of hank borrowings

il Itmd BEA
iin E-r-p'l'crn]rr T 2000, the I:-‘nrnpc_m.].' sagned a ]nn,-g:-lfr.m.:. I-:.._1.11 mgreement in the ameant nf 158 150,000
ihencet o T ol i of 1 AerSvative s presented okt g e o e
:[n'l';:ﬁinmpﬂ amotnt will he repaid in semi-anmizal installments as froom September 2z The final

mient is scheduled for September 2015, The interest will be paid in March and September of rach
vear and the final settlement is scheduled for September 2015
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(il Brodesco
(in September &, 2011, the Company signed a long-term loan agreement in the amount of U5 75000

E:-rm'.-rhn.g ital purposes that is hedged by a derivative instrument to swap a floating for fived
T];h! fair vahue of this rlﬂmb}l.i presented in nobe 5

Em] repai in semi-annaal installments as from September 2nf. The final installment
i ﬁ'.vr Er-p'h:rnlrr 2l The imterest will be paid in March and Seprember of each year and the
'ﬁ.na] settlement is scheduled for September 2008,

iy Bameo do Brasil

(in Decemiber 27, 2001, the Company signed a long-term loan agreement in the amonnt of USS 75,000
for working capital purposes.

The principal amount will be fully repaid in December @t The interest will be paid in May and
November of each year and the final settlement is scheduled for November 2o,

(h} Composition of long-term financing by year of materity

liecember December

1], BHFL1 ¥, BIFLF

[l ied i

=01 Ly

=013 . fhay au B

DML 4z fay 43 Ber

=015 . fhay B
= ), Mg
BOTT oEmwands G100

o277 A 149,665

fch Information on hook value and frie valoe

The differenee hetween the book value and the market value of finandngs denominated in foregn
currency, determined based on the discounted cash flow method at the mte prevailing on the halanee

sheet date, can be summarized as follmws:

December 31, 201 ecembier 31, 2R

(unandited)

Frir Fair

Boak valee vulue Buosok vabue value

Ttz BEA 15 LAH0S 1534449 W51 151,585
Bradescn o, 12 i, 12
Baren do Brasil T (1 7oA

31y, CHi A b 15 1 151, 8l

21.0f 2y
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Odebrecht 01l Services Ltd.

Motes to the financial statements

nt ecember 31, 2001
1m B ol 15 dhollmrs

Equity
The Company is a wholly cwmed sushsidiany of Odebrecht Oleo e Gis 5.4
Cayprital

Um Decemnber 31, o OO0 B increased the capital of the Company in the amount of US55 134,800
{unandited] and the share premizm in the amount of 138 300,000 (unmdibed). OO0 S04 also reducesd
thir capital of the Company in the amount of &S 75,581 (nrandited) dise to the transfer of COGA (158
3582 - nnandited ) and the forgiveness of debt regardimg ODM 1 GmbH (LSS 38,909 - umandibed).

o Depember 31, soan: 005 84 increased the shame premitom of the Company in the amount of 158
wyaasi. Additionally, the Compamy reduced the share preminm by repaying the capital to 000 .4 in
thie amount totals of 5§ 146,942 and trminsferred the investments in Borbe YT and TX to OOG 5.4 via
capital repayment in the amount of 1052 312808,

(rther comprehensive income (loss)

Refers to the cumulative tmndatinn adjustment of the Company” s suhsidiaries established abroad
winse fumctional marrency is different from the presentation cumency.

Revenne

Un December 31, =oa1 the reverme is mainly comprised by the vessel maintenance contract (Speciafized

(hll Im Services Agreement = S0ERA), as for 2010 {(unandited) de revenue consists mainly on the
Technical Services Agreement = TEA imwoiced to the SFEs.

Grenernl and ndministrative expenses

=011 VLR

{unaudited)

Persomnel expenses 1351 (g
Third-party services (10,5020 (12800
(thers 431 (=l
(10, G (1 e}

22nf =
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Odebrecht o1l Services Ld.
Mates to the financial statements

0k December 31, zoa1
I Banussernls of L % deollmrs
Financial result, net
N1 SNLLN
Financial expenses (anmndited)
Interest on fimancing (B 8] (6,125
Exchange mte variation [=08]
Derivatives Insses (2.847) (a6
Chaaramter eXpenses [, Bery)
(hers () 431
(1, 743) i, Bt )
Financinl inecome
Exchange mte variation 29 [0
Intrrest on boans 11,131 27D
Derivatives gains 1500 Hrg
Crikers 31 175
1E.345 4,978
Financial result, net [4,358) (2455)

Earnings {loss) per one thousand shares
Basic

Thie basic eamings (loss) per one thowsand shares is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss atiritaotable
to the Company's shareholders by the weighted average rmmber of common shares ourtstanding during

thie period fyear, exclnding the common shares purchased and held in treasory.

=311 2RI
{mrenncdated)

Mt loss attributable to common share

holders ~ Basic and diluted (2,1 88) {2 450

:m'l'rtrﬂ:t:i:qn rumber of cotstaniding P — " -

f:ag:aiﬁf{luﬁt;ﬂ o perone t e (536630 (55300

The Compary has a risk management program designed to mitigate losses and comtracts insumnce in
the market compatihle with #ts size and operations. The amounts insured are considered to be sufficient

Ty management tooover evertnal lnsses, considering the natore of the activities, the risk invohed im

aperatians and the recommendations of insmemnes brokers.

2q0f 2
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Odebrecht o1l Services Lid.

Maotes to the finnncial statements

nt December 31, 2001
Im Bhmussrids of 115 daollars

iUm December 31, 2on, the Company had the following insumnce policies contracted wath third pariies:

Uovered itemis Covered risk Amaunt

Lmllships Hull and machinery fincreased LI5S el s
value/acrelerated cost of

ponstrachio Efm‘ar:h:m and
il‘dul'.'lﬂﬂilj'll'gﬂ liability) delay in
delivery

The insummess contracted by CHISL, in mse of koss, have the Odebmecht Dmilling Seraces LLE, ODN
Eight GmbH and QD Mine GmbH as the beneficary.

Subsequent events

As of June 26, 3z the Company trmansferred the contral of the investes Odebeecht Drilling Servioes LLC
iSRS bo Ce0 through eapital reduction. This operation did not imvolve any cash tmnsaction.

in April of, 3003, the Company received rescnrmes from (DN Holding in the amount of USD 15,0080 as
repaynent of the loans granted to Delba GebH (MNote 8.

24 nf2yq
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ANNEX B

REFERENCE ASSETS DISTRIBUTION DATES, DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT PAYMENT DATES AND CLASS B
NOTES PRINCIPAL REDUCTION AMOUNTS

OOSL | Credit OOSL Six Credit Distribution Amount Class B Notes
Agreement/OOSL | Agreement/OOSL Payment Dates and Principal Reduction
Swaps Distribution Six Swaps Principal Reduction Amounts

Dates Distribution Dates Dates (inU.S.%)
September 30, 2013 October 31, 2013 September 30, 2013 38,636,295
October 31, 2013 26,447,984

March 31, 2014 April 30, 2014 March 31, 2014 28,728,452
April 30, 2014 28,901,257

September 30, 2014 October 31, 2014 September 30, 2014 32,232,544
October 31, 2014 28,839,039

March 31, 2015 April 30, 2015 March 31, 2015 37,921,318
April 30, 2015 30,467,539

September 30, 2015 October 30, 2015 September 30, 2015 38,189,912
October 30, 2015 32,020,874

March 31, 2016 April 29, 2016 March 31, 2016 43,482,778
April 29, 2016 34,364,282

September 30, 2016 October 31, 2016 September 30, 2016 44,460,679
October 31, 2016 35,167,571

March 31, 2017 April 28, 2017 March 31, 2017 47,190,300
April 28, 2017 86,176,594

September 29, 2017 - September 29, 2017 48,672,740

March 29, 2018 - March 29, 2018 49,223,236
September 28, 2018 - September 28, 2018 49,400,910

March 29, 2019 - March 29, 2019 52,395,746
September 30, 2019 - September 30, 2019 52,088,517

March 31, 2020 - March 31, 2020 54,777,930
September 30, 2020 - September 30, 2020 54,877,002

March 31, 2021 - March 31, 2021 57,528,438
September 30, 2021 - September 30, 2021 57,350,270

March 31, 2022 - March 31, 2022 60,201,392

August 28, 2022 - August 28, 2022 27,420,782
September 12, 2022 September 12, 2022 13,833,290
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ANNEX C
FORM OF CLEARING SYSTEM NOTICE
[Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (“Euroclear™)]

ATENTION: e [e]
Telephone: ... [e]
F X e [e]
[Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (“Clearstream”)]
ARENTION: oo [e]
Telephone: ..o [e]
FaX: i [e]

Re: Physical Settlement in respect of the [U.S.$[110,000,000] Class A Pass-through Notes due 2022 (the “Class A
Notes”)]/[U.S.$[1,075,130,000] Class B Pass-through Notes due 2022]" (the “Class B Notes”) of Series 2013-02
issued by EM Falcon Limited (the “Issuer™)

Reference is made to the Indenture dated as of August 7, 2013 (as supplemented, the “Indenture”) among the Issuer and The
Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given them in
the Indenture.

This letter relates to U.S.$[e] aggregate principal amount of Notes held in the form of a Regulation S Global Note with
[Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable] (ISIN No. XS0944225159 for Class A Notes, ISIN No. XS0944225233 for Class
B Notes; Common Code No. 094422515 for Class A Notes, Common Code No. 094422523 for Class B Notes) over which
[name of Holder] (the “Holder”) has a beneficial ownership interest (the “Designated Notes”). The Holder’s beneficial
interest is held in Account Number [Number] of [Bank] with [Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable].

As a result of the Holder having received Physical Delivery of its pro rata portion of the Reference Assets (the “Physical
Settlement™), the Holder irrevocably instructs the cancellation and removal of the Designated Notes from the records of
[Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable]. The Holder certifies that (i) it has received the Physical Settlement in full
settlement of the Issuer’s obligations under the Designated Notes and the Indenture and (ii) it has no further payment or other
claims on the Issuer or the Trustee under the terms of the Designated Notes or the Indenture.

You are entitled to rely upon this letter and are irrevocably authorized to produce this letter or a copy hereof to any interested
party in any administrative or legal proceedings or official inquiry with respect to the matters covered hereby.

[Name of Holder]
By:

Name:
Title:
Dated: ,

! Delete whichever is not applicable.
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ANNEX D
PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

“Permitted Investments” means any of the following investments selected by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute
discretion; provided that, the acquisition (including the manner of acquisition), ownership, enforcement or disposition of
which and the nature of which will not cause the Issuer to be treated as engaged in a trade or business within the United
States for U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwise be subject to U.S. federal, state or local income tax on a net income
basis;; provided that, the acquisition (including the manner of acquisition), ownership, enforcement or disposition of which
and the nature of which will not cause the Issuer to be treated as engaged in a trade or business within the United States for
U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwise be subject to U.S. federal, state or local income tax on a net income basis;
(provided further that, in the case of clauses (i) and (ii) below, at the time of purchase of the relevant asset, payments in
respect thereof are not subject to any deduction or withholding on account of tax by virtue of such asset being held by or on
behalf of the Issuer):

(i) any U.S. dollar-denominated senior debt securities of the United States of America issued by the U.S. Treasury
Department and backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America with a maturity that falls no later
than the next following Interest Payment Date in respect of the Notes; and/or

(i) any U.S. dollar denominated investment that is an offshore money market fund or liquidity fund or similar
investment vehicle that principally invests in short term fixed income obligations, including, without limitation, any
investment vehicle for which the Calculation Agent or the Trustee, or an affiliate of any of them, provides services,
provided that (a) such fund has a Moody's money market fund rating of at least "Aaa/MR1+" and an S&P rating of
"AAA", (b) such fund distributes interest or dividends on such investment on a regular basis and at least quarterly,
(c) the Issuer will not invest in any one such money market fund or liquidity fund an amount exceeding, in the
aggregate, 10 per cent. of the share capital of such fund and (d) the maturity date of such fund falls no later than the
next following Interest Payment Date in respect of the Notes; and/or

(iii) U.S. dollars; and/or

(iv) any repurchase or similar arrangements, if applicable.
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ANNEX E
FORM OF POWER OF ATTORNEY

By this power of attorney, THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, a New York banking corporation, not in its individual
capacity but solely as trustee under the Standard Terms of Indenture dated May 17, 2013 (the “Standard Terms”) and the
Series Indenture (the “Series Indenture” and, together with the Standard Terms, the “Indenture”) dated August 7, 2013 by
and among EM Falcon Limited, an Irish limited company, as issuer (the “Issuer”) and The Bank of New York Mellon, as
trustee, acting through its office located at One Canada Square, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom (the “Trustee”),
represented herein by its officers, according to its by-laws (the “Grantor”), hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints as its
attorney-in-fact, [CDA Name], [CDA address] and any officer or agent thereof (the “Grantee”), in its capacity as collateral
disposal agent (the “Collateral Disposal Agent”) in respect of the Reference Assets referred to in the Indenture, with full
power of substitution, as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact with full irrevocable power and authority in the place and stead
of the Trustee, acting on behalf of and in the name of the Grantor, for action by any technologically available means
(including, without limitation, any form of electronic data transmission), and to execute in any appropriate manner, any and
all documents and instruments which may be necessary or reasonably desirable to accomplish the following purposes, in
accordance with the Indenture:

1. request firm bid quotations to purchase the aggregate amount of outstanding Reference Assets (a “Bid Quote”)
from, to the extent reasonably practicable, three leading banks, dealers, brokers or any other active market
participants that deal in obligations of the type as such Reference Assets (as selected by the Grantee in its reasonable
discretion) (each such dealer or entity, which may or may not include an affiliate of such dealer, a “Reference
Dealer”), in respect of the purchase of some or all of the Reference Assets;

2. arrange for the sale of the outstanding Reference Assets to the Reference Dealer which provided the highest
quotation(s); and

3. transfer to the Collection Account an amount equal to the Liquidation Proceeds Amount referred to in the Indenture
received by the Grantee immediately upon receipt thereof by the Grantee.

The Grantee agrees to perform each of the above acts. The Grantor agrees to release the Reference Assets from the security
interests under the Indenture in order to permit the Grantee to settle the sale of the Reference Assets.

The authority granted to the Grantee by this power of attorney is not transferable to any other party or entity.

This instrument shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York (without regard to
its conflicts of law principles).

All actions heretofore taken by the Grantee, which the Grantee could properly have taken pursuant to this power of attorney,
be, and hereby are, ratified and affirmed.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, neither the Grantor nor the Issuer shall have any duty whatsoever
to monitor or supervise the activities of the Grantee. Neither the Issuer nor the Grantor shall have any duty whatsoever to
compensate or indemnify the Grantee. The Grantee agrees and acknowledges that the Holders are responsible for negotiating
the terms for the services rendered by Grantee and memorializing such terms in a contract with the Holders, including any
compensation and/or indemnity being provided by the Holders to the Grantee in respect of tis appointment as Collateral
Disposal Agent, a copy of which contract must be delivered to the Grantor by Holders pursuant to the terms of the Indenture.

For purposes of this instrument, the following definitions shall apply: (i) “Notes” means the U.S.$82,812,295 Class A Pass-
through Notes due 2022 and the U.S.$1,190,997,673 Class B Pass-through Notes due 2022 of Series 2013-02, issued by EM
Falcon on August 7, 2013 pursuant to the Indenture; and (ii) “Holders” means the holders of the Notes. This power of
attorney is effective for 30 days from the date hereof or the earlier of (a) revocation by the Grantor, (b) the date on which the
Grantee shall no longer be retained on behalf of the Grantor or an affiliate of the Grantor, and (c) the date on which the
Liquidation Proceeds Amount is paid to the Collection Account.
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By signing below the Grantee hereby accepts its appointment under this power of attorney and agrees to perform all acts and
duties required of it by the terms of this power of attorney.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee, pursuant to the Indenture, and these present to be
signed and acknowledged in its name and behalf by [insert name] its duly elected and authorized Managing Director and
[insert name] its duly elected and authorized Vice President this [e]th day of [date].

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
as Grantor

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:

Witness:
Printed Name:

[CDA]
as Grantee

By:
Name:
Title:

Annex E-2



ANNEX F

DEFINED TERMS
Additional AMOUNE ........ccoovveiireireeee e 22 NOTES. .ttt i,9
Additional Termination Events...........cccocooieiiniiinnne. 41 ODN | SWAPS...c.vieireeitirieiieeiie ettt saea 4
Affected Parties ... 41 ODS e 10
Affected Party ... 41 OOG .. 28,1
Applicable Margin.........cccocooveiineiieneieee, 29, 34 OOSL.. i 4,10,1
Bid QUOTE.....oviiieirieicte e 16 OOSL Credit AGreements........ccovveerereeeneneenennenns 4,10
CDA TEIMS ..ot 18 OOSL | Credit AGreement..........ccoceevevrenieeriennnne 4,10, 28
Central BanK ........cccocviviiireieiece e i OOSL | SWAPS ....ccviiriiieiieeeie e sie e sre e see e 10, 38
Charged ASSELS .......cceiviieireieiere e i OOSL Six Credit Agreement.........ccccceeververeiennnns 4, 10, 33
ClASS ..ottt 9 OOSL SiX SWaPS ...cceieerieieiesesiesie e iee e e 4,10, 38
Class A NOLES ......ccvveieiiiciesee e i,9,2 OOSL SWAPS ...vvevieieeieeie e seesteese e eee e enreens 4,10
Class B NOLES........ccveirreieirreiecenreeee e i,9,2 Permitted INVESIMENTS .......ccoeviireicieeeeeee e 1
Clearing System NOLICE .......cccccevvvivierr e 20 Physical DEIVEIY.......ccccviiiiieiieieecece e 16
Clearstream ... ...ccoeiveireieireee s 2 Physical Delivery Period ...........cccoeriininninenccie 16
Credit Event Upon MEerger ........ocooviveiiineieseneieeienns 41 Physical Settlement...........ccoeriiiniiienee 2
CUIE PEIIOA ..ot 16 Placement Memorandum ...........ccoceevveeeereenenenese e i
CVM L s 1 PrOSPECIUS ..ottt s i
Designated NOTES ........cooveiiiriiierieeesie e 2 Prospectus DIFeCIVE ........ccuveiiirercireeee s i
Disposal DIreCtions.........ccoceveirereieneneesenee e 18 Prospectus ReguIations............ccccvervirenninencneeiens i
Distribution AmMOUNL........ccccoveiiiiiiie e 13 Redemption AMOUNt..........c.ccvveiieieeie e 16
Early Redemption ........ccccoevviiiicie e 16 Reference Assets Default..........cccccvevviieiiiniie e, 20
Early Redemption Amount ..........ccccooeviiieiiienc e 16 Reference Assets Early Redemption............ccccovevvvennenne. 20
BUIOCIEAN ...t 2 Reference Dealer ..o 16
Eurodollar Rate..........ccccvveiiiiinieseece e 29, 34 Registration DOCUMENL .........cccccveiiiiiieiie e i
Events of Default.........c.ccoovieiiiniiieeeeee 40 Regulated Market ..........cccooviininniiees i
Financial Intermediary........cccccooveveiiieneinieneineeee, 20 ReguIAtiON S ..o i
Force Majeure EVENt..........cccooeiveneineneneneee e 41 Scheduled Interest Payment Date .........ccccooeevveneeniennn 12
[ 0] [0 - SRS 2 SECUNILIES ACL...c. iiie e i
HOIAEIS. ... i SECUMEIES NOTE.....eveeiiiieree e i
INAENEUNE ..o s i, 2 Settlement CoNditioNS.........cccovevrireinneierseeeenas 20
Interest Payment Date..........ccoceveiereninieiee e 12 ShOrtfall......ccooii 23
Irish Stock EXChange ........ccocvvieieiinee e i Swap Confirmations ..........coceeiriiiine i 39
ISSUBT ..ttt ettt i,2 SWap COUNLEIPAIY .....c.eovvieiieieniie e 38
KYC ReqUIremMeNnts.........ccoceieiiieieieeeeieee e 18 TAX EVENT. ..o 41
Liquidation Proceeds AmMOuNt ............ccooeveienercnennnn 16 Tax Event Upon MErQer ........ccveeereneieie e 41
Liquidation Reference Dealer.........cccoevvnencienenicnnnen. 18 Tax Redemption EVENt.........cccoeviiiciiiinceic e 20
LOANS ...t 28, 33 Termination EVENTS..........ccoveirreenneeseennreee s 41
Master AQreBmMENt ........ccvevverererese e 38 Third Party Information..........cccoceveveieviniin e, i
Modified Following Business Day Convention.............. 12 L0 (-SSR i
MISIP o 10 UNSOHCItEd Bid......covcveirieiiinicecieee e 18
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REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

Em Falcon Limited

2" Floor
11/12 Warrington Place
Dublin 2
Ireland
TRUSTEE PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT, AGENT BANK AND
TRANSFER AGENT
The Bank Of New York Mellon The Bank Of New York Mellon
One Canada Square One Canada Square
London E14 5AL London E14 5AL
United Kingdom United Kingdom
REGISTRAR

The Bank Of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A.

Vertigo Building — Polaris
2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert
L-2453 Luxembourg

IRISH LISTING AGENT

Arthur Cox Listing Services Limited
Earlsfort Centre
Earlsfort Terrace
Dublin 2
Ireland

LEGAL ADVISORS
To the Issuer

To the Issuer and the Distributor
As to United States and English law As to Irish law
Linklaters LLP Arthur Cox
1345 Avenue of the Americas Earlsfort Centre
Earlsfort Terrace
Dublin 2

New York, NY 10105

United States of America
Ireland
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